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1 WELCOME TO COUNTRY

Playing of the Welcome to Country video clip.

2 OPENING DECLARATION

We, the Councillors of the Shire of Gannawarra, declare that we will undertake the duties of the
office of Councillor, in the best interests of our community, and faithfully, and impartially, carry
out the functions, powers, authorities and discretions vested in us, to the best of our skill and
judgement.

3 APOLOGIES AND LEAVE OF ABSENCE

4 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES
Meeting - 20 September 2023

5 DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST
General conflict of interest

Unless exempt under Section 129 of the Local Government Act 2020 (the Act) or regulation 7 of
the Local Government (Governance and Integrity) Regulations 2020, a Councillor or member of
Council staff has a general conflict of interest in a matter if an impartial, fair-minded person would
consider that the person’s private interests (as defined in Section 127(2) of the Act) could result in
that person acting in a manner that is contrary to their public duty.

Material conflict of interest

Unless exempt under Section 129 of the Local Government Act 2020 or regulation 7 of the Local
Government (Governance and Integrity) Regulations 2020, a Councillor or member of Council staff
has a material conflict of interest in respect of a matter if an affected person (as defined in Section
128(3) of the Act) would gain a benefit or suffer a loss depending on the outcome of the matter.

Disclosure of a conflict of interest

A Councillor who has a conflict of interest and is attending a meeting of the Council must make a
full disclosure of that interest by either advising:

a) the Council at the meeting immediately before the matter is considered at the meeting; or
b) the Chief Executive Officer in writing before the meeting —

whether the interest is a general conflict of interest or a material conflict of interest; and the
nature of the interest.

Note: If a Councillor advises the Chief Executive Officer of the details under b) above, the
Councillor must make a disclosure of the class of interest only to the meeting immediately before
the matter is considered at the meeting.
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In accordance with Section 130 of the Act, a councillor who has a disclosed a conflict of interest in
respect of a matter must exclude themselves from the decision making process in relation to the

matter, including any discussion or vote on the matter at any Council meeting, and any action in
relation to the matter.

Failure to comply with Section 130 of the Act may result in a penalty of 120 penalty units
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6 BRIEFING SESSIONS

6.1 RECORDS OF COUNCILLOR BRIEFINGS - 13 SEPTEMBER TO 10 OCTOBER 2023

Author: Mel Mathers, People and Culture Officer

Authoriser: Geoff Rollinson, Chief Executive Officer

Attachments: 1 Councillor Briefing Record - 13 September to 10 October 2023
RECOMMENDATION

That Council note the records of Councillor Briefings 13 September to 10 October 2023.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report presents to Council written records of Councillor Briefings in accordance with Clause 31
of the Gannawarra Shire Council Governance Rules.

DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The Officer preparing this report declares that they have no conflict of interest in regards to this
matter.

COUNCIL PLAN

Council Plan 2021-2025: Be a creative employer of choice through our adherence to good
governance and our inclusive culture.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

In accordance with Clause 32 of the Gannawarra Shire Council Governance Rules, a written record
of a meeting held under the auspices of Council is, as soon as practicable, reported at a meeting of
the Council and incorporated in the minutes of that Council meeting.

The record must include:
1. The names of all Councillors and members of Council staff attending
2. The matters considered
3. Any conflict of interest disclosures made by a Councillor attending
4

Whether a Councillor who has disclosed a conflict of interest left the meeting.

CONSULTATION

Consultation with Councillors and staff has occurred to ensure the accuracy of the Councillor
Briefing records.

CONCLUSION

To ensure compliance with Clause 32 of the Gannawarra Shire Council Governance Rules, it is
recommended that Council note the Councillor Briefing records as attached to this report.
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N\

RECORD OF A COUNCILLOR BRIEFING GANNAWARRA

Shire Council

Type of Meeting Councillor Briefing

Date: Monday, 9 October 2023
Time: 9:00am - 3:00pm

Location: Kerang Senior Citizens Centre
In Attendance: Cr Charlie Gillingham
(Councillors) Cr Kelvin Burt

Cr Travis Collier
Cr Ross Stanton

Cr Keith Link

Cr Jane Ogden
Apologies: Cr Garner Smith
In Attendance: Geoff Rollinson, Alissa Harrower, Wade Williams, Paul Fernee, Roger
(Officers) Griffiths, Scott Bourne, Carole Wandin, Leigh Hollingworth, Sid Hutchinson.
In Attendance:
(Other)
Matters Discussed: Review Draft October Council Agenda

7.1 Policy Review — No.074 — Information Privacy & Health Records
7.2 2023 Community Grants Program — Community Event Grants
7.3 2023 Community Grants Program — Community Support Grants
7.4  Annual Report 2023

7.5 Audit & Risk Committee — 12 September 2023 Meeting

Councillor Briefing Updates
e Community Care Services Transition Out Update
e ENEL Project Engagement
* Revised Flood Rehabilitation Estimates
e 2023/2024 Capex Update — October
s Forecast Budget 2023/24
e Future Listing Report
Councillor Issues

Conflict of Interest Disclosures

Matter No. Councillor/Officer making Councillor/Officer left meeting
disclosure Yes/No

7.2 = Community Grants | Cr’s Jane Ogden, Charlie Gillingham, | No

Program — Community Kelvin Burt and Ross Stanton.

Event Grants

7.3 — Community Grants | Cr Kelvin Burt and Keith Link. No
Program — Community

Support Grants.

Completed By: Geoff Rollins,on — Chief Executive Officer

= A ——
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7 BUSINESS REPORTS FOR DECISION

7.1 COUNCIL POLICY REVIEW - NO. 074 INFORMATION PRIVACY AND HEALTH RECORDS

Author: Alissa Harrower, Manager Governance

Authoriser: Geoff Rollinson, Chief Executive Officer

Attachments: 1 Council Policy No. 074 - Information Privacy and Health Records
RECOMMENDATION

That Council endorse the following reviewed policy:

1. Policy No. 074 - Information Privacy and Health Records

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Council officers undertake regular reviews of Council policies to ensure compliance with relevant
legislation and to ensure that they are reflective of current practice. This report addresses the
following policy that have been recently reviewed:

e Policy No. 074 — Information Privacy and Health Records

PURPOSE
The purpose of this report is to ensure good governance practices are in place whilst meeting
legislative requirements.

ATTACHMENTS

DISCUSSION

Council officers undertake regular reviews of Council policies to ensure compliance with relevant
legislation and that they reflect current practice. Council policies are reviewed as needed;
however, most policies must be reviewed within either 12 months or two years after a General
Election. Reviewed policies are presented to Council for endorsement, or for repeal if it is
determined that the policy is no longer required.

Council policies provide guidance to staff, Council and the community and are published on
Council’s website.

Below is a summary of recommended adjustments to the recently reviewed policies:

Policy | Policy Title Comments

No.

074 Information | This policy outlines Council’s commitment and responsibilities relating to
Privacy and | the collection of personal and health information and is governed by the
HeaItP:j Privacy and Data Protection Act 2014 and Health Records Act 2001.
Records

The proposed adjustments to this policy are all administrative type
adjustments.
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RELEVANT LAW
e Privacy and Data Protection Act 2014
e Health Records Act 2001
e freedom of Information Act 1982
e Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006
e local Government Act 1989

e local Government Act 2020

RELATED COUNCIL DECISIONS

Council originally adopted this Policy in 1995, and recently reviewed the Policy on 20 October
2021.

OPTIONS

Council may wish to endorse the proposed adjustments or make alternative adjustments or decide
to not make any adjustments to the policy at this time.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
Not Applicable.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
Not applicable.

INNOVATION AND CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT
Not Applicable.

COLLABORATION

Council seeks information and advice relating to information privacy from the Office of the
Victorian Information Commissioner.

FINANCIAL VIABILITY
Not Applicable.

REGIONAL, STATE AND NATIONAL PLANS AND POLICIES
Not Applicable.

COUNCIL PLANS AND POLICIES

Gannawarra Shire Council Plan 2021 — 2025 - Sustainability — Goal 3 — Be a creative employer of
choice through our adherence to good governance and our inclusive culture.

TRANSPARENCY OF COUNCIL DECISIONS

This report will be considered in an open Council meeting.
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CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The officer preparing this report declares that they have no conflict of interest in regard to this
matter.
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N\

GANNAWARRA
Shire Council

Information Privacy and Health

Records
COUNCIL POLICY NO. 074

1. PURPOSE

Council is committed to ensuring that personal and health information received by the organisation is collected, handled
and disposed of in a responsible manner and in accordance with the Information Privacy Principles incorporated within
the Privacy and Data Protection Act 2014 (PDPA) and the Health Records Act 2001.

In fulfilling these objectives, Council will:

This policy:

a)
b)
c)

balance the public interest in the free flow of information with the public interest in protecting the privacy
of personal information;

balance the public interest in promoting open access to public sector information with the public interest
in protecting its security;

promote awareness of responsible personal information handling practices; and

promote the responsible and transparent handling of personal information.

applies to all Gannawarra Shire Council Councillors, officers and contractors;
covers all personal information held by Council; and
includes information we have collected from third parties.

2. DEFINITIONS

Health information includes information or an opinion about a living or deceased person’s physical, mental or
psychological health; disability, wishes about provision of health services; or a health service provided, or to be provided.

Health Privacy Principles (HPPs) are a set of eleven principles that regulate how health information is handled. These
principles underpin the Health Records Act.

® o o o o 0o o 0o o o 0

HPP 1 - Collection

HPP 2 — Use and Disclosure

HPP 3 — Data Quality

HPP 4 — Data Security and Data Retention

HPP 5 — Openness

HPP 6 — Access and Correction

HPP 7 — Identifiers

HPP 8 — Anonymity

HPP 9 — Transborder Data Flows

HPP 10 - Transfer or/closure of the practice of a Health Service Provider
HPP 11 — Making information available to another Health Service Provider
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Information Privacy Principles (IPPs) are a set of ten principles that regulate how personal information is handled.
These principles underpin the Privacy and Data Protection Act:

IPP 1 - Collection

IPP 2 — Use and Disclosure

IPP 3 — Data Quality

IPP 4 — Data Security

IPP 5 — Openness

IPP 6 — Access and correction
IPP 7 — Unique |dentifiers

IPP 8 — Anonymity

IPP 9 — Transborder Data Flows
IPP 10 - Sensitive Information

e & & * 0 0 * 0

Personal information is information or an opinion that is recorded in any form and whether true or not, that could
identify a living person (including work related information and images).

Sensitive information includes information about a person’s racial or ethnic origin, political opinions, philosophical or
religious beliefs, sexual preferences or practices, criminal record or membership of trade unions, profession, political or
trade associations.

3. ABOUT GANNAWARRA SHIRE COUNCIL

As a Council, it is our role to locally govern for all residents, visitors and ratepayers, and provide a range of programs
and services that meet the needs of our community.

Many of our powers and functions are assigned to us by other acts of parliament. We also enforce local laws which
affect our residents, businesses and visitors to the shire.

Our contact details are:

Telephone: 03 5450 9333
Email: council@gsc.vic.gov.au
Post: PO Box 287, Kerang 3579

4. POLICY

What type of information does Council collect?

Forms used by Council to collect personal or health information will provide notice of the purpose of collecting the
information and will refer individuals to this Policy for information concerning Council’s collection, handling and
disclosure practices and procedures.

Council acknowledges the ten Information Privacy Principles (IPPs) contained in the Privacy and Data Protection Act,
and the eleven Health Privacy Principles (HPPs) contained in the Health Records Act as being the cornerstone of
information privacy.

Page |2
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The following departments within Council collect and use personal and health information:

. Community Care . Children’s Services

. Building and Planning . Environmental Health

. Local Laws . Community Sustainability

. Library . Rates and Property Valuations

. Risk Management . Arts and Culture

. Accounts (Debtors) . Human Resources/Payroll
Infrastructure . GIS

. Governance . Community Engagement

Council will only collect personal or health information that is necessary for the fulfilment of one or more of its statutory
functions and legitimate business activities, and will do so by lawful and fair means and not in an unreasonably intrusive
way.

The following are some examples of circumstances where Council will obtain personal information:

. Details of residents receiving community services, eg child care, home care, community transport
Planning and Building Permit applications

Food premises and animal registrations

Details of volunteers, visitors, committee members

Ratepayer information

Applications, enquiries, submissions, surveys and complaints

Photographs taken at meetings and events

. & & * 0 @

. CCTV footage

. Correspondence from the public

. Insurance claim information

. Immunisations and Maternal and Child Health information.

Council may also collect sensitive information but will only so do where the person has given prior consent or as
permitted by law.

The following Acts require the collection of personal information:

Domestic Animals Act 1994

Health Records Act 2001

Local Government Act 1989

Local Government Act 2020
Planning and Environment Act 1987
Valuation and Land Act 1960

*® & 0 0 & 0

If it is reasonable and practical to do so, Council will only collect personal and health information directly from the
individual. If personal or health information about an individual is collected from someone else, Council will take
reasonable steps to make sure the affected individual is aware of this Policy.

Where it is lawful and practicable to do so, a person may be afforded the option of not identifying themselves when
transacting with Council, however, identification is necessary when lodging a complaint with Council to prevent against
malicious or non-genuine complaints.

Failure to provide personal information where required to do so may also obstruct Council in the fulfilment of its
statutory functions and obligations.

Council’s website can be visited anonymously as the site does not record or collect personal information other than
information a person may choose to provide.
What does Council do with information?

Council will only use personal and health information for the purpose for which is was collected, for a related purpose
that could easily be expected or where required by law (either privacy legislation or other laws).

At times, a person’s consent may be sought to use or provide personal and/or health information to another
organisation or for another purpose.

A unique identifier is a number or code that is assigned to someone’s record to assist with identification (similar to a
drivers licence or Medicare number). Unique identifiers created by another organisation will not be used as reference
numbers or identifiers within Council.

Page |3
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Council does not prohibit the transfer of personal information outside of Victoria, but it does place restrictions on when
it can occur. This is because the Privacy and Data Protection Act is a Victoria law and therefore the IPPs will not apply
to organisations in a different state, territory or country.

Council will only transfer personal or health information outside Victoria in accordance with the provisions outlined in
the Privacy and Data Protection Act and Health Records Act.
What disclosures might be made by Council?

Where it is reasonable and lawfully required to do so, Council will disclose collected personal information to relevant
agencies.

Personal information may be disclosed by Council in various circumstances including:

. When someone requests to view a Public Register which Council is required by law to maintain eg Building
Permits, Submissions, Dogs/Cats, Certificates of Registration. Owner or occupier names are only included
on Gannawarra Shire Council public registers when required by law;

. Where required by other legislation eg ownership information as detailed within the Fences Act 1958;

. Where required by contracted service providers who undertake duties on Council’s behalf eg waste
removal;

. When required by Council's legal advisors, insurance claim agents and insurance providers, for the
purposes of complaints or insurance claim investigation and resolution; or

. When in accordance with the public interest, for example to statutory authorities for consultative

purposes eg VicRoads, Department Environment, Land, Water and Planning (DELWP), Department of
Families, Fairness and Housing (DFFH). All such disclosures are made under agreements requiring
information to be handled in accordance with privacy legislation.

How does Council ensure the information is accurate, up to date and secure?
Council takes reasonable steps to ensure the information it holds is accurate, complete and current.

A number of procedural, physical, software and hardware safeguards are used, together with access controls, secure
methods of communication and back up and disaster recovery systems to protect information from misuse and loss,
unauthorised access, modification and disclosure.

Stored information is also archived in accordance with the Public Records Act 1973, which determines when it is
appropriate to retain or dispose of personal and health information.

How can a person access or correct information held by Council?

Following the collection of personal information, the individual whose information has been collected, may contact
Council for access to that information. The individual can contact the most relevant Council department directly or
Council’s FOI/Privacy Officer using the contact details in the ‘About Gannawarra Shire Council’ section on page 2.

Access will be provided except in the circumstances outlined in the Privacy and Data Protection Act, for example, where
the information relates to legal proceedings or where the Freedom of Information Act 1982 applies. If an individual
believes that their personal information is inaccurate, incomplete or out of date, the individual may request Council to
correct the information. The request will be dealt with in accordance with the Privacy and Data Protection Act.

How does Council Handle Privacy complaints?

If a person is dissatisfied with Council’s handling of their personal and/or health information, a complaint may be made
to Council’s Privacy Officer. Complaints should be made in writing addressed to Gannawarra Shire Council, PO Box 287,
Kerang Victoria 3579 or via email to council@gsc.vic.gov.au.

All complaints will be investigated and handled with discretion and confidentiality and in accordance with Council Policy
No. 117 = Complaint Handling, and Council’s Complaint Handling Procedure. Both documents are available from
Council's website, www.gsc.vic.gov.au or provided upon request using the contact details in the ‘About Gannawarra
Shire Council’ section on page 2.

Page |4
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If resolution is not satisfactorily achieved within Council, complaints may be re-directed to the Office of the Victorian
Information Commissioner (OVIC). OVIC will try to resolve your complaint through conciliation, talking through issues
and attempting to resolve your compliant in a way that is acceptable to everyone, and which upholds the objectives of

the Privacy and Data Protection Act.

OVIC contact details are:

Post:
Email:
Telephone:
Website:

PO Box 24274, Melbourne Victoria 3001

enquiries@ovic.vic.gov.au
1300 006 842 (9am — Spm, Monday to Friday)

WwWw.ovic.vic.gov.au

5. RELATED PROCEDURES/GUIDELINES

6. REFERENCES/LEGISLATION

Privacy and Data Protection Act 2014

Health Records Act 2001

Freedom of Information Act 1982

Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006

Local Government Act 1989
Local Government Act 2020

7. POLICY REVIEW

This policy will be reviewed at least every two years.

At the time it was reviewed, this policy was compliant with the Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities

Act 2006.

8. FURTHER INFORMATION

Members of the public may inspect all policies at Gannawarra Shire Council’s Kerang and Cohuna office or online at
www.gannawarra.vic.gov.au

Any enquiries in relation to this policy should be directed to the Chief Executive Officer on (03) 5450 9333.

Altus Folder — 3.000518
Originally adopted:
Reviewed:
Reviewed:
Reviewed:
Reviewed:
Reviewed:
Reviewed:
Reviewed:
Reviewed:
Reviewed:
Reviewed:

To be reviewed by:

1995

31/11/2002
24/11/2004
27/06/2007
16/12/2009
19/12/2012
22/06/2016
17/10/2018
18/12/2019
20/10/2021
18/10/2023
2025

Minute Book Reference:
Minute Book Reference:
Minute Book Reference:
Minute Book Reference:
Minute Book Reference:
Minute Book Reference:
Minute Book Reference:

2455
3816
5895
7764
9658
12419
13736

Page |S

Iltem 7.1- Attachment 1

Page 14



Council Meeting Agenda 18 October 2023

7.2 2023 COMMUNITY GRANTS PROGRAM - COMMUNITY EVENT GRANTS

Author: Katrina Thorne, Coordinator Community Partnerships
Authoriser: Paul Fernee, Director Community Wellbeing
Attachments: 1 2023 Community Grants program - Community Events
recommendations (Council)
2 2023 Community Grants program - Community Events

recommendations (Flood Recovery)

RECOMMENDATION

1) That Council endorse the allocation of the 2023 Community Grants — Community Event
category, totalling $14,220;

2) That Council endorse the suggested allocation of $31,425 in funding support be referred
to the Community Resilience Committee for consideration of funding as part of the Flood
Recovery Program;

3) That Council endorse the allocation of funding for the Community Event for Northern
District Community Health;

4) That Council endorse the allocation of funding for the Community Event for Kerang
Lakes;

5) That Council endorse the allocation of funding for the Community Event for Cohuna
Progress;

6) That Council endorse the allocation of funding for the Community Event for Kerang
Progress;

7) That Council endorse the allocation of funding for the Community Event for Koondrook
Development Committee;

8) That Council endorse all remaining Community Event applications not previously
endorsed in Recommendations 3 - 7;

9) That Council endorse officers to undertake a review of the Community Grant guidelines
to determine funding criteria for the 2024 program.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
The 2023 Community Grants program saw 43 applications submitted totalling $173,900.68.

Of these applications, 14 were for Community Events and 29 were for Community Support. A
summary of the submissions is detailed below:

Funding category Number of applications received Total Amount requested
Community Events 14 $53,325
Community Support 29 $120,575.68

An assessment process has been undertaken for both categories (Community Support and
Community Events), with independent assessments completed by a cross-departmental panel,
taking into consideration the responses to the essential criteria, evidence provided to support
applications, as well as history of previous funding received through the program.
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From this, Council officers have developed the attached recommendations for funding that are
within Council’s budget for the program.

PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is to present Council with the recommendations to endorse the award
of funding for the 2023 Community Grants Program — Community Events category, within the
available budget.

ATTACHMENTS

2023 Community Grants program — Community Event funding recommendations

DISCUSSION
The 2023 Community Grants program opened on 1 August 2023, and closed on 3 September.

The framework for Council’s 2023 Community Grants Program is outlined below:

Category Adopted Budget Total of applications received

Community Support and Events $80,000 $173,900.68

This year the funding recommendations include a number of events that are recommended to be
referred to the Gannawarra Community Resilience Committee for consideration of funding as part
of the flood recovery program.

A funding recommendation breakdown is provided below:

Funding category Number of applications Amount
supported

Community Events funding 6 $14,220

Flood Recovery Program 9 $31,425

The events that are recommended to be referred to the Gannawarra Community Resilience
Committee for consideration have been deemed to align with the Emergency Recovery Victoria
(ERV) Community Hubs funding grant guidelines, which support social recovery and resilience post
the October — December 2022 flood event in Gannawarra.

Whilst the attached recommendations seek for Council to endorse funding for all 14 event
applications, it should be noted that the original intention of the Community Grants program —
Community Event funding category was for Council to offer support for new, innovative
community-led events, or to encourage the sustainability of existing events.

In recent years, the Community Events category has seen applicants re-applying annually for the
same components of the same events; for example fireworks for the annual New Years Eve
celebrations.

Council is fortunate this year to have access to government funding to support community events
through the flood recovery program and this has provided the opportunity to support all 14
Community Event submissions.

However, consideration needs to be given to how to encourage event organisers who make repeat
applications for the same components of the same event each year, to become more sustainable
and not reliant on Council’s annual funding support.
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This is an opportune time for Council to review the guidelines for the Community Grants Program
and for Council to determine funding criteria for the 2024 program once this review has been
completed.

RELEVANT LAW

Not applicable

RELATED COUNCIL DECISIONS
Not applicable

OPTIONS

Funding recommendations have been made to Council in line with the adopted budget available
to support the program. These recommendations have been made as a result of independent
assessments by a cross-departmental panel of Council officers, and it is recommended Council
endorse the allocation of funds as outlined within the attachment provided with this report.
SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

Funding provided through this program supports economic and social sustainability within small
communities.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

The 2023 Community Grants program was advertised and promoted across a range of platforms
from mid-July. This included Council’s regular print advertisement in local newspapers
(Gannawarra News), online platforms (Facebook) and direct email marketing via our email
distribution database in Mailchimp.

Throughout the month of August while applications were open, regular online promotion was
undertaken.
INNOVATION AND CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT

In line with section 9 of the Local Government Act 2020, to ensure that innovation and continuous
improvement is pursued, officers will undertake a review of the current Community Grant
guidelines and supporting documentation to ensure the program continues to meet the needs of
the community and that the process is relevant and reflects current strategic alignment with
Council’s long term community vision.

COLLABORATION
Not applicable

FINANCIAL VIABILITY

The 2023 Community Grants program budget allocation is included in Council’s 2023/2024
Adopted Budget.

REGIONAL, STATE AND NATIONAL PLANS AND POLICIES
Not applicable
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COUNCIL PLANS AND POLICIES

Community Grant applicants were required to identify how their projects aligned with the 2021 —
2025 Council Plan as one of the essential criteria. Applicants were also encouraged to identify
linkages to other key Council strategic documents.

TRANSPARENCY OF COUNCIL DECISIONS

This report will be considered in an open Council meeting.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The officer preparing this report declares that they have no conflict of interest in regards to this
matter.
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Gannawarra Shire Council Community Events Grant - August 2023
Funding recommendations thraugh the Community Grants Program

Total Total Amount
App 1D |Applicant Project Title Brief Project Deseription Requested | Project Cost| Location Funding récommendation |recommended
CE2023-  |Koondrook ‘Celebrating Koondrook's Paddleboat Heritage This is a free community evant for the centenary celebration of the launch of the PS Alexander Arbuthnot, Thi event will bring the community $5,000.00 $29,977.00(Koondrook Recommended for funding through the Community Grants| § 5,000.00
002 Development together to celebrate the river, our heritage and identity. Program.
Committes Inc. The event will provide free children®s entertainment including a bush dance, face painting, juggling, balloon twisting. cup cake decorating, games and
art show, Displays will indede model paddieboats, Turtles Australia and heritage machinery and vehiches. The P5 Alexander Arbuthnot will be
attending. water levels permitting, and we are inviting a boat flotilla 1o jein her on the Murray. A birthday cake replica of the boat will be cut and
shared with the event crowd.
This event is the final part of a 3-part project - research into the vessels built at Keondrook, development and installation of interpretative signage and
the community event. This application is only for the event component and event costs.
CE023-  |Federation Vintage Federations Murrabit Picnic This event will celebrate Mational Motoring Heritage Day celebrated across Australia for the preservation of all matorized conveyances and heritage $1,800.00( $2,500.00|Kerang Recommended for funding through the Community Grants| § 1,200.00
003 Veteran and Classic vehicles and machinery. Events will be held in other areas arcund Australia on the same day, Pionic days were and still are the most less formal way of Program
Wehiche Club Inc. enthusiasts getting together to show case their vehicles to like minded people and the general public in an atmosphere of trangquility. Patrons get
together to display vehicles and operating heritage wehicles encourage awareness within the general public. In short the day provides fellowship for
all whe get together to share and show their vehicles and machinery.
CEX23-  |Quambatook [Quambatook Show The Quambatook Show is an event that brings the community together to socialise and celebrate our achieverments and culture. £5,000.00] $9,400.00|Guambatook  |Recommended for funding through the Community Grants 5 4,080.00
015 Community Resource To create as much fun and community involvement as we can, we partner with the Quambatook District Share Shop * Q0SS to organise a town garage Program.
Centre sale and time the Show 1o cointide with the Ouambatook Community Development Association *QC0A Sila Cinema streening event.
‘We have added an exciting extra entertaiment element this year; a chainsaw sculptor who will skillfully carve 3 sculptures owver the course of the day.
And we have also engaged local airbrush tattoo artists, Chillair Studios, to provide free tattoos for the erowd.
The Show will be held at the Mermarial Hall and food and drinks will be available for sale.
CE2023-  [Kerang Golf Club Ine  |Grodve on the Green Kerang Golf Club will host 'Groove on the Green' - a community music event. Our aim is to bring people together for a fun filled evening of music, $5,000.00| 55,780.00|Kerang Recommend for funding through the Community Grants [ § 2,500.00
016 dance and togetherness. Program.
We have booked the band The Quarry Hillbillies' - a popular Bendigo group. We are also scurcing a local back up band and have invited KTHS to
endorse some budding musicians to showcase their talents. The cor ion of musical off will be a huge drawcard attracting locals and visitors
0 our event.
‘Wi have chosen a Sunday afternoon 3o we do not clash with other weekend sethities.
This type of event has been held in the past but COMID, flood and economic factors have restricted our ability to host it in recent years.
'We feel people are ready to venture out again and are looking for safe, engaging, family friendly events to come ther with the o ity
CE2I-  |Kerang Lakes Kerang Lakes Community Christmas Celebration This event will enable our Eerang Lakes community to connect and celebrate the end of the year together after several years of isolation through £2,465.00] 54,365.00|Lakes District  [Recommend for funding through the Community Grants 5 1,100.00
o7 Carmmunity COVID restrictions and then the experience of another flood event in our area. Since the Lake Charm school has become de-staffed we no longer have Program up to value of 51,100 and
Development Group a school Christmas event bringing our community together and helping our community thrive, It is important to connect and develop our current Recommended that additional 51,365 for this event be
CoOmmanity groups to ensure the mental health and wellbeing and lveability of the Kerang Lakes area and invite the wider Gannawarra communities referred to the Gannawarra Resilience Committee for
to attend and enjoy what the Kerang Lakes has to offer. The event will run from mid afternoon to evening with kids activities ineluding face painting. condideration of funding as part of the Flood Recovery
Christma craft, jumping casthe, live music and BB meal for the whale family and friends at the Lake Charm Hall, program as this fits within the flood recovery program
under ‘Discretionary events, programs and activities, eg
New Years EvefChristmas gatherings'
CE223-  [CQuambatook |Karaoke Fun Day at the Pool The Karacke Fun Day at the Pool will provide an indusive event for the community. It will an opportunity which allows peaple to come together and $2,000.00]  $2,700.00[Quambatock  |Recommend for funding through the Community Grants | § 340.00
018 Memarial Swimming enpoy in an envi it which provides relief from the hot Mallee summer. Program.
Paal
Total funding recommendation S 14,220.00
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Gannawarra Shire Council Community Events Grant - August 2023
Funding recommendations through the flood recovery program

0 Project Title Project Description Requested e Funding recommendation recommended
szb Cohuna Markets Inc. Family Fun Day The Family Fun Day will age and through active play, arts & musi in a free and inclusive event to appeal to bers of all ages. The $5,000.00 $5,000.00|Cohuna Recommended that this event be referred to the Gannawaera Reslience | § 5,000.00
001 event will be based on our Family Fun Day that was bosted in 2022 and we look forward to incorparating other interactive aspects to expand on this event. Committee for consideration of working with the applicant 1o devedop the

event as part of the Flood Recovery program in 2024 s this fits within the
flood recovery program under 'Events that focus on flood recovery for
{amilles, children and young people”
CE2023-  |Kerang Progress Association |Kerang New Year's Eve Party [An all inclusive family event, with provision of food and entertainment for all 10 enjoy. Our objective is to promote and foster the wellbeing of resident’s and visitors 1o our community. $5,000.00]  513,000.00|Kerang Recommended that this event be referred to the Gannawarra Resfierce | § 5,000.00
004 in the Park 2023 C for of funding as part of the Flood Recovery
program as this fits within the ficod recovery program under
'Discretionary events, programs and activities, eg. New Yoars
Eve/Christmas gatherings'.
CE2023-  |Cohuna and District Progress |New Years Eve Fireworks Cohuna and District Progress Association will be hosting a New Years Eve Fireworks and family night in Garden Park, This festival has been held for the last 23 years drawing a crowd of up to 1500 $5,00000(  $15,500.00|Cohuna Recommended that this event be referred to the Gannawaera Resiience | § 5,000.00
005 |Asseciation people each year. It enables bocals and visitors alike to get together in 3 family friendly environment (0 enjoy local entertainers, traders and an swesome fireworks display in a safe way at minimal cost Committee for consideration of funding as part of the Flood Recovery
to attendees. In the past the Progress Association has managed to fund this event through its own fundraising, but unfortunately our funds are now depleted due to the lack of fundraising events held program as this fits within the flood recovery program under
[during Cowd, 50 a grant would be greatly appreciated by our organisation. 'Discretionary events, programs and activities, eg. New Years
Eve/Christmas gatherings',
CE2023- Traders |School Holiday Spectacular  |3-5 day "School Holiday Spectacular”. $5,00000(  $8,400.00|Kerang Recommended that this event be referred to the Gannawarra Resfience $5,000.00)
007 Committee for consideration of funding as part of the Flood Recovery
idea is we have children's entenainment in the CBD or in a hall to brighten up the school holidays locally for many school children, plus encourage those out of town 10 come o Kerang. This would pragracn as this fits within the flood recovery program under "Creative
be of economic benefit as some families can’t afford (nor the stress) of @ holiday with all the other costs and in turn this would be great for wellbeing. 1t would also be of direct economic bemefit to (Gannawarra Street Activation’.
businesses in Kerang by increasing traffic to the CBD.
For those who work, family o friends could take their children to the event, rather than sitting at home on electronics, they have the opportunity to connect, interact, laugh and leam.
entertainment would be free, (If we could make them all free that would be amazing)...
Entertainment Options -
Get Your Groove on
|dinomaniacs
Jcircustab
\mm
themskmaks
rmm
CE2023- hern District G S Mausic Festival |Summerwave Music Festival has been running since 2021 and provides i and for the yof ra and beyond, with a focus on Youth and young people aged 12- $5,000,00| $68,000.00|Kerang Recommended that this event be refecred to the Gannawarra Reslience s 5,000.00
009 Health 25. This event focuses on being accessible, affordable safe and secure. Attendees will see high quality musicians as well as other activities, food vaas ete. Comenittee for consideration of funding as part of the Flood Recovery
program as this fits within the flood recovery program under ‘Strong
Youth, Strong Communities project’.
CE2023-  |Kerang Combined Churches  |Kerang C [The ¢ Carols ks an event that provid mmwmmmm»mtmmmmmauwwmmmm $5,000.00) $9,320.00{Kerang Recommended that this event be referred to the Gannawarra Resdlerce | § 3,000.00
010 Christmas Carols mhammuwa-mmwmmuwmmwmuammaw cal will have the C for of funding as part of the Flood Recovery
[ Christmas themed music and songs. Lions y chuby vited » food and anmamawumnmmw program as this fits within the flood recovery program under
and other entertainment s available. ‘Discretionaty events, programs and activities, eg. New Years
[Eve/Christemas gatherngs'.
For sound, light and tech as quoted.
CE2023-  [Cohuna Art/craft Gallery A litle piece of Italy International Classical guitarst with accompaniment, provides a low-cost concert in Cohuna Catholic Church in February 2024 (Date to be confirmed). $1,300.00| $3.530.00{Cohuna Recommended that this event be referred to the Gannawarra Reslience | § 1,300.00
011 Committee for consideration of funding as part of the Flood Recovery
program as this fits within the ficod recovery program under "Creative
Gannawarra Outreach Events'.
CE2023- Hal C ' 100 years of the [During 2024 we will celebeate 100 years of our Mall. This has been the venue for many events over the years including a few such as. Weddings, parties, funerals, Balls, dances, sporting events. The main $760.00 $1,000.00|teitchville  |Recommended that this event be roferred to the Gannawarra Resierce | § 760.00
013 L [reason for the bullding of the Hall was as a memorial to those who died in the World War 1. We will set up static displays and have highlights of events on the big screen. We are inviting the public to (Committee for consideration of working with the applicant to develop the
| donate iterms and to come and enjoy the memories of the past. It will be a time of celebration, event as part of the Flood Recovery program in 2024 as this fts within the
|Bocd recovery program under re-Connect with your Gannawarra
program’ with funding support available 1o activate public halls across
Gannawarra,
CE2023-  |Kerang Lakes Community Kerang Lakes Community [ This event will enable our Kerang Lakes community to connect and celebrate the end of the year together after several years of isclation through COVID and then the of another $2,465.00| $4,365.00 | Lakes District [Recommend for funding through the Community Grants Program up to S 1,365.00
017 Development Group Christmas Celebration flood event in our area. Since the Lake Charm school has become de-staffed we no longer have 3 school Christmas event bringing our community together and helping our community thrive. It is value of $1,100 and
IMEOMAnt to CoNNCt and develop Our Current COMMUNIY £roups 1o ensure the mental health and wellbeing and liveabilty of the Kerang Lakes area and invite the wider Gannawarra communities to Recommended that additional $1,365 for this event be referred 10 the
attend and enjoy what the Kerang Lakes has 10 offer. The event will run from mid afternoon to evening with kids activities inchading face painting, Cheistmas craft, jumping castle, lve music and 8BQ Gannawarra Resdience Committee for consideration of funding as part of
meal for the whole family and friends at the Lake Charm Hall, the Flood Recovery program as this fits within the flood recovery program
under ‘Discretionary events, programs and activities, eg New Years
Eve/Christmas gatherings'.

Total funding recommendation

$

31,425.00
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7.3 2023 COMMUNITY GRANTS PROGRAM - COMMUNITY SUPPORT GRANTS

Author: Katrina Thorne, Coordinator Community Partnerships
Authoriser: Paul Fernee, Director Community Wellbeing
Attachments: 1 2023 Community Grants program - Community Support

recommendations

RECOMMENDATION

1) That Council endorse the allocation of the 2023 Community Grants — Community Support
category, totalling $65,454.05;

2) That Council endorse the suggested allocation of $3,000 in funding support be referred to
the Community Resilience Committee for consideration of funding as part of the Flood
Recovery program;

3) That Council endorse the allocation of funds for Community Support funding for Cohuna
Lions Club;

4) That Council endorse the allocation of funds for Community Support funding for Kerang
Progress Association;

5) That Council endorse the remaining Community Support funds not previously endorsed
in Recommendations 3-4;

6) That Council endorse officers to undertake a review of the Community Grant guidelines
to determine funding criteria for the 2024 program.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
The 2023 Community Grants program saw 43 applications submitted totalling $173,900.68.

Of these applications 14 were for Community Events and 29 were for Community Support. A
summary of the submissions is detailed below:

Funding category Number of applications received Total Amount requested
Community Events 14 $53,325
Community Support 29 $120,575.68

An assessment process has been undertaken for both categories (Community Support and
Community Events), with independent assessments completed by a cross-departmental panel,
taking into consideration the responses to the essential criteria, evidence provided to support
applications, as well as history of previous funding received through the program.

From this, Council officers have developed the attached recommendations for funding that are
within Council’s budget for the program.
PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is to present Council with the recommendations to endorse the award
of funding for the 2023 Community Grants Program — Community Support category, within the
available budget.
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ATTACHMENTS

2023 Community Grants program — Community Support funding recommendations

DISCUSSION
The 2023 Community Grants program opened on 1 August 2023, and closed on 3 September.

The framework for Council’s 2023 Community Grants Program is outlined below:

Category Adopted Budget Total of applications received
Community Support and Events $80,000 $173,900.68

This year the funding recommendations include one submission that is recommended to be
referred to the Gannawarra Community Resilience Committee for consideration of funding as part
of the flood recovery program.

A funding recommendation breakdown is provided below:

Funding category Number of applications Amount
supported

Community Support funding | 19 $65,454.05

Flood Recovery Program 1 $3,000

The application that is recommended to be referred to the Gannawarra Community Resilience
Committee for consideration has been deemed to align with the Emergency Recovery Victoria
(ERV) Community Hubs funding grant guidelines, which support social recovery and resilience post
the October — December 2022 flood event in Gannawarra.

Each of the recommended applications demonstrated strong alignment to the essential criteria,
and had provided adequate supporting evidence for their budgets as part of the application
process.

Two applications were deemed ineligible in this round of funding under ‘recurrent operating or
maintenance costs for day-to-day operations of the organisation/group’.

RELEVANT LAW
Not applicable

RELATED COUNCIL DECISIONS
Not applicable

OPTIONS

Funding recommendations have been made to Council in line with the adopted budget available
to support the program. These recommendations have been made as a result of independent
assessments by a cross-departmental panel of Council officers, and it is recommended Council
endorse the allocation of funds as outlined within the attachment provided with this report.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

Funding provided through this program supports economic and social sustainability within small
communities.
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COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

The 2023 Community Grants program was advertised and promoted across a range of platforms
from mid-July. This included Council’s regular print advertisement in local newspapers
(Gannawarra News), online platforms (Facebook) and direct email marketing via our email
distribution database in Mailchimp.

Throughout the month of August while applications were open, regular online promotion was
undertaken.
INNOVATION AND CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT

In line with section 9 of the Local Government Act 2020, to ensure that innovation and continuous
improvement is pursued, officers will undertake a review of the current Community Grant
guidelines and supporting documentation to ensure the program continues to meet the needs of
the community and that the process is relevant and reflects current strategic alignment with
Council’s long term community vision.

COLLABORATION
Not applicable

FINANCIAL VIABILITY

The 2023 Community Grants program budget allocation is included in Council’s 2023/2024
Adopted Budget.

REGIONAL, STATE AND NATIONAL PLANS AND POLICIES
Not applicable

COUNCIL PLANS AND POLICIES

Community Grant applicants were required to identify how their projects aligned with the 2021 —
2025 Council Plan as one of the essential criteria. Applicants were also encouraged to identify
linkages to other key Council strategic documents.

TRANSPARENCY OF COUNCIL DECISIONS

This report will be considered in an open Council meeting.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The officer preparing this report declares that they have no conflict of interest in regards to this
matter.
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Gannawarra Shire Council Community Support Grant - August 2023

Green = Community Events funding
Blue = Flood Recovery funding

Funding recommendations
Total Project
App 1D Appli Project Title |Brief Project Description Total requested Cost Location Funding Recommendation Amount recommended
€52023-001 Cohuna Pistol Club  |Cohuna Pistol Club Redevelopment Stage 2{The project is Stage 2 of a multi stage plan to secure and reinvig the d heti and provide better facilities to the $5,000.00 $7,500.00{Cohuna Rex ded for funding s 5,000.00
Inc. Replace Storage/Club room members of the club and to our neighbors who reside within our area. The preliminary works have also allowed the club to build upon refationships
within ourselves to identify the realistic requirements of the clubs facilities going forward.
The storage/club shed will also serve as a physical sign to our other neighbours that the club is keen to participate as 3 responsibl y
member by maintaining assets to an aesthetic level suitable to the local environs. The works will engage appropriately skilled bers from within
the club, and also local trades where the skills do not exist in the bership or are required by rel laws to be conducted by a registered
d son.
C$2023-002 KERANG No One Should Go Hungry KNH's Food Assistance Program is a vital service, our 2022 data shows over $260,000 in food relief provided to the community. $5,000.00! $5,000.00|Kerang Recommended for funding $ 3,000.00
NEIGHBOURHOOD Many ity bers face ongoing chall due to the recent flood event and continual rise in inflation cost.
HOUSE The No One Should go Hungry Project will provide access to healthy, home cooked meals. The project aims to decrease food insecurity and
encourage community involvement, which gives the opportunity to increase local organisations and ity groups und ding of the data
and rational behind food insecurity in our community.
The Kerang Sports and Entertainment Complex are providing a commercial kitchen to use once a month for several hours during the day, at no cost.
We have commenced a 3-month pilot program of preparing and cooking approx. S0 meals that we can freeze, we want to be able to offer cooked
meals for another year if we can obtain funding.
C52023-003 |xerang Cemetery Kerang Cemetery Trust Indigeneous Area | The cemetery trust would like to continue to develop our new area deds d to recognising indi heritage, by purchasing two table settings $5,000.00 $6,936.00|Kerang Rec ded for funding $ 5,000.00
Trust Seating to compliment our new shade shelter in this area. The 1st will be placed directly under this shelter and the 2nd will be placed opposite this area
near our new niche wall, but will allow the community to sit and reflect, looking back over this area. This area is of great importance to us, not only
for beautification, but to provide an environment that will allow the community to have nice space to meet and reflect, whilst visiting the gravesites
of their loved ones.
C52023-004 Kerang Girl Guides  |Kerang Girl Guides Watering Upgrade The Kerang Girl Guides Support Group would like to update our current irrigation system by replacing existing sprinklers and include the addition of $1,911.50, $2,102.65|Kerang Recommended for funding S 1,911.50
Support Group an automated controller.
We aim to reduce water usage by having efficient piping systems and sprinklers that are leak-free and well insulated to provide a network that is
reliable and help to limit water waste. Even though our savings may only be small to some, it will help to keep the environment healthy and help to
reduce water and wastewater treatment costs and the amount of energy used to treat and pump water.
The current watering system can at times run for longer than needed, due to volunteers being unable to return at the appropriate time to shut it off.
An automated system will allow for water savings to be made consistently and to also complete the watering at a more opportune time |.e, in the
cool of the night rather than in the hot daylight hours.
CS2023-006 U3A Kerang and U3A Kerang and District Inc new laptop Our club has 84 members mostly older single people, We provide stimulating activities and fun for our members with challenges and learning as $1,500.00! $2,000.00|Kerang Recommended for funding $ 1,500.00
District Inc comp to enable club organisati well as socializing. C icating with our bers is important and technology provides us with a medium to do so most efficiently. Our laptop is
now about 10 years old and our secretarial services would be much enhanced with a new faster model. The secretary must write and send monthly
activity progr o bers, to Neighbourhood House for publication in Kerang Happenings, attend online Regional ings, share {!
and some joint activities with other regional clubs, provide links for ber eds on Zoom eg Cryptic Crosswords, stay informed of
government guidelines for U3A Vic and U3A A ia and di: i corresp and reports to the Committee Members and General
Members where appropriate and apply for submissions. The secretary has to spend many hours each week at this computer and inefficient
|technology makes this very arduous. It is also very off putting when trying to find people to take on such tasks, Without a secretary the club will fold
like some other clubs already have done. We serve the district with some members from Koondrook as well as Murrabit/Myall.
C52023-007 Leitchville & District |Leitchwille Historical Plaque Project Completion of the bly and llation of ining historical plaques to various site around the township of Leitchville, $5,000.00 $7,348.00 |Leitchville Recommended for funding $ 5,000.00
Progress Association
INC
C$2023-008 GOLDEN RIVERS GOLDEN RIVERS ARTISTS WATER COLOUR |Engage two world class tutors to facilitate two workshops in water colour and acrylic painting. Assist with venue hire for bi-monthly art group $4,000.00 $4,569.00|Kerang Rec d that the G ] $ 3,000.00
ARTISTS INC & ACRYLIC PAINTING WORKSHOPS painting sessions. C ity Resilience C: ittee funds
$3,000 towards the cost of the tutor to
run the arts workshops (and the
applicant signs a grant agreement for
the Flood Recovery program)
52023011 Northern District Band Hall, complete floor sanding and Our red gum dance floor has been in place for some 30 years. it has been maintained by using a non-stick floor wax, which is manufactured any $5,000.00/ $7,500.00|Kerang Recommended for funding $ 5,000.00
Dance Assoclation  |resurface of Dance floor area. more. We have had quite a few difficulties in recent times endeavouring to maintain the floor; recently, the surfaces became quite slippery,
Inc therefore a concern to those who dance upon the floor. After consuiting floor polish experts, a decision has been taken to remove the existing wax
surface and replace it with a new quality oil wax that meets the latest dards and is idered op I for various dance activities.
CS2023-012 Kerang Probus Club  |Purchase of defibrillator for Kerang Senior |Purchase of Defibrillator for use of the Kerang Community. It is felt that is a necessity to have a defibrillator in this proximity available to all by $2,395.00, $2,395.00|Kerang Rec ded for funding $ 2,395,00
Inc Citizens Rooms, Boundary Street, Kerang. |of the community in the event of a medical episode.
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€S2023-013 KERANG SOCCER Kerang Soccer Club Junior Program Purchase of soccer equipment will allow our coaches to offer an immersive and ever expanding training program to both current and new junior $3,050.00; $3,050.00|Kerang Recommended for funding $ 3,050.00
CLUBINC, participants of our newly established Soccer club. With the fong term aim of bringing enough juniors together to have a Kerang team represented in
the local (Swan Hill/Bendigo) soccer league,
€52023-016 Cohuna-Leitchwille  |[Cohuna-Leitchville RSL Sub-Branch - Audio |Our project aims to enhance the quality of audio/speaker equipment used in RSL (Returned and Services League) ceremonies. By upgrading and $2,499.00 $2,499.00{Cohuna Rec ded for funding $ 2,499.00
hRStSub-Onnd‘ Equipment dernizing the audio we seek to significantly improve the overall exp for dees during i ing that speech
and trib are heard clearly and with utmost respect. This upgrade will also ibute to preserving the legacy and significance
of these ceremonies by ensuring that the stories and i shared by and speakers are itted ly to the auds By
fostering a more immersive and engaging atmosphere, we aim to honor the sacrifices made by veterans and service bers while also p ing
a deeper understanding and connection within the community. This project aligns with our commitment to honoring our nation's history and those
who have served, while fostering unity and shared respect among all attendees.
CS2023-018 Kerang Show and Harley Evo Fest! - Live entertainment Harley Davidson national sales account for 80% of all new motorcycle sales in Australia. The Harley Evo Fest is a world first event that will showcase $5,000.00f $25,200.00|Kerang Recommended for funding $ 4,000.00
Shine Committee application the f; Harley Davidson Evol engine. The "Evo’ engine appeared in all Harleys manufactured from 1983 till 1999. The engine continued to
be produced in all hariey Davidson Sportster motorcycles from 1983 until 2022,  Organisers of this event seek to take advantage of the success of
this model Harley Davidson by providing an annual event celebrating the motorcycles and their owners. The committees goal is to grow a major
annual event that attracts 1000 people from outside the shire paying $100.00 per head, A feature of the event will be live music at the venue of
Saturday evening and Sunday . This grant application is for $5000.00 to assist in the cost of providing that entert In 2022 the event
attracted people from Toowoomba, Newcastle, Adelaide, Melbourne Gippsiand and Bendigo. Unfortunately the event had to be cancelled due to
rain. The committee has spent $20,000 to create an all weather parking area and path linking all hardstands and display areas at Alexandra Park to
ensure the event will never have to be cancelled again. The Harley Evo Fest builds on the success of the Kerang Show and Shine. By linking the
show and show and Harley Evo Fest we can create a full weekend of activities aimed at attracting visitors to the region. All funds raised go to
community events and charities. The date for 2024 has not been set yet.
C52023-025 |Nondies Cohuna |Nondies Cohuna Cricket Club - Covers We are looking to purchase new covers for the club to ease the burden on our volunteers and further enhance the reputation of our facilities. As $4,765.00 $5,241.00{Cohuna Rec ded for funding s 4,765.00
Cricket Club Upgrade part of the Goulburn Murray Cricket Association, it is a requirement to cover all turf wickets prior to any games that take place, As a club which as 8
teams competing each week it can take 6-7 people up over 2 hours to install and remove covers each week. It is also highly labour intensive. But
having new covers it will allow 1 person to install in under 15 minutes. On top of easing the burden, it further makes us an attractive option due to
excellent facilities for travelling clubs and local players.
C52023-026 Lake Meran Public  [Lake Meran Shindig Two main objectives: Firstly to promote and raise funds for the installation of a tourist attraction in the form of a giant turtle sculpture to help $5,000.00! $6,750.00 | Lakes District Recommendeded for funding s 3,000.00
Purposes Reserve further the lake's future and secondly to provide an opportunity for social interaction and ongoing healing from recent events such as floods and the
C i pandemic.
52023029 Rotary Club of Anti Viol P jon C g To promote anti Violence mainly in the home and to promote the building of “Safe Housing Facilities” within the Shire and beyond in neighbouring $2,500.00 $2,874.00|Kerang Rec ded for funding. s 500,00
Kerang Inc districts. For members of Rotary and others to wear the "Pr jonal Jackets”, to Bumper Stickers, P | Flyers, display a Banner
outside Community Events organised by this Club and others if deemed suitable.
CS2023-031 Kerang Progress Kerang Local Arts Project The Kerang Arts Project is a creative project, aimed at highlighting the diversity of local artists’ within the Kerang community. The aim is to purchase $5,000.00! $5,000.00|Kerang Recommended for funding $ 4,545.00
“ i3 ti artwork from various local artists', depicting historical buildings & landmarks, flora and fauna. The artworks will then be scanned onto aluminium,
Incorporated and then mounted onto a contemporary, brand aligned structure. A plague will be incorporated to include details about the artist and the
significance of said artwork.
CS2023-033 Quamb k ( b k Hall Electrical Safety Upgrade |After an electrical fallure during a recent event it has been identified by a licenced electrician that the residual current devices in the hall sub circuits $3,046.55 $3,546.55|Quambatook Rec ded for funding $ 3,046.55
C ity are not comphant and require upgrades to ensure user safety. Electrical failure resulted in the main hall lights being burnt out and no longer work so
Develk Assoc. these also require replacing.
52023034 Kerang Fire Brigade |Kerang Fire Station Security Cameras The Project will involve the purchase and installation of Security Cameras throughout the Kerang Fire Station. This project will deter potential $4,282.81 $4,282.81|Kerang Recommended for funding S 2,242.00
unauthorised entry and potential theft from the station therefore ensuring that the Kerang Fire Brigade and equip: are available to conti to
support the community at a moment's notice.
C52023-035 |Murrabit Playgroup [Murrabit Family Hub plumbing project Imp an existing ity owned bullding (A bit Family Hub - formally Murrabit Playgroup Centre) by plumbing the building to the town $5,000.00 $5,182.00(M bit & Rec ded for funding $ 5,000,00
Inc stor system to p flooding and to create a safe and functional space for young families to gather, connect and support each other. District
52023037 Kerang Amateur Kerang A Basketball A iation As an iation we are upgrading or scoring facilities. Wanting to upgrade our toilets/bath for both male/female. We are entering $5,000.00! $5,000.00|Kerang Recommended for funding $ 4,000.00
ketbal tournaments for our representative basketball teams in spring.
Association
Community Support $ 65,454.05
Flood recovery funding $ 3,000.00
B 68,454.05
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Author: Scott Bourne, Communications Coordinator
Authoriser: Paul Fernee, Director Community Wellbeing
Attachments: 1 Gannawarra Shire Council Annual Report
RECOMMENDATION

That Council

1. Receives the Gannawarra Shire Council Annual Report 2023.

2.  Ensures a copy of the Gannawarra Shire Council Annual Report 2023 is available to view on
Council’s website.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Gannawarra Shire Council Annual Report 2023, covering the period from 1 July 2022 to 30
June 2023, has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act
2020 (the Act). In accordance with section 98 of the Act, the Annual Report contains a report on
the operations of Council, the audited Financial Statements and audited Performance Statement.
PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is to receive the Gannawarra Shire Council Annual Report 2023.

ATTACHMENTS

Gannawarra Shire Council Annual Report 2023

DISCUSSION

Council is required under sections 98 and 99 of the Local Government Act 2020 (the Act) to
prepare an Annual Report. Section 100 of the Act highlights the requirement to present the
Annual report at a Council Meeting open to the public by 31 October on any year without a
general election.

Copies of the Gannawarra Shire Council Annual Report 2023 are currently being printed and, once
received, will be available for viewing at Council’s Customer Service Centres in Kerang and Cohuna.
A digital version of the report will be available on Council’s website within 24 hours of this
meeting.

RELEVANT LAW

The Gannawarra Shire Council Annual Report 2023 was prepared as per the Local Government Act
2020.

RELATED COUNCIL DECISIONS

Not applicable.

OPTIONS

In order to comply with the requirements of the Act, Council must consider the Gannawarra Shire
Council Annual Report 2023 at the October meeting of the Council.
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SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

There are no sustainability implications through receiving the Gannawarra Shire Council Annual
Report 2023.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

Not applicable. The Gannawarra Shire Council Annual Report 2023 is a report of Council’s
operations for the 2022/23 financial year.

INNOVATION AND CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT

Officers have revised the presentation of the Annual Report to further improve transparency and
flow of information for readers, including rearranging certain sections and enhancing through
visual appeal in alignment with the Act.

COLLABORATION
Not applicable.

FINANCIAL VIABILITY
Not applicable.

REGIONAL, STATE AND NATIONAL PLANS AND POLICIES
Not applicable.

COUNCIL PLANS AND POLICIES
Not applicable.

TRANSPARENCY OF COUNCIL DECISIONS
Not applicable.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The officer preparing this report declares that they have no conflict of interest in regards to this
matter.
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WELCOME TO GANNAWARRA SHIRE COUNCIL’S 2023 ANNUAL REPORT

Gannawarra Shire Council’s 2023 Annual Report provides our community with comprehensive and transparent
information on Council’s operational, financial, environmental and social performance during the 2022/23 year.

All councils are required by the Local Government Act 2020 (the Act) to prepare an Annual Report each financial year
which is compliant with the Local Government Performance Reporting Framework (LGPRF)

This Annual Report documents Council’s highlights, our achievements and our response to emerging challenges

NEED AN EXTRA COPY?
Additional copies of the Annual Report can be obtained by:

 Visiting our website www.gsc.vic.gov.au
» Calling us on (03) 5450 9333
 Visiting one of our Customer Service Centres
(See Contact Council section for locations)
¢ Emailing council@gsc.vic.gov.au
¢ Writing to Gannawarra Shire Council at PO Box 287, Kerang 3579

FEEDBACK
We welcome feedback regarding the production of our Annual Report

Feedback provides us with the opportunity to continuously improve our methods for communicating the information
contained within this report. If you would like to provide feedback, please contact us via the details provided in the
Contact Council section of this report.

INTRODUCTION
About the Gannawarra
Our Community Vision

YEAR IN REVIEW

Mayor’s Message

CEQ’s Message

2022/23 Highlights

Services Snapshot 2022/23
Finance Message

Major Capital Works
October-December 2022 Floods
Community Engagement
Community Satisfaction

Council Contributions and Donations
Major Grants Received

Award Recognition 2022/23
Council-Supported Events 2022/23

OUR COUNCIL
Our Councillors
Meetings of Council

29
32
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Councillor Committee Membership 32
Councillor Allowances and Expenses 33
OUR PEOPLE

Organisational Structure 36
Executive Leadership Team 37
Our Workplace 39
Health and Safety 42
OUR PERFORMANCE

Planning and Accountability Framework 44
Growing Gannawarra 2021-2025 Council Plon

Year 2 Action Plan Outcomes 45
Local Government Performance

Reporting Framework 52
Governance and Management Checklist 66
Audit and Risk Management 68
Statutory Information 69
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 71
PERFORMANCE STATEMENTS 134
GLOSSARY 150
ABBREVIATIONS AND ACRONYMS 151

COVER: The Gannawarra Shire Children’s Centre supports early childhood development in the Gannawarra Shire.

ABOVE: Gunbower Creek and Garden Park at Cohuna.
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bout the (Garwamarowy

OUR PEOPLE

Our primary centres are Kerang and Cohuna. Smaller
outlying communities include Koondrook, Leitchville,
Quambatook, Murrabit, Lake Charm, Lalbert, Macorna
and Mystic Park. Our small communities each have
their own unique identity.

(wo communities wre

GANNAWARRA SHIRE
VICTORIA

Vibrant

Located in northwestern Victoria, the Gannawarra
boasts significant natural assets such as Gunbower
National Park, the Murray River, Gunbower Creek and Innovative
Kerang Lakes, as well as a diverse regional economy.

Bordered by Swan Hill to the north, Buloke to the west,
Loddon and Campaspe to the south and the Murray
River to the east, the Gannawarra contains two central
towns — Kerang and Cohuna - and numerous smaller

® ®
: . @ Q
settlements, including Koondrook, Quambatook,
Leitchville, Lalbert, Lake Charm, Macorna, Murrabit
and Mystic Park (Kangaroo Lake).
Serviced by the Loddon Valley and Murray Valley Population 49 77o 50 27’
highways, the Gannawarra is 1.25 hours by car from o .

Bendigo, 40 minutes by car from Swan Hill and 3 hours’ '0,683 Male Female

drive from Melbourne. Regular passenger rail services S0 Certli Saocted b the
also exist from Kerang to Swan Hill and Bendigo, with Australian Bureau of Statistics)
connections to Melbourne.

Thanks to the Torrumbarry Irrigation System and its
proximity to the eastern fringe of the Mallee cropping @T

region, the Gannawarra enjoys a diverse economy

with representation across all sectors. This includes

dairy, cropping, livestock, retail trade, manufacturing 5' 3’736 M

and goyernment services such as healthcare and Median age Area ‘ Gannawarra Shire Council
education. The Gannawarra also boasts emerging acknowledges the Barapa

opportunities in areas such as nature based tourism SR Barapa, Yorta Yorta and Wamba

and renewable energy. / Wamba people as the traditional

Age 20-64 Years 65+ Years owners of the land now known

The Gannawarra is renowned for its strong community 04 Years  5-14 Years 15-19 Years 5 Bt

pride, thanks to our communities’ efforts to motivate
and inspire each other to make the region a great place
to live, visit and do business.

We pay our respects to Elders
past, present and emerging and
acknowledge their rich culture
and connection to Country.

ANNUAL REPORT 5
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VISION STATEMENT

Our community will be proud, connected and
inclusive as we actively seek opportunities that
enhance lifestyle and liveability.

We will recognise and appreciate the value of
the natural environment and how it connects
our communities.

We will strive to be resilient to a changing
environment through innovation and collaboration.

The Gannawarra will grow through encouraging
economic diversity, creating unique tourism
destinations, and embracing our cultural and
natural assets.

KEY OBJECTIVES

Lineabiliy  Growd Sustainabilioy

STRATEGY STATEMENT

The Gannawarra will be renowned as an
Australian destination and home of choice
for its liveability and unique opportunities in
innovative agriculture, renewable energy and
nature-based tourism.

We focus on inclusive services and assets that
enhance the health and wellbeing, cultural
heritage, connectivity and productivity of our
communities.

Nadues

°

ABOVE LEFT: Mayor Charlie Gillingham (right) watched on os
local Eider, Uncle Lioyd Murray raised the Aboriginal flog during
Notional Reconciliotion Week celebrations held in Moy 2023.
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wjws Messafe

Welcome to Gannawarra Shire Council’s
2023 Annual Report, which highlights
Council’s achievements during the 2022/23
financial year.

This Annual Report assesses Council’s
performance against the three goals
outlined in the Growing Gannawarra - 2021-
2025 Council Plan:

Uieabiey vk | Sustanabiicy

Council’s role in achieving these
goals involves:

* Acting as a representative government by
taking into account the diverse needs of the
local community in decision making;

Providing leadership by establishing
strategic objectives and monitoring their
achievement;

Maintaining the viability of Council by
ensuring that resources are managed in a
responsible and accountable manner;

Advocating the interests of the local
community to other

communities and

governments;

Acting as a responsible
partner in government by
taking into account the needs
of other communities; and

Fostering community
cohesion and
encouraging active
participation in

civic life.

YEAR IN REVIEW

HIGHLIGHTS

Partnerships with local communities and other

levels of government are pivotal to the success of
any local council. This was evident for Gannawarra
Shire in 2022/23, especially as we continued to work
on achieving strategic goals listed in the Growing
Gannawarra — 2021-2025 Council Plan and responded
to our second major flood this century.

SUPPORTING OUR
FLOOD-AFFECTED COMMUNITIES

In October 2022 the Gannawarra started to experience
what would be our second major flood event in 11
years. By the time standing water had been pumped
out of low-lying areas around Benjeroop and Murrabit
West in January 2023, 44 per cent of the Gannawarra
Shire had been inundated.

During the three-month response period Council
worked with the community and emergency services
to protect properties and key infrastructure.
Thankfully efforts undertaken following the 2011
floods ensured we were better prepared this time
around, however the timing of the floods meant
extended flows along the Avoca, Loddon and Murray
rivers, as well as Pyramid and Wandella creeks,
inundated the municipality for a longer period
compared to 11 years earlier.

Despite these efforts, more than 1,000 kilometres of
our road network was damaged by floodwaters, with
work to repair these roads to a pre-flood standard
forecast to cost Council up to $50 million. Council
continues to advocate to the State and Federal
governments to cover these costs, ensuring our flood-
impacted communities are not financially impacted via
additional strain on Council finances.

Social recovery from any emergency is just as important
as repairing damaged infrastructure, With this being the
case, Council has worked with emergency services, the
Gannawarra Community Flood Recovery Committee,
the Gannawarra Municipal Recovery Committees and
three sub-committees focusing on themes associated
with wellbeing and social recovery; built and natural
environment; and agriculture and economic recovery

to develop the Gannawarra Municipal Flood Recovery
Plan. This document features 48 priority actions

across 11 recovery target areas that Council and other
agencies will work on to guide recovery efforts during
2023/24 and beyond.

YEAR IN REVIEW

IMPLEMENTING KEY STRATEGIES
AND MAJOR PROJECTS

Council continued to achieve strategic outcomes listed
in the Growing Gannawarra = 2021-2025 Council Plan.
Adopted in 2021/22, this high-level strategic document
reflects the needs of our community and is helping the
Gannawarra realise its full potential.

One of the strategic outcomes identified in the
document is the need for a regional wellbeing centre
in the Gannawarra — which is one step closer following
the adoption of the Gannawarra Aquatic Strategy.
Councillors worked with residents and Council staff
during 2022/23 to develop the final version of this
document, which will help shape the future of aquatic
services in the Gannawarra by focusing on modern and
contemporary uses rather than focusing on a model of
service that was established when outdoor swimming
pools were built throughout the Gannawarra more
than 50 years ago.

Communities across the Gannawarra also benefited
from the completion of major capital works projects,
made possible thanks to partnerships with the State
and Federal governments. These works included the
Murrabit Stormwater Project, the Kerang All Abilities
Play Space and the region’s first Changing Places
facility, which has created facilities that will enable
people of all abilities to explore the Gannawarra easier
than they were previously able to.

Work continues to develop other significant capital
works projects, including Stages 3 and 4 of the

Kerang CBD Redevelopment, the Sustainable Water
for Quambatook project and The Glasshouse @ The

ANNUAL REPORT 7
GANNAWARRA SHIRE COUNCIL

Gannawarra. Once completed, these projects will
attract visitors to the Gannawarra and build on previous
efforts to make our area a great place to live and work.

A NEW TEAM

These achievements listed in this report and throughout
the 2023 Annual Report would not be possible without
the leadership of the two Chief Executive Officers that
oversaw Council’s operations during 2022/23.

Tom O’Reilly, who was CEO from December 2017 to
December 2022 and our Director Corporate Services prior
to his appointment as CEO, was instrumental in overseeing
the transformation of many of the Gannawarra’s towns,
with his leadership pivotal in securing State and Federal
government funding for major projects.

Our current CEO, Geoff Rollinson — who has been with
Gannawarra Shire Council since the municipality's
formation in 1995 — is working to build on Tom’s legacy,
with his leadership pivotal as we recover from the
October-December 2022 floods.

My fellow Councillors and | will continue to advance
the Gannawarra, which is achieved by representing
all our communities. We look forward to continuing
this proactive rapport during 2023/24 as we work to
achieve the goals listed in the Growing Gannawarra —
2021-2025 Council Plan.

Cr Charlie Gillingham
MAYOR

ABOVE: Cr Jane Ogden (left), Cr Keith Link, Mayor Charlie
Gillingham, Cr Ross Stanton, Cr Garner Smith and Cr Travis
Collier officially opened the Cohuna Waterfront Development
in February 2023.
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CE(s Messade

On behalf of Gannawarra Shire Council, it is
a great pleasure to present Council’s Annual
Report for 2022/23.

1 am proud of this organisation and its
achievements in instilling hope and
confidence throughout the Gannawarra.

| am also proud to be part of the
Gannawarra Shire community - one that
continues to excel and achieve the
objectives outlined in the Growing
Gannawarra - 2021-2025 Council Plan.

As Chief Executive Officer, | am
responsible for:

* Establishing and maintaining an
appropriate organisational structure
for Council;

* Ensuring that the decisions of Council are
implemented without undue delay;

» The day to day management of the
Council’s operations in accordance with
the Growing Gannawarra - 2021-2025
Council Plan;

» Developing, adopting and disseminating a
Code of Conduct for Council staff; and

* Providing timely advice to Council.

YEAR IN REVIEW

HIGHLIGHTS

The previous 12 months have provided numerous
challenges for Council and its staff, however we
continue to strive to support our communities and
make the Gannawarra a great place to live and work.

OUR SECOND MAJOR FLOOD
IN 11 YEARS

For many residents, 2022/23 will be remembered
for the Gannawarra’s second major flood in 11 years,
generated after more than three months’ worth of
rainfall fell across our catchments in the space of
three weeks.

The experience gained during the January 2011 floods
proved to be invaluable for Council as we united with
emergency services and communities to protect
properties and limit the inundation of the Avoca,
Loddon and Murray rivers, as well as Pyramid and
Wandella creeks. Despite these efforts, 44 per cent of
the Gannawarra’s land mass was inundated, with 44
residences impacted and more than 1,000 kilometres
of Council-managed roads damaged.

Council has played a key role in helping our
communities recover from these floods. Staff have
worked with fellow Municipal Flood Recovery
Committee members and the Gannawarra Community
Flood Recovery Committee to identify tasks to assist
with recovery efforts, whilst we continue to advocate
to our State and Federal counterparts to support
efforts to repair damaged infrastructure and protect
the Gannawarra from future events.

Our flood recovery efforts will continue throughout
2023/24, and we are committed to not leaving anyone
behind as we work to return our communities to what
they were like before the floods.

LOOKING FORWARD TO
A BRIGHT FUTURE

Council is committed to securing the future of the
Gannawarra Shire, and continues to work to make
the municipality an attractive place to live, work and
invest,

As part of the ‘ART of the Gannawarra’ strategy

~ which aims to encourage diversification to our
Agriculture sector, attract investment in Renewable
energy projects, and promote our nature-based
Tourism attractions — Council signed a Memorandum

YEAR IN REVIEW

of Understanding with VHM Limited, which is
progressing with its rare minerals project at Goschen.
This exciting project will create hundreds of jobs and
attract new residents to the Gannawarra.

Council also spent 2022/23 working with the
Australian Energy Market Operator (AEMO) regarding
VNI West, which will result in connecting the Victorian
and New South Wales electricity networks via

major transmission lines that will pass through the
Gannawarra. This project needs to be completed

by the time electricity providers phase out brown
coal electricity production, which is scheduled for
2035. Council is committed to ensuring this project
has sufficient electricity capacity to meet future
investment demand, as well as advocate for adequate
compensation options for landowners whose land will
be located under the transmission lines.

Meanwhile, Council continues to advocate for
additional long day care options for families, especially
those living in Cohuna and district. The Exploring Care
and Education in Cohuna Final Report, presented to
Council in February 2023, recommends the creation of
an Early Learning Centre at the Cohuna Consolidated
School that will provide child care places and support
the rollout of the State Government’s Pre-Prep
program. Council is committed to seeing this project
occur, and is working with the State Government
regarding funding opportunities.

Unfortunately one program that Council has
developed strong ties with that will not go forward in

ANNUAL REPORT 9
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2023/24 is our Aged and Disability Services, which we
will be transitioning out of. It was a difficult decision
made by Council to exit these services, especially given
our 35-year-association with this sector and being the
only small rural Council in Victoria to be an accredited
National Disability Insurance Scheme (NDIS) provider.

Once Council was aware that the implementation

of recommendations from the Aged Care Royal
Commission would impact our ability to provide these
services, Council worked with the State and Federal
governments to seek a new provider.

Council is committed to working with all clients,
volunteers and affected staff to ensure a smooth
transition occurs during 2023/24.

A FLEXIBLE TEAM

Council’s performance during 2022/23 would not
have been possible without the professionalism

and flexibility displayed by all staff. Despite facing
challenges associated with turnover and the October-
December 2022 floods, our team was dedicated to
serving our community at a time when it was needed.

Geoff Rollinson
Chief Executive Officer

ABOVE: Council Chief Executive Officer, Geoff Rollinson (third
from left) with Cr Garner Smith, Mayor Charlie Gillinghom,
Cr Jane Ogden, Cr Travis Collier and Cr Kelvin Burt following
the CEO appointment announcement in December 2022.
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2022/23 Wiffhtifghes

AUGUST

YEAR IN REVIEW

SEPTEMBER

YEAR IN REVIEW

JANUARY

FEBRUARY

ANNUAL REPORT 11
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* The Listies’ Rolling On The Floor
Laughing show held at the Cohuna
Memorial Hall

» Cohuna Recreation Reserve
Masterplan adopted

* Final two stages of the Murrabit
Stormwater Project completed

* Council agreed to become a signatory
to Climate Emergency Australia's
joint statement - Australian Councils
call for stronger energy performance
standards for new homes to cut cost
of living and improve health and
wellbeing

OCTOBER

* The Gannawarra experienced its
largest floods since 2011, with
Council playing a key role in assisting
emergency services providers and
providing community assistance

* Twenty events, projects and initiatives
benefited from Council’s 2022
Community Grants Program

« Council’s advocacy efforts promoting
the benefits of constructing
KerangLink were highly commended
at the 2022 National Awards for Local
Government

* Kerang Changing Places facility - the
first of its kind for the region
opened to the public

* Council’s NDIS service announced
as a finalist in the 2022 Premier’s
Sustainability Awards

» Fifteen Council initiatives were
finalists in the publicly voted
2022 National Awards for Local
Government

» Kerang All Abilities Play Space opened
to the public

* Mama Kin Spender - featuring
ARIA-nominated performer, Danielle
Caruana and producer Dingo Spender
— brought their Sound of Your Town
tour to the Kerang Memorial Hall

NOVEMBER

| '

.Z."?‘
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* Gannawarra Goes Orange campaign
held, which encourages residents to
call out all forms of family violence

» Council continued to play a key role in
assisting emergency services providers
and providing community assistance
during its largest floods since 2011

o Cr Charlie Gillingham was elected
Mavyor for a third term, with Cr lane
Ogden elected Deputy Mayor for a
second term

» Council announced it would fly the
Rainbow Flag on the International
Day against Homophobia, Biphobia,
Intersex discrimination and
Transphobia (IDAHOBIT) in May 2023

* The Alphabet of Awesome Science
held at Kerang Memorial Hall

« Digital e-resource, hoopla joined
Gannawarra Library Service’s
expanding hard copy and digital
catalogue

» Council partnered with Solar
Recovery Corporation to provide
solar panel recycling services at its
transfer stations

* Walking and Cycling Strategy
adopted, which will assist Council
with the ongoing development and
management of walking and cycling
tracks and trails throughout the
municipality

» Geoff Rollinson appointed Council
Chief Executive Officer, replacing Tom
O'Reilly after Mr O'Reilly worked as
Director Corporate Services and CEO
for 6 years

* Council continued to support the
community as flood response efforts
transitioned to recovery and support.
This included securing a flood debris
skip bin service for rural residents
whose primary place of residence was
inundated or impacted by the floods

» Kerang Fire Brigade Captain, Ramon
Steel was named Gannawarra Shire
Council’s 2023 Citizen of the Year,
with local musician, Deaken Fawcett
the 2023 Young Citizen of the Year

» Council’s response to the 2022
floods transitioned to the recovery
phase. Efforts included arranging for
volunteer natural disaster recovery
organisation, BlazeAid to be based
in Kerang, removing sandbags from
private properties at Koondrook and
forming the Gannawarra Municipal
Recovery Committee

« Final designs for the Kerang CBD
Redevelopment ~ Stage 3 released

» Kerang and District Family History
Group's exhibition, Squatters and
the Kerang Big Stations, opened at
Kerang’s Sir John Gorton Library

» First stage of engagement for
Connecting Gannawarra community
planning project completed

* Inaugural Gannawarra Library Service
Story Walks sessions held at Cohuna
and Kerang

« Final concept designs for the
Glasshouse @ The Gannawarra
project released

* Gannowarra Aquatic Strategy adopted

* Gannawarra Shire announced as one
of the first municipalities to roll out
the State Government’s Pre-Prep
early childhood education program

= $3.4 million Cohuna Waterfront
Development officially opened

« Kerang All Abilities Play Space and
Changing Places facility officially
opened

» Kerang CBD Redevelopment — Stage 3
works begin

* Rainbow Flag flown at Cohuna and
Kerang as part of the International
Day against Homophobia, Biphobia,
Intersex discrimination and
Transphobia (IDAHOBIT)

* Reconciliation Week walk held
through Kerang’s streets

* Roommates: The Musical held at
Lake Charm Hall

* Connecting Gannawarra community
planning project began

 Kerang CBD Redevelopment ~ Stage 4
concept design released

* Climate Change Adaptation and
Mitigation Strategy adopted

* Council welcomed a proposed
realignment of VNI West, which
would involve constructing
new high-capacity electricity
transmission lines passing through
the Gannawarra

* 2023/24 Budget adopted

* Council produced a submission into
the Victorian Parliamentary Inquiry
into the 2022 Flood Event

* 2022 Annual Report received a Silver
Award at the 2023 Australasian
Reporting Awards
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YEAR IN REVIEW

Cowvices SnapPshor 2022/23

CHILDREN'S
SERVICES

* 2,480 hours of Long Day Care a week
1,515 hours of 4-year-old kindergarten a week
* 1,335 hours of 3-year-old kindergarten a week
* 699 hours of Family Day Care a week

COMMUNITY
CARE

* 1,015 clients serviced in home
* 12,788 hours of domestic care
* 21,621 hours of personal care
* 17,684 hours of respite care
® 21,009 Meals on Wheels delivered
* 3,597 social meals provided
* 2,638 hours of property maintenance provided

* 3,612 hours of planned activity group events
conducted
* 361 clients transported to medical appointments

via the Gannawarra Non-Emergency Transport
Service (GNETS)

L Wy epeatonn
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® 83,652 users across 137,655 sessions
* Average session duration of 1 minute, 31 seconds

* 59% of visits made on mobile phone/tablet, with
41% of visits made via a desktop device

* Most popular pages were Flood Updates — October
2022 (40,375), Home (39,516) and Contact Us (6,823)

¥ CUSTOMER
1 SERVICE

© 36,039 incoming calls received, of these
58% were solved at first point of contact

* 3.90-second average to answer telephone

* 1380 vaccinations were administered to 987 people
through Council’s immunisation program

* 35 immunisation sessions held

* 236 influenza shots administered as part of the
2023 influenza program

YEAR IN REVIEW

* 385 new members

* 41,378 library collection item loans

* 6,134 eBooks, eAudio and eMagazines borrowed via
BorrowBox and hoopla

* 375 movies, television shows and songs streamed
via hoopla, Story Box Library and Beamafilm

* 27,645 electronic resources accessed

* 11,901 items added to Council’s library collection in
the past five years

* 1,282 computer bookings

* 1,104 tourism enquiries answered

* 316 programs attended by 2,650 people

* 58 dogs and 13 cats
released back to their
owners

* 23 dogs and 92 cats
re-housed

* 78 wild cats seized

* 92 babies born

* 28 families
experienced the birth
of their first baby

* 887 Key Ages and Stages
consultations completed

* 101 additional consults
made, with the top two
reasons being growth
and communication
concerns

* 28 kilometres of roads resheeted

* 2.80 kilometres of sealed road
rehabilitation undertaken

* 640 square metres of footpath replaced

* 260 lineal metres of kerb and channel replaced

* 156 kilometres of roads graded

* Maintenance works conducted on 722 signs

* 4,064 kilometres of sealed roadside shoulders slashed

* 189,228 square metres of sealed roads resealed

ANNUAL REPORT 13
GANNAWARRA SHIRE COUNCIL

* 25% increase in Gannawarra Shire Council
Facebook page followers

* 16% increase in Gannawarra Shire Council LinkedIn
page followers

* 14% increase in Creative Gannawarra Facebook
page likes

* 12% increase in Gannawarra Library Service
Facebook page likes

* 12% increase in @thegannawarra Instagram page
followers

* 7% increase in Gannawarra Shire Children’s Centre
Facebook page likes
* 2% increase in Gannawarra Shire Twitter page followers

SWIMMING
POOLS

* 19,956 visitors to Kerang Outdoor Pool
* 11,047 visitors to Cohuna Outdoor Pool
* 6,827 visitors to Kerang Exercise Pool

T\

* 6,096 visitors to Gannawarra Shire
Council-managed visitor centres (15% from
interstate, 1% international travellers)

* Approximately 530 volunteer hours provided at the
Gateway to Gannawarra Visitor Centre

# 10,155 visits to thegannawarra.com.au tourism
website by 8,647 users

TOURISM

Iltem 7.4- Attachment 1

Page 36



Council Meeting Agenda

18 October 2023

14  ANNUAL REPORT
GANNAWARRA SHIRE COUNCIL

finance Messafe

Total revenue

Total expenditure

Surplus

Total assets

Total liabilities

Equity

Net cash from operating activities

Indebtedness ratio

OPERATING POSITION

Council has achieved a surplus of $5.78 million in 2022/23
- a decrease on the budgeted surplus of $7.52 million. The

primary reason for this decrease is due to the treatment
of unearned capital grants in line with the Accounting

Standards (i.e, capital grants are recognised in line with capital

expenditure incurred). A number of capital projects were

delayed due to the October-December 2022 floods. Provision
for redundancies have also been factored into total cost to

facilitate redundancy payments when Council withdraws

from providing Aged and Disability services on 31 October
2023. The decreases have been offset by advance payment of

2023/24 Victoria Grants Commission annual allocation.
During the year, Council received $4.93 million in flood

assistance grants from the State and Federal Governments,
of which $2.25 million had been spent prior to 30 June 2023.

SURPLUS
8.00
7.00
6.00

2018/19 2019/20

774
578
§5.00
E4.00 331
317 :

300 2.92

2.00

1.00

YEAR IN REVIEW

$43.49 million
$37.71 million
$5.78 million
$311.11 million
$15.19 million
$295.93 million
$14.5 million
3.34%

CAPITAL WORKS

Council aims to maintain its infrastructure
assets at the expected levels while at the
same time continuing to deliver the services
needed by the community.

Council invested a total of $5.98 million on
renewing, expanding and upgrading existing
infrastructure in the 2022/23 financial year.

Capital works included $2.53 million on
roads, $970,000 for footpaths and kerbs,
$547,000 on drainage works, and $758,000
for various recreation and leisure, parks and

streetscapes projects across the municipality.

A number of capital projects were delayed
due to the October-December 2022 floods.

2021/22 2022/23

YEAR IN REVIEW

COUNCIL EXPENDITURE

There are a variety of community services that Council
operates alongside their capital work projects. In

the 2022/23 financial year, total council expenditure
was $37.71 million, with 69 per cent being spent

on enhancing wellbeing and liveability. Programs
undertaken to achieve this strategic activity include
roads and bridges infrastructure, community facilities,
recreation reserves, community care services and
children's services.

This included $6.38 million being devoted to people
in need within our Aged and Disability sector, such as
Home and Community Care, Brokered services and
National Disability Insurance Scheme services, and
$3.64 million expended on Children’s Services such
as Kindergarten, Long Day Care, Family Day Care and
Maternal and Childcare services.

Essential waste management services are a big part

of Council’s priority in creating sustainable living
environments for the Gannawarra community, with
$2.15 million utilised in collection of kerbside and
public bin waste, in addition to the management of the
local landfill.

STABILITY AND EFFICIENCY

Council receives income from a number or
sources including rates, grants, user fees,
fines and contributions. Rates and charges

Contributions

0.1%

ANNUALREPORT 15§
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Sustainability
25%

Liveability
69%

Other income

11%

Rates and
charges

33%

Grants- &N
capital y

\
Y
=

=

are one of Council’s main sources of Net loss on

income, representing 33 per cent of total
income, Following the advance payment
by the Victorian Grants Commission and
flood assistance grants, grants comprised
40 per cent of total income.

disposals
of assets

0.6%

Statutory
Grants - fees and
operating User fees fines
40% 6% 1%
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The Glasshouse @ The Gannawarra: $1.5 million
(supported by $1.5 million from the State
Government’s Living Libraries Infrastructure Program
2021 - Major Works Program)

Council spent 2022/23 developing the final design
of The Glasshouse @ The Gannawarra, to be built at
Kerang's Sir John Gorton Library.

Community feedback received during August and
September 2022 assisted with this process, with the
final concept designs released in February 2023. This
process led to changes to the initial concept design,
including incorporating ways to reduce the amount of
heat generated by the project’s windows, especially
those along the western side of the building.

Many of the initial concept design’s features have been
retained, including two soundproof pods that can

be used to develop media projects, a gallery space,

a meeting area, glass panel walls that can display
creative lighting installations, and an indigenous
garden and ceremonial fire pit celebrating links to the
Gannawarra’s indigenous culture,

YEAR IN REVIEW

! il

Kerang All Abilities Playground and Changing Places
facility: $1.1 million (supported by $1 million from the
State Government’s Community Sports Infrastructure
Stimulus Program)

Completed in August 2022, the Kerang All Abilities
Play Space was the third all abilities play space to be
constructed in the Gannawarra in a two-year period.

Located in Atkinson Park adjacent Kerang’s largest
playground, the area features elements that are prominent
in many popular all-abilities play spaces, including in-
ground trampolines, a log scramble area, water play areas
and a wheelchair accessible sway fun swing.

This project also included construction of the first Changing
Places facility in the region. Completed in October 2022,
the facility features a height-adjustable adult-sized

change table, ceiling track hoist system and a peninsular-
structured toilet, the space provides suitable facilities for
people who cannot use standard accessible toilets.

Kerang CBD Redevelopment — Stage 3: $2.136 million
(funded by Federal Government’s Local Roads and
Community Infrastructure Program)

Work associated with Stage 3 of the Kerang CBD
Redevelopment began in May 2023 and is scheduled for
completion by June 2024.

Funded by the Federal Government's Local Roads and
Community Infrastructure Program, key features of this
project include replacing existing paved surfaces along
Victoria Street to tie this area in with recently completed
improvements along Scoresby Street; remodelling kerb
along the eastern section of Victoria Street between
Scoresby Street and Victoria Square; installing new street
furniture and trees; and feature lighting around the
Karlie McDonald Memorial Clock at the intersection of
Wellington and Victoria streets,

YEAR IN REVIEW

Gannawarra Shire Children’s Centre, Kerang play
space improvements: $199,690 (fully funded by the
State Government’s Early Childhood Building Blocks
Inclusion Grant Stream)

Work associated with rejuvenating the play space at
Kerang's Gannawarra Shire Children’s Centre began in May
2023 and is scheduled for completion in August 2023,

Once completed, children will be able to enjoy
exploring a new waterplay element, sensory path,
edible garden and turf mound.

These works will also ensure the space complies with the
Disability Discrimination Act and Child Safe standards.

Kerang Stormwater Project: $246,000
(fully funded by Council)

Completed in June 2023, residents in the southern half
of Kerang will benefit from the upgrade of infrastructure
at the Riverwood Drive pump station, located alongside
Lower Murray Water's treatment plant.

Although the pump predominately services the area
consisting of Museum Drive, the Kerang Caravan
Park and Riverwood Drive, the pump also assists with
removing stormwater from Bendigo Road, Mitchell
Street and the southern end of Boundary Street.

Murrabit Stormwater Project: $1.6 million (fully
funded by the Federal Government Local Roads and
Community Infrastructure Program)

Completed in August 2022, the final two stages of the
Murrabit Stormwater Project built on work that began in
September 2021 toupgrade the town's stormwater network.

The project involved installing an underground drainage
infrastructure system, which has reduced the risks
associated with mosquito-borne disease and enabled
the capture and possible future use of reusable water.

ANNUAL REPORT 17
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Cohuna and District Preschool Centre play space
improvements: $195,523 (fully funded by the State
Government’s Early Childhood Refurbishment and
Minor Works Program)

Work associated with rejuvenating the Cohuna and
District Preschool Centre’s play space began in April
2023 and is scheduled for completion in August 2023.
As part of the project, children will be able to access
raised areas easier, enjoy activities in new gathering
spaces, explore nature play elements and benefit from
the installation of new shade sails.

These works will ensure the space complies with the
Disability Discrimination Act and Child Safe standards.

Kangaroo Lake North End — Stage 2: $304,000
(fully funded by the Victorian Fisheries Authority)

Scheduled for completion in July 2023, this project
involves installing a new fixed jetty structure at the
northern end of Kangaroo Lake. This new structure
replaced the previous jetty that was removed in April
2020 due to public safety concerns.
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Significant rainfall in upstream catchments during

early to mid-October 2022 led to the major flooding of
Gannawarra Shire’s waterways between October 2022
and January 2023. This flooding impacted the Avoca,

Loddon and Murray rivers, as well as Pyramid and
Wandella Creeks, resulting in:

-‘asmmmuw mm

Council worked alongside emergency authorities
with flood management efforts, as well as updating
residents on changing conditions, road closures and
alterations to Council’s services.

BELOW: Wandella Creek inundated
the Murray Valley Highwoy at
Reedy Lake, north of Kerang.

YEAR IN REVIEW

The Loddon River at Kerang, October 2022.

As floodwater subsided, Council assisted with recovery

efforts by:

- Connecting impacted residents with support available.

- Completing $638,500 of immediate reconstruction
works to rehabilitate roads.

- Completing emergency works on 44 roads to reinstate
access to properties.

- Coordinating BlazeAid and Rural Aid to assist with
clean-up efforts.

- Coordinating clean up works to remove temporary
levees and sandbags along roadsides.

- Coordinating a free flood debris skip bin service.

- Supporting Northern District Community Health (NDCH)
in reactivating the Gannawarra Giving Account.

- Forming the Gannawarra Flood Recovery Committee,
which has developed and will implement the
Gannawarra Municipal Recovery Plan

- Forming the Gannawarra Community Flood Recovery
Committee, which provides Council with guidance
regarding each community’s priorities during the
recovery process.

- Supporting communities in organising post-flood events
that enabled residents and services available to connect.

- Submitting a response to the Victorian Parliamentary
Legisiative Council Environment and Planning
Committee’s Inquiry into the 2022 Flood Event.

- Advocating for key community issues, including support
for establishing ring bank levee on private properties,
improved digital connectivity, additional financial support.

BELOW: Approximately 44 per cent of Gannawarra Shire’s land mass was impacted by
the October-December 2022 floods.

YEAR IN REVIEW

Engagement with the Gannawarra community is
important, as it ensures Council continues to respond
to community needs and expectations. Council’s
Community Engagement Strategy 2020-2025 and
Community Engagement Policy guides how Council
engages with the community on projects and services.

Council engaged with the community regarding
the following projects, policies and strategies
during 2022/23:

* 2023/2024 Gannawarra Shire Council Proposed Budget
» Future childcare options for Cohuna

* Connecting Gannawarra project

¢ Draft Community Amenity Local Law 2023

 Draft Gannawarra Aquatic Strategy

* Draft Gonnowarra Climate Change Adaptation Strategy

* Draft Gannawarra Domestic Animal
Management Plan 2022-25

 Draft Gannawarra Urban Growth Strategy

ANNUALREPORT 19
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* Draft Gannawarra Walking and Cycling Strategy

» The Glasshouse @ The Gannawarra concept design

* Future of Aged Care and Disability Services

» Governance Rules changes

» Kerang CBD Redevelopment — Stage 3 concept design
» Kerang CBD Redevelopment - Stage 4 concept design
* Melbourne Cup Day public holiday arrangements

* Draft Policy No. 148 - Flags and Community
Flag Schedule

Council also assisted with the promotion of the
Victorian Electoral Commission’s review into the
electoral structure of the Gannawarra Shire.

ABOVE: Councillors and Council staff answered
questions regarding the proposed design for The
Glasshouse @ The Gannawarra during a community
engagement session outside the Kerang Council
Building in September 2022.
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YEAR IN REVIEW

Communigy Sarisfaction

2023 COMMUNITY
SATISFACTION SURVEY

Each year Local Government Victoria coordinates a
Statewide Local Government Community Satisfaction
Survey, which asks residents about where they live,
work and play and provides confidence for councils in
their efforts and abilities,

of the decline from 2021 and is despite several service
areas for which perceptions have significantly declined
since 2022.

On many individual service areas, Council is rated in
line with both the Small Rural and Statewide group
averages. Positively, council performance in the
Appearance of Public Areas (score of 74) is significantly
higher than the Statewide and Small Rural group
averages, and Elderly Support Services (score of 68) is
rated significantly higher than the Small Rural group.
However, Consultation and Engagement (score of 49),
Making Decisions in the Interest of the Community
(score of 48) and Sealed Local Roads (score of 41) are
all rated lower for Council than the group averages.

A total of 400 Gannawarra Shire residents over the age
of 18 were interviewed by telephone in February and
March 2023, with results provided as indexed scores
out of 100.

The survey found that perceptions of Gannawarra Shire
Council’s overall performance remains in line with the
previous year and in line with both the Statewide and
Small Rural group averages. This represents an arrest

OVERALL COUNCIL
PERFORMANCE

Results shown are index
scores out of 100

Pl

Small Rural 55

Statewide 56

Gannawarra 54

COUNCIL PERFORMANCE
COMPARED TO GROUP AVERAGE

Top performing areas
(¥ Appearance of
higher
ﬁ% public areas A hig

c— Art centres

S= 4

? & libraries

Lowest performing areas
Sealed local
K roads V lower

e®s Community
I
'@‘ decisions Yilowar

- -
- Customer service = On par

- On par
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ANNUALREPORT 21
GANNAWARRA SHIRE COUNCIL

Cowncil, Contibutions: ama (Jowations

During 2022/23 Council distributed $448,873.69 to
community groups, organisations and service providers
across the municipality,

This funding ranged from Council’s annual Community
Grants Program — which made up to close to 70 per
cent of the annual contributions and donations figure —
to community flood events.

Contributions were also provided to support
Australia Day celebrations, school awards and to
assist communities maintain community-managed
recreational facilities.

MAJOR COMMUNITY PROJECT FUND -
2022 COMMUNITY GRANTS PROGRAM

Cohuna Pistol Club $11,603.00
Kerang Turf Club $100,000.00
Mallee Eagles Football Netball Club $100,000.00
Wandella Cricket Club $30,247.50
Wandella Football Netball Club $15,000.00

ANNUAL RECREATION RESERVE MAINTENANCE CONTRIBUTION

Alexandra Park Trustees, Kerang
Koondrook Recreation Reserve Committee
Lalbert Recreation Reserve and Community Group

Leitchville Sporting Complex Committee

Macorna Public Park and Recreation Reserve Committee

Murrabit Recreation Reserve Committee
Riverside Park Committee of Management, Kerang

Wandella Football/Netball Club

$11.500.00
$5,600.00
$5,600.00
$5,114.41
$5,000.00
$5,600.00
$24,800.00
$5,000.00

COMMUNITY SUPPORT GRANTS - 2022 COMMUNITY GRANTS PROGRAM

Barham Koondrook Men's Shed
Cohuna Cemetery Trust
Cohuna/Leitchville RSL

Cohuna Lions Club

Dingwall Community Hall

Kerang Cemetery Trust

Kerang Girl Guides Support Group

Northern District Dance Association

$1,480.00
$4,500.00
$4,000.00
$4,000.00
$5,000.00
$5,000.00
$5,000.00
$5,000.00

I T
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COUNCIL PARTNERSHIPS

Macedon Ranges Shire Council - Regional Housing Officer 54,545.45

Murray Regional Tourism — Murray River Adventure Trail $25,000.00

TOTAL $29,545.45

COMMUNITY EVENTS GRANTS -
2022 COMMUNITY GRANTS PROGRAM

Barham Koondrook Historical Society 53,832.21
Barham Koondrook Men's Shed $1,600.00
Kerang District Health 5500.00
Kerang Progress Association $5,000.00
Koondrook Development Committee $2,214.50
Mid Murray Orchid Club 55,000.00
Rotary Club of Kerang 52,400.00

TOTAL $20,546.71

DONATIONS AND SPONSORSHIP

Cohuna Bowls Club 5181.82
Cohuna Bridge to Bridge 51,000.00
Cohuna Golf Club 5590.91
Cohuna Lawn Tennis Club $150.00
CohunafLeitchville Returned and Services League $500.00
Kerang and District Agricultural Society §2,272.73
Kerang Traders $318.18
Kerang Turf Club $2,000.00
Miscellaneous contributions to community causes $789.95
Murrabit Market — Easter Saturday 2023 51,887.60
Riverdaze Music Festival $1,000.00
Rotary Club of Kerang Art Show $1,500.00
Ski Racing Victoria §2,272.73
Summerwave Festival $5,000.00

TOTAL $15,463.92

HIGH SCHOOL/SECONDARY COLLEGE BURSARY

Cohuna Secondary College $600.00
Kerang Technical High School $600.00

TOTAL $1,200.00

YEAR IN REVIEW ANNUAL REPORT 23
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COMMUNITY FLOOD RECOVERY EVENTS

Benjeroop Public Hall Committee 51,000.00
Dingwall Hall and Sports Association $200.00
Kerang Neighbourhood House 54,000.00
Koondrook Development Committee $500.00
Macorna Football Netball Club $1,000.00
Murrabit Lions Club $500.00
Murrabit Playgroup $2,000.00
Myall Public Hall Committee $500.00
Quambatook Community Resource Centre 52,000.00

TOTAL $11,700.00

AUSTRALIA DAY CELEBRATIONS

Barham Koondrook Lions Club 5400.00
Cohuna Lions Club $700.00
Lalbert Recreation and Community Group 400,00
Leitchwille Lions Club 5400.00
Lions Club of Kerang 560000
Murrabit and District Lions Club $400.00
Quambatook Lions Club 5400.00
Rotary Club of Kerang 5600.00
RATES SUBSIDY
Barham Koondrook Historical Society 5650.53
Cohuna and District Historical Society $561.37
Cohuna Masonic Lodge 5528.94
Cohuna Squash Club $299.40
Leitchville Bowls Club $203.34
Leitchville Bunyips Sporting Club 559.88
Quambatook Historical Society S486.52
GANNAWARRA GOES ORANGE
Narthern District Community Health 568272

e o | e
TOTAL DONATIONS AND CONTRIBUTIONS FOR 2022/23
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Federal Government Local Roads and Community
Investment Program — Phase 4 ($2.078 million)

Council announced in March 2023 it would allocate

its $2.078 million contribution from the Federal
Government’s Local Roads and Community Infrastructure
to Stage 4 of the Kerang CBD Redevelopment.

The project will build on improvements already
completed in the Kerang central business district,
focusing on Fitzroy Street between Wellington and
Scoresby streets, and Wellington Street between
Albert and Nolan streets.

Construction will begin in the 2023/24 financial year.

YEAR IN REVIEW

State Government Victorian Fisheries Authority
2021-22 Recreational Fishing Grants Program ($240,000)

In September 2022 Council received notification it had
successfully applied for $240,000 from the Victorian
Fisheries Authority 2021-22 Recreational Fishing Grants
Program to upgrade the boat ramp and jetty at the
northern end of Kangaroo Lake.

Work on this project began in May 2023 and is
scheduled to be completed by July 2023.

YEAR IN REVIEW
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Award Recofrition 2022/23

% Council’s advocacy efforts for Keranglink received
a High Commendation in the Productivity Through
Infrastructure category at the 2022 National
Awards for Local Government

% Council’s NDIS program was a finalist in the 2022
Premier’s Sustainability Awards in the Healthy and
Fair Society - Industry Leader category

% Council’s Team Leader Rural Roads, Jon Haw was
a finalist in the 2022 National Awards for Local
Government Career Starter category

% Council’s efforts to provide unique initiatives to
support employment opportunities was a finalist
in the 2022 National Awards for Local Government
Career Starter category

# Council’s three all abilities play spaces were
finalists in the 2022 National Awards for Local
Government Cohesive Communities category

% Council’s Drought Communities Programme was
a finalist in the 2022 National Awards for Local
Government Cohesive Communities category

% Council’s support for the construction of female
friendly facilities at Macorna Recreation Reserve,
Murrabit Recreation Reserve and Riverside Park,
Kerang was a finalist in the 2022 National Awards
for Local Government Cohesive Communities
category

% Council’s work to reconnect communities following
the COVID-19 pandemic was a finalist in the 2022
National Awards for Local Government Creativity
and Culture category

% Development of the Gannawarra Arts Trail was
a finalist in the 2022 National Awards for Local
Government Creativity and Culture category

% Flood mitigation work at Kerang, Koondrook and
Quambatook was a finalist in the 2022 National
Awards for Local Government Disaster Preparedness
category

% The Welcome to Country Video was a finalist in
the 2022 National Awards for Local Government
Indigenous Recognition category

% Cohuna Beach was a finalist in the 2022 National
Awards for Local Government Productivity through
Infrastructure category

¥ Koondrook Retreat was a finalist in the 2022
National Awards for Local Government
Productivity Through Infrastructure category

9 Council’s NDIS program was a finalist in the 2022
National Awards for Local Government Regional
Growth category

% Council’s promotion of The ART of the Gannawarra
was a finalist in the 2022 National Awards for Local
Government Regional Growth category

% Traffic calming measures at the intersection of
Cohuna Island and Tennis roads, Cohuna was
a finalist in the 2022 National Awards for Local
Government Road Safety category

NN RN RN R R E N RN AR R RN RN A R R AR AR

9 Silver Award in the 2023 Australasian Reporting
Awards for the 2022 Annual Report
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JULY
» Gannawarra Library Service school holiday program
¢ The Listies — Rolling On The Floor Laughing, Cohuna

* Gannawarra Library Service National Tree Day
celebrations

AUGUST

* Mama Kin Spender — Sound of Your Town, Kerang

» National Science Week Robotics and Coding
workshops

* Golden Rivers Artists Exhibition, Kerang

SEPTEMBER

» The Alphabet of Awesome Science, Kerang

» Golden Rivers Artists Exhibition, Kerang

* Gannawarra Library Service school holiday program

YEAR IN REVIEW

5-2022/23

OCTOBER

» Victorian Seniors Festival celebrations
» Community flood meetings

= Flood recovery community barbecue

NOVEMBER

* Community flood relief and recovery
catch-up sessions

DECEMBER

» Community flood relief and recovery
catch-up sessions

» Christmas Story Time sessions

YEAR IN REVIEW

JANUARY

¢ Gannawarra Library Service school holiday program
¢ 2023 Australia Day Awards ceremony

» Australia Day celebrations

* Community flood thank-you events

FEBRUARY

* Cohuna Waterfront Development opening

* Community flood thank-you events

* Gannawarra Library Service Splish Splash Story Time

sessions, Cohuna and Kerang

MARCH
* Roommates: The Musical, Lake Charm
* International Women’s Day breakfast, Kerang

» Connecting Gannawarra program drop-in sessions,
listening posts and community meetings

e Gannawarra Library Service Author Talk session

APRIL

» Connecting Gannawarra program drop-in sessions,
listening posts and community meetings

¢ Gannawarra Library Service Story Walks events

¢ Gannawarra Library Service school holiday program

* Community flood thank-you events

» Squatters and the Kerang Big Stations exhibition,
Kerang

MAY

* Connecting Gannawarra community meetings
* Community flood thank-you events

* Nancy Bates Trio performance, Murrabit

» Squatters and the Kerong Big Stations exhibition,
Kerang

» Cuppa with a Cop sessions, Cohuna and Kerang

* Reconciliation Week walk, Kerang

* Kerang All Abilities Play Space and Changing Places
facility opening

JUNE

¢ Connecting Gannawarra community meetings

* Be Connected Program session

» Gannawarra Library Service school holiday program
* Vivid photographic exhibition, Kerang

2P Program 10-year celebrations, Kerang

ANNUAL REPORT 27
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ONGOING

* Citizenship ceremonies

» Councillor representation at Progress Association/
Development Committee meetings

» Creative Gannawarra Art Salons

 Social Meal program

NOTE

Numerous events scheduled to occur during October-
December 2022 were cancelled or postponed due to
the Victorian flood emergency.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Youth and health promotion events delivered in
partnership with Northern District Community Health.
Art and Culture events delivered in partnership with
Regional Arts Victoria.

Left: Council united with Mallee District Aboriginal
Services and Northern District Community Health in
hosting National Reconciliation Week celebrations in
May 2023.

Below: Kerang hosted the Mama Kin Spender — Sound
of Your Town tour in August 2022.

A
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GANNAWARRA SHIRE COUNCIL IS
DIVIDED INTO FOUR WARDS

AVOCA
including Lake Charm, Lalbert,
Benjeroop, Mystic Park and

Quambatook " . MURRAY

y . WARD
MURRAY :KZOONDROOK L ]
including Koondrook, Myall C
and Murrabit , v : YAR\:/::D

: GANNAWARRA SHIRE 7
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including Kerang, Mead

MACORNA teu‘rc'nvms
and Macorna : ° A =

YARRAN
including Cohuna, Leitchville
and Horfield

Gannawarra Shire Council is constituted under the
Local Government Act 2020 to provide leadership for
the good governance of the municipal district and the
local community. Section 8(1) of the Act states the
role of Council is “to provide good governance in its
municipal district for the benefit and wellbeing of the
municipal community”.

This is achieved by adhering to the following
governance principles:

* Council decisions are to be made and actions taken in
accordance with the relevant law;

* Priority is to be given to achieving the best outcomes
for the municipal community, including future
generations;

» The economic, social and environmental
sustainability of the municipal district, including
mitigation and planning for climate change risks,
is to be promoted;

* The municipal community is to be engaged in
strategic planning and strategic decision making;

» [nnovation and continuous improvement is
to be pursued;

* Collaboration with other Councils and Governments
and statutory bodies is to be sought;

» The ongoing financial viability of the Council is to be
ensured;

» Regional, State and national plans and policies are
to be taken into account in strategic planning and
decision making; and

» The transparency of Council decisions, actions and
information is to be ensured

Council is committed to effective and sustainable forms
of democratic and corporate governance as the key to
ensuring that Council and its administration meet the
community’s priorities.

The community has many opportunities to provide
input into Council’s decision-making processes
including community consultation, public forums and
the ability to make submissions to Council

Council’s formal decision-making processes are
conducted through Council meetings. Council
delegates most of its decision-making to Council staff.
These delegations are exercised in accordance with the
Act and a range of other acts and regulations.

Moow Ward

D

CR CHARLIE GILLINGHAM
Mayor
First elected October 2016

Charlie has lived in the area for more than 50 years and
operates a family farm at Lake Charm.

Charlie has a keen interest in the local environment,
agriculture, community health and local sporting groups.

With our numerous existing assets, Charlie believes that
the area we live in is very dynamic and has huge potential
for further innovative agricultural pursuits, nature-based
tourism opportunities, new industry, renewable energy
prospects and increased residential development around
our major towns, lakes and waterways.

With a proactive Council, Charlie is looking forward to
working with his fellow Councillors and the community
for the benefit of the whole Shire. He believes that
with a common-sense approach, these goals can

be achieved, and we can continue to make the
Gannawarra a fantastic place for all.
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CR JANE OGDEN councils in the Rural North Central
Deputy Mavor Region. She is passionate about

PYY. y advocating to State and Federal
First elected October 2020

Government on behalf of rural
councils and the issues that rural
councils face.

Jane has lived in Kerang since 2006
and is a first-term Councillor for the
Gannawarra Shire Council. She is not
new to Local Government, having
worked for the Shire in many roles,
including as Coordinator Community
Engagement and Community
Development Officer.

The Circular Economy and Climate
Change are high on the list of areas
of advocacy and passion for Jane. She
has learned how important just one
person can be in making a difference
to the care of our planet, by changing
how we see “waste” and therefore
learning to re-use, repair and recycle.

Jane was elected Deputy Mayor

for a second consecutive year in
November 2022 and is passionate
about encouraging and supporting
more rural women to run for Council.

Jane is a member of the Australian
Local Government Women's
Association — Victoria and she is
focussed on having a positive voice
for rural women.

Jane is on the Rural Councils Victoria
committee, and she represents six

--. -n-'rln-'l-

Kerang Girl Guides, and is involved
with the Murrabit Tennis Club,
Kerang-Swan Hill Rams AFL Masters
football team, Rotary Club of Kerang,
Murrabit Advancement Association
and the Kerang Soccer Club.

CR TRAVIS COLLIER
First elected October 2020

Since moving to Kerang in 2011,
Travis has been an active member
of the community in a variety of

different roles. Travis is looking forward to working

alongside his fellow Councillors to
develop a strategic plan that makes
our Shire a destination for tourists
and businesses alike.

Travis is currently on the committee
of Kerang Technical High School,

is Vice President of the Murrabit
Netball Club, Vice President of the

Mawsons Concrete employee and
a management role with Lipps Bulk
Super in Wakool.

CR KELVIN BURT
First elected October 2020

Kelvin has lived and worked in the

Looking for a stable future, Kelvin
Gannawarra for most of his life. e

returned to Mawsons, where he
worked up until March 2022.

A love of the Gannawarra and a
passion for the community led
Kelvin to become President of the
Kerang Progress Association for five
years and, in 2020, a Councillor.

After leaving school, the family farm
was his first passion. This then led
him to becoming a fencing and hay
carting contractor. Many other jobs
followed, including wood merchant,
barman, backhoe operator,
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CR ROSS STANTON
First elected October 2020

Ross was born in Cohuna and spent
most of his life living and working
in the Gannawarra. Ross has
recently retired after 31 years with
Goulburn-Murray Water.

netball clubs. Ross likes to relax
with a game of golf and fishing,
neither successfully!

agriculture, renewable energy and
environmental based tourism.

Ross believes the Gannawarra

is a great place to raise a family
and enjoy all the assets this area
has available. He sees his role

in Council as part of the wider
“Gannawarra Council Team”, with a
focus on the strategic side of local
government and looks for ways

to enhance the opportunities for
our youth and maintain our link to

Ross classifies himself as a
volunteer, always willing to step in
when help is needed. He is a life
member of the Murrabit Football
Club, having served previously

as president of the football and

Yarveaw Ward N
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CR KEITH LINK

First elected October 2020

Keith has been living in the
Gannawarra Shire since 1976,
spending the first 40 years farming.

He believes Gannawarra residents
are fortunate to live in a diverse
region with exciting attractions,
Mediterranean climate and
beautiful natural landscapes.

Whilst finding being on Council
stimulating and challenging, he
feels that collaboratively much can
be achieved for our ratepayers into
the future with seemingly unlimited
possibilities.

T

He recently completed his Bachelor
of Arts majoring in Geography
which he is quite proud of
considering his age and limited
computer skills.

and Ministerial Advisor to the Hon. Bill
Baxter in the Roads and Ports portfolio.
In addition, Garner was the Young
Nationals State President for two
years, the National Party Victoria
Junior Vice President for a year,
undertook a delegation to Shanghai,
China as part of the Young Leaders
Conference and completed a Political
Exchange Tour of Japan. In 2021,
Garner was elected to the Victorian
Farmers Federation Water Committee.

Supplies in Cohuna and Gunbower,
as well as irrigated beef farms in
Cohuna and Leitchville.

CR GARNER SMITH
First elected October 2020

Garner was raised on a dairy farm
in Leitchville and completed his
High School Certificate (HSC) at
Cohuna High School in 1989.

Garner undertook tertiary studies at
Melbourne University, graduating with
a Bachelor of Commerce (Honours)
and undertaking a postgraduate
Honours year in Economics.

Garner has had significant experience
in working in politics, as an Electorate
Officer for Senator Julian McGauran

Currently, Garner and his wife are
busy running their businesses,
Riverland Milk and Trading, Rural
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Council conducts open public meetings on the third
Wednesday of each month, except for June, when the
meeting is held on the fourth Wednesday of the month
to avoid a clash with the Australian Local Government
Association National General Assembly. Members of
the community are welcome to attend these meetings
and observe from the gallery or watch proceedings via
a recording available the meeting on Council’s website.

As part of Council’s Governance Rules, there is capacity
to hold Council Meetings virtually, with proceedings
livestreamed via Council’s website.

COUNCIL MEETING DATES

COUNCILLOR

Cr Kelvin Burt v v v v v v v
Cr Travis Collier v v v v Y

Cr Charlie v v v v v v v
Gillingham

Cr Keith Link AR B G AR sV
Cr Jane Ogden v v v v v v v
CrGamerSmith v A v v v v
Cr Ross Stanton v v v v v v v

<

\ BN S BS

Council meetings also provide the opportunity for
community members to submit questions to Council
or provide feedback on items in line with Council’s
Community Engagement Policy.

For the 2022/23 year, Council held 16 Council Meetings
~ 11 monthly meetings and five Unscheduled Meetings.
One of these Unscheduled Meetings was to elect the
Mayor and Deputy Mayor.

v —In attendance A - Apology

wWnn uAm WER YR AN sNR R WAY2 2R YB B 5B BB usm s nsn TOTAL

v v v v A v v A 130f16

v v v v A v 150f16
v v A v v v A v 1dof16
A v v v v v v v 150f16
v A v v v A A v 13 of 16
v A v v v v v v 140f16
A A Y v ¥ Vv ¥ ¥ 1416

(ouncillon (ommittee Membershil

Councillor committee memberships as determined during 2022/23

COMMITTEE COUNCILLOR

Audit and Risk Committee

Central Victorian Greenhouse Alliance (CVGA)

Community Halls Community Asset Committee

Loddon Campaspe Group of Councils

Municipal Association of Victoria (MAV)

Municipal Fire Management Planning Committee (MFMPC)
Murray River Group of Councils (MRGC)

Rail Freight Alliance

Rural Councils Victoria

Timber Towns Victoria

Cr Gillingham and Cr Smith
Cr Stanton

Cr Burt

Cr Gillingham (Mayor)

Cr Collier

Cr Link

Cr Gillingham (Mayor)

Cr Stanton

Cr Smith

Cr Smith

OUR COUNCIL
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COUNCILLOR ALLOWANCES

On 7 March 2022, in accordance with Section 23A

of the Victorian Independent Remuneration Tribunal
and Improving Parliamentary Standards Act 2019

{Vic), the Tribunal made the Allowance payable to
Mayors, Deputy Mayors and Councillors (Victoria)
Determination No. 01/2022. The allowance values took
effect from 18 December 2021.

For the purpose of these allowance limits, councils are
divided into four categories based on the income and
population of each council. Gannawarra Shire Council is
classified as a Category 1 Council.

The Category 1 Councillor allowance from 18
December 2022 was fixed at $24,775, inclusive of any
Superannuation Guarantee Contribution.

The Category 1 Deputy Mayoral allowance from 18
December 2022 was fixed at 538,391, inclusive of any
Superannuation Guarantee Contribution.

The Category 1 Mayoral allowance from 18
December 2022 was fixed at $76,781, inclusive of any
Superannuation Guarantee Contribution.

The Mayor, Deputy Mayor and Councillors have the
option to be provided with internet access, a mobile
telephone and a laptop. All Councillors have access to a
computer, printer and fax machine at Council’s offices.
The Mayor is also provided with a vehicle.

e e e R R AR AR AR RN R RS RR AR AR RN RSN RRRRRaRRRRRRa,

COUNCILLOR EXPENSES

In accordance with the Act, a Council must:

» Reimburse a Councillor for out-of-pocket expenses
the Council is satisfied are bona fide expenses; have
been reasonably incurred in the performance of the
role of Councillor; and are reasonably necessary for
the Councillor to perform that role.

* Provide details of all such reimbursements to the
Audit and Risk Committee,

* Adopt and maintain an expenses policy in relation to
the reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses
for Councillors.

Conferences &
Training Expenses

Cr. Charles Gillingham $3,047
Cr. Garner Smith $685 559
Cr. Jane Ogden $4,138 $253
Cr. Keith Link $343 $2,532
Cr. Kelvin Burt
Cr. Ross Stanton $1,249 $2,309
Cr. Travis Collier $795

$10,257 $5,152

Travel Expenses

Council reviewed and endorsed Policy No. 092 -
Councillor Allowances and Support on 28 June 2023.
Council also publishes in its Annual Report the details
of the expenses, including reimbursement of expenses
for each Councillor.

The details of the expenses including reimbursement
of expenses for each Councillor paid by Council for
2022/23 are set out as below:

Czr Mileage Comn:\znsi‘cation TOTAL
i Expenses

512,326 $300 $15,672

$300 $1,043

5890 5262 85,543

$300 $3,175

$300 $300

$300 $3,858

$722 $300 $1,816

$13,937 $2,062 $31,408
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CODE OF CONDUCT

On 17 February 2021, Council reviewed and adopted
Policy No. 078 — Councillor Code of Conduct in
accordance with section 139(4) of the Act. The
reviewed Councillor Code of Conduct includes four
new mandatory standards of Council conduct (conduct
standards) to provide greater clarity around the
behaviour expected of Counciliors and a consistent
framework for handling complaints alleging misconduct
under the Code

The Code of Conduct documents Gannawarra Shire
Councillors’ commitment to working together in the
best interests of the people within the municipality and
to discharging their responsibilities to the best of their
skill and judgement

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Councillors are elected by the residents and ratepayers
to act in the best interests of the community. This is a
position of trust that requires Councillors to act in the
public interest. When a council delegates its powers

to a Council officer or a committee, the officer or
committee must also act in the public interest.

A conflict of interest occurs when a personal or private
interest might compromise the ability to act in the
public interest. A conflict of interest exists even if no
improper act results from it

Council has a comprehensive procedure in place to
accommodate the disclosure of a conflict of interest.
Declaration of a conflict of interest is a standing agenda
item for all Council meetings.

While the procedures vary depending on the role and
circumstances, in general they involve disclosing the
relevant interests in a specific way and then stepping
aside from the decision-making process or from the
exercise of the public duty. A register is maintained to
record all disclosed conflicts of interest.

During 2022/23, eight Councillor conflicts of interest
and six Officer conflicts of interest were declared at a
Council meeting.

OUR COUNCIL

Qur P

Community Car@ Worker, Chelsea Guy d
Service Officer, Renny Pay (right) with _
during a Ministédrial tour of Kerang durifig
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fanisational,
Council has three directorates reporting to the Chief
Executive Officer - Corporate Services; Community
Wellbeing; and Infrastructure and Development.

Each of these directorates is made up of individual
units, each led by a senior officer.

An Executive Manager Economic Development,
who oversees Council’s Economic Development

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
CORPORATE INFRASTRUCTURE
SERVICES ; SERVICES

Phil Higgins : Wade Williams
- {Acting)

MANAGER
ASSETS &
PROPERTY

Dmitry Belyakov

MANAGER
FINANCE

Shana Johnny

MANAGER
OPERATIONAL
SERVICES

Brenton Hall

MANAGER
GOVERNANCE

Alissa Harrower

MANAGER : MANAGER
INFORMATION & . PLANNING AND
COMMUNICATION B REGULATORY
TECHNOLOGY p SERVICES

Darryl Burton C Keflie Burmeister

MANAGER : MANAGER
HUMAN PROJECTS &
RESOURCES > DESIGN

Tracey Clifford . Leigh Hollingworth
s {Acting}

SUPERVISOR
CUSTOMER
SERVICE

Rebecca Powell

OUR PEOPLE

Cructwne

and Tourism initiatives, also reports to the Chief
Executive Officer.

The Chief Executive Officer is directly accountable
to the Mayor and Councillors, who are elected by
Gannawarra Shire ratepayers.

CHIEF
EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Geoff Rollinson
DIRECTOR
COMMUNITY
WELLBEING
Paul Fernee

EXECUTIVE

MANAGER

ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT

Roger Griffiths MANAGER
LIBRARIES

Mesh Thomson

MANAGER
COMMUNITY
HEALTH

Narelle
O'Donoghue

MANAGER
COMMUNITY
ENGAGEMENT

Paul Fernee

MANAGER
CHILDREN & FAMILY
SERVICES

Brooke Arnold

MANAGER
COMMUNITY CARE

Carole Wandin

OUR PEOPLE
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GEOFF ROLLINSON
Chief Executive Officer

Council's former Director
Infrastructure and Development,
Geoff Rollinson was appointed
Council Chief Executive Officer on 21
December 2022.

Geoff's earliest qualifications and
experience are in agriculture. He
gained extensive experience and
knowledge in Local Government
when working with both the former
Borough and Shire of Kerang and

PHIL HIGGINS

Director Corporate Services

Phil joined Gannawarra Shire Council
as Director Corporate Services in
November 2018.

Phil has worked for several councils
over the past 40 years across three
states, predominantly in the Director
Corporate Services role.

Phil’s extensive experience is
supported with a Masters of

B R sessssnannn

WADE WILLIAMS
Acting Director Infrastructure
and Development

A career professional in the Civil &
Built environment with over eight
years of professional experience
managing complex projects and
teams in the civil industry, Wade
joined Gannawarra Shire Council
in 2018, working and leading

the Engineering team as the
Manager of Projects & Design.
Wade commenced in the role of

ANNUAL REPORT 37
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then the Gannawarra Shire upon
amalgamation in 1995.

He has a Diploma of Civil
Engineering and held the positions
of Works Engineer and Manager
of Operational Services with
Gannawarra Shire from 1995

until he started in the Director
Infrastructure and Development
rolein 2011.

Areas of responsibility:

Council Planning and Performance;
Councillor Support; Economic
Development and Tourism.

Business Administration, majoring
in Finance; Bachelor of Business
Local Government; and a Graduate
Certificate in Business Excellence.

Areas of responsibility:

Finance and Budget; Audit; Roting
and Valuation; Information
Communication Technology;
Governance and Risk; Human
Resource Management; Records
Management; Customer Service;
Emergency Management.

AN AR A RN R RN AR

Acting Director Infrastructure &
Development in early 2023.

Wade holds a Diploma of Building
Surveying, Professional Certificate
in Infrastructure Financial
Management, and a Post Graduate
Certificate in Project Management.

Areas of responsibility:

Major Projects; Operational Services;
Engineering; Waste Mancgement;
Landfill and Transfer Stations; Local
Laws; Flood and Fire Management;
Building; Planning; Aquatic Facilities;
Climate Change Adaptation.
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PAUL FERNEE
Acting Director
Community Wellbeing

Paul has been Acting Director
Community Wellbeing at Gannawarra
Shire Council since July 2022 after
commencing in late 2019 as Manager
Community Engagement.

Paul’s career in Local Government
has mostly been spent in rural
Victorian communities, leading

a variety of services including
Infrastructure, Community
Development and Sport

and Recreation.

ROGER GRIFFITHS
Executive Manager
Economic Development

Roger has over 30 years of
experience working in the
development sector, specialising in
agricultural projects, residential and
industrial developments, energy and
mining and tourism related projects.

Roger has worked with Gannawarra
Shire Council for the past 21 years,
and facilitated the development of the
Gannawarra Solar Farm - the largest
integrated solar and battery facility in
Australia when it was constructed.

Roger has initiated much of the
strategic focus for the Gannawarra
Shire, resulting in a diverse and

MAJOR CHANGES

» Geoff Rollinson was appointed
Chief Executive Officer on 21
December 2022, replacing Tom
O'Reilly after Councillors decided
in July 2022 to test the open
market and advertise the role.

» Wade Williams was appointed
Acting Director Infrastructure
and Development in January

Paul has a strong focus on personal
and professional development
having achieved a Master of
Business (Sport Management);
Bachelor of Exercise Science; and a
Graduate Diploma in Education.

Areas of responsibility:
Community Care Services; NDIS;
Maternal Child Health; Community
Health; Children and Family
Services; Immunisation; Community
Tronsport; Libraries; Arts and
Culture; Recreation and Aquatic
Services; Environmental Health;
Community Engagement and
Communications.

growing agricultural sector thanks
to medicinal cannabis, free range
egg farms and viticulture projects.
He has guided the growth of
Kerang's Tate Drive Industrial Estate
and developed a prolific branding
profile for the Gannawarra.
Under his watch the economy has
undergone significant diversity,
resulting in population growth,

Roger has interests in outdoor
nature-based activities,
boating, music and wine
making and believes in 10 years
the Gannawarra will be one of
the strongest rural councils

in Victoria.

Areas of responsibility:
Economic Development;
Tourism.

2023 after Geoff Rollinson was
appointed Chief Executive Officer
on 21 December 2022,

» Paul Fernee was appointed
Acting Director Community
Wellbeing from July 2022 to June
2023 following the resignation
of former Director Community
Wellbeing, Stacy Williams.

OUR PEOPLE

* Roger Griffiths was appointed
Executive Manager Economic
Development in September 2022
after being formally elevated
for inclusion into the Executive
Leadership Team.
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Below is a summary of full-time equivalent (FTE) Council staff by
organisation structure, employment type and gender.

FTE BY GENDER, DEPARTMENT — AS OF 30 JUNE 2023

CORPORATE INFRASTRUCTURE COMMUNITY

EHPSOCHNNT 1YEX SENRER 40 SERVICES SERVICES WELLBEING
Permanent Full-Time Female 2.00 12.00 6.00 16.00
Permanent Full-Time Male 3.00 4.00 49.00 5.00
Permanent Part-Time Female 168 542 5.66 73.90
Permanent Part-Time Male 0.00 0.00 0.92 0.21
Casual Female 0.00 0.58 0.91 5.60
Casual Male 0.00 0.00 0.31 1.90
Total 6.68 22.00 62.80 102.61
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Below is a summary of the number of full-time equivalent (FTE) staff
categorised by employment classification and gender.

FTE BY BAND LEVEL, GENDER — AS OF 30 JUNE 2022

FEMALE MALE TOTAL EFT

Band 1 14.64 0.22 14.86
Band 2 22.11 4.00 26.11
Band 3 33.28 26.53 59.81
Band 4 24.81 4.21 29.02
Band 5 10.79 7.00 17.79
Band 6 6.55 9.63 16.18
Band 7 4.00 4.00 8.00
Band 8 4.00 2.10 6.10
Band N/A 9.59 6.59 16.18
Total 129.77 64.28 194.05

o T

Band 2 Band 3 Band 4 Band 5 Band 6 Band 7 Band8  Band N/A

MALE FEMALE

OUR PEOPLE

ENTERPRISE BARGAINING
AGREEMENT

In December 2022 Council’s proposed Enterprise
Bargaining Agreement was approved by the Fair
Work Commission. This agreement sets staff pay and
conditions for the next three years.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Council’s workforce plays a vital role in ensuring that
Council meets current and future business needs.

Council is committed to continually developing
and improving the skills and capacity of its staff
by providing access to a range of professional
development opportunities.

This year saw a focus on compliance training with a re-
launch of Council’s online training platform. Leadership
skills across the organisation were enhanced with
targeted training in the areas of recruitment and
workplace safety. Area specific skill development
continued to occur by way of certificate training

with Council’s Children’s Services staff undertaking
Certificate Il and Diploma training.

Staff maintained and expanded their technical skills
through a variety of online webinars and forums
relevant to their fields of expertise.

TRAINEESHIP AND
WORK EXPERIENCE

Council supports pathways for local students
by providing work experience and traineeship
opportunities.

Council’s work experience program allows for students
from across the municipality to experience working in
a variety of Council departments. This allows young
people to see the many career opportunities available
in local government and to also increase awareness of
Council’s operations.

During 2022/23, there was a particular focus on
traineeship programs in our Children’ Services area.
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EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY PROGRAM

Council is committed to the principles of equal
employment opportunity and will ensure that all
workplace employment matters reflect this,

Supported by various policies, new staff inductions and
training, Council ensures that the work environment

is respectful and free from discrimination, harassment
and bullying.

GENDER EQUALITY ACTION PLAN

As part of the Gender Equality Act 2020, Council has
an obligation to promote gender equality, with
Council’s Gender Equality Action Plon 2021-2025
underpinning this obligation.

Developed following communication and consultation
with management, employees, Councillors and staff
union representatives, the action plan includes the results
of a workplace gender audit and strategies and measures
for promoting gender equality in the workplace.

The action plan has two key strategies:

* To improve our understanding of the gender and
diversity profile of our workforce; and

» To raise awareness of gender equality and
intersectional gender inequality.

WORKFORCE PLAN

As part of the Local Government Act 2020, Council is
required to develop a workforce plan which describes
Council’s organisational structure, specifies projected
staffing requirements for a period of at least four years,
and sets out measures to seek and ensure gender
equality, diversity and inclusiveness.

Adopted in December 2021, Council’s Workforce Plan
2021-2025 was developed in line with the Growing
Gannawarra — 2021-2025 Council Plan objectives and,
along with Council’s Gender Equality Action Plan
2021-2025, will guide Council's human resource
practices for the next four years.
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Health and safety within our workforce is our number
one priority, as it contributes to making Gannawarra
a workplace of choice; a workplace where our people
have a strong connection and involvement; and a place
where our staff enjoy coming to work each day.

We strive to foster a safety culture that supports an
incident and injury-free workplace for all employees,
volunteers, contractors and visitors.

Council’s Occupational Health and Safety Committee
meets regularly and continues to work to make the
organisation a safe and healthy place for all staff.

Our committee, including staff health and safety
representatives, receive regular refresher training and
safety updates.

Accident and incident reporting is a standing

agenda item at Management Team meetings, with

data regularly reported to Council’s Audit and Risk
Committee in accordance with Council’s risk framework.

A bimonthly staff survey was conducted up to
September 2022. The survey sought feedback from
staff around expectations, recognition, communication,
team satisfaction, future of the organisation, workplace
safety, and resources and tools available.

Council continued its proactive approach to

encourage Council staff to protect themselves

and others from influenza. Council provides free
vaccination against influenza to its workforce on an
annual basis with 43.5 per cent of staff, including casual
employees, taking the opportunity to be immunized
against influenza in 2022/23.

Council continues its commitment to becoming
recognised under the Victorian Healthy Workplaces

OUR PEOPLE

Achievement Program, This Statewide health
promotion program encourages best practice in
workplaces around Mental Health and Wellbeing,
Physical Activity, Smoking, Healthy Eating, and Alcohol
and Other Drugs. Council has received recognition in
four out of the five priority areas.

The following initiatives took place in support of
the Healthy Workplaces Achievement Program
during 2022/23:

* Consistent use of the 5 Ways to Wellbeing to promote
good Mental Health and Wellbeing across the organisation
and encourage self-care during the COVID-19
pandemic and October-November 2022 floods.

* Promotion of R U OK? Day in September 2022
and providing practical strategies for staff to have
conversations when someone says they are not okay.

* Participation in Gannawarra Goes Orange Day
in November 2022 to raise awareness about
family violence.

* Participation in the Victoria Against Violence 16
Days of Activism campaign in December 2022
across all worksites.

* Council hosted an International Women's Day
Breakfast in March 2023.

« Consistent promotion of the Get Active Victoria and
Cook Well, Eat Well resources to support active living
and healthy eating practices.

ABOVE; Council Chief Executive Officer, Geoff Rollinson (left),
Mayor Charlie Gillingham, Cr Jane Ogden and Acting Director
Community Wellbeing, Paul Fernee promoted Council’s
support of the Victoria Against Violence 16 Days of Activism
campaign in December 2022.

CUR PERFORMANCE
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Council’s actions to support residents and grow the Gannawarra
are guided by the Growing Gannawarra — 2021-2025 Council Plan.
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OUR PERFORMANCE

Lamwiny amd Accoumeability framenork

As outlined in Part 4 of the Local Government Act 2020,
councils are required to prepare the following planning
and reporting documents:

* A Community Vision for at least the next
10 financial years.

» A Council Plan for a period of at least the next four
financial years after a general election in accordance
with its deliberative engagement practices. This
document must include;

 The strategic direction of the Council;

« Strategic objectives for achieving the
strategic direction;

» Strategies for achieving the objectives for a period
of at least the next four financial years;

« Strategic indicators for monitoring the
achievement of the objectives;

* Adescription of the Council's initiatives and priorities
for services, infrastructure and amenity; and

* Any other matters prescribed by the regulations.

10+ YEARS 4+ YEARS

B OTHER STRATEGIC
PLANS

VISION,
STRATEGY
AND POLICY

RESOURCE
ALLOCATION
AND

MANAGEMENT

FINANCIAL
PLAN

CYCLIC AND
ONGOING
PROCESSES

BUSINESS / SERVICE PLANNING, SERVICE REVIEW
AND CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT

LONG TERM FINANCIAL MODELLING AND
ASSET PLANNING

* A Financial Plan for the next 10 financial years.
* An Asset Plan for at least the next 10 financial years.

* A Revenue and Rating Plan for at least the next four
financial years.

« A budget for each financial year and subsequent
three financial years.

* A quarterly budget report.

* An Annual Report in respect of each financial year.

* Financial Policies.

The Act also requires Councils to prepare a Workforce

Plan, which includes projected staffing requirements

for at least the next four years.

The following diagram shows the relationships

between the key planning and reporting documents

that make up the integrated strategic planning and

reporting framework for local government. It also

shows that there are opportunities for community and

stakeholder input and feedback.

PERFORMANCE MONITORING
AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Y suocer W
) 1-3vEARs
: W Revenue

POLICY AND STRATEGY REVIEW

Local Government
Integrated Strategic
Planning and Reporting
Framework (Source:
Department of Jobs,
Precincts and Regions).

MPHWP - Municipal Public Health and Wellbeing Plan  MSS - Municipal Strategic Statement
LGPRF ~ Local Government Performance Reporting Framework

OUR PERFORMANCE

Growing Garmamarsi 2021-2025 (ouncil Plan

Year 2 Action Plan Outcomes

2021-2025 COUNCIL PLAN
YEAR 2 ACTION PLAN OUTCOMES

The Growing Gannawarra 2021-2025 Council Plan
identifies three priority areas, each featuring a set of
strategic priorities and success measures.

The three priority areas are:

Liveability
Enhance the wellbeing and liveability of the Gannawarra
through creative infrastructure and services.

Growth
Grow the Gannawarra through a diverse
and broad economy.

Sustainability
Achieve long-term financial and
environmental sustainability.

ANNUAL REPORT 45
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ASSESSING OUR PERFORMANCE

The Growing Gannawarre 2021-2025 Council Plan is
supported by an annual Action Plan for each of these
three priority areas. This plan outlines the projects
and initiatives that Council will undertake each year
that align to the strategic priorities identified in the
Growing Gannawarra 2021-2025 Councif Plan.

This action plan is monitored on a twice annual basis,
enabling Council staff to provide information on the
achievement, or progress towards achievement of
each action within the plan.
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Enhance the wellbeing and liveability of the
Gannawarra through creative infrastructure

OUR PERFORMANCE
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Build unique transformational infrastructure that enhances
liveability and passive and active recreation.

Liealili

Stuareffi Privuiy 1.

and services.

Improve the health, safety and wellbeing of our community
through partnerships, services and programs.

Action Measure Status Comments
Review Council's Family Violence Family Violence Completed  Endorsed at October 2022
Statement of Commitment Statement of Council Meeting.
Commitment
reviewed
Implement Gannawarra Free from Family Actions within Completed  Gannawarra Free from Family Violence
Violence Action Plan Gannawarra Action Plan 2020-2022 has been
Free from Family reviewed and is being implemented.
Violence Action Plan
implemented
Continue to implement the Gannawarra GLAM Action Plan Completed  The Gannawarra Local Agency Meeting
Local Agency Meeting (GLAM) Action number of initiatives (GLAM) Action Plan was approved by the
Plan 2021- 2025 including the priorities achieved Department of Families, Fairness and
of improving mental wellbeing (through Housing. Implementation of partnership
reconciliation and resilience), working priorities is progressing.
towards gender equality and preventing
family violence, and tackling climate
change and its impact on health
and wellbeing
Adopt the Gannawarra Reconciliation Gannawarra Partially Engagement with the Kerang Elders
Action Plan in partnership with the Reconciliation Action  completed  Group and GLAM has occurred but has
Gannawarra Local Agency Meeting (GLAM)  Plan adopted and been delayed due to the recent floods.
and Kerang Elders Group number of initiatives A draft Reconciliation Action Plan was
achieved submitted to Reconciliation Australia but
still requires further development before
adoption by Council.
Partner to deliver the Buloke Loddon Number of actions Completed  Council continues to partner with local
Gannawarra Population Health from the Buloke agencies, including Northern District
Implementation Plan including Loddon Gannawarra Community Health (NDCH) and the
preventative measures to improve Population Health local hospitals to deliver on key actions
the health priority areas of heart and Implementation Plan identified.
respiratory health, diabetes, mental health  2<"/Ved
and oral health

R R R R T R R R T T R .

Stuateffio Privuigy 2.

Measure Status

Comments

Development of Quambatook Weir

Weir Pool and walking  Partially

Council is working through the relevant

Pool and Walking Tracks tracks completed completed  approval process with the State Government.

Adopt Aquatic Strategy Aguatic Strategy Completed  Gannawarra Aquatic Strategy adopted at the
adopted February 2023 Council Meeting.

Deliver the Kerang CBD development  Kerang CBD Partially Work commenced in May 2023, and is

- Stage 3 Development — completed  scheduled for completion in December 2023.
Stage 3 commenced

Continue to explore the feasibility of ~ Kerang Lakes Eco Completed  Kerang Lakes Eco-Trail Feasibility Study

the Kerang Lakes Eco Trail with key Trail feasibility study completed and adopted at the February

stakeholders completed 2023 Council Meeting,

Stuateftic Privuity 3.

wellbeing centre.

Measure Status

Construct a regional community

Comments

Development of The Glasshouse @
The Gannawarra designs

Stuateftio Privuity 4.

Glasshouse designs Partially
completed completed

childhood services.
easure Status

Final designs anticipated to be completed
by August 2023.

Respond to key community needs through innovative,
commercially focused services including aged care and early

Comments

Undertake Community Planning Community Planning  Partially Work on the Connecting Gannawarra
consultation to help inform consultation completed  community planning project began in early
Community Plans undertaken in six 2023 and is scheduled to be completed in
townships late 2023. This project involves working
with six rural communities to develop local
community plans.
Finalise the GROW Gannawarra and GROW Gannawarra Completed  Local Strong Youth Strong Communities
Strong Youth Strong Communities and Strong Youth project regional partnership established and
place-based projects to reduce Strong Communities State of Gannawarra's Children and Young
disadvantage across the age ranges project frameworks people report completed in February 2023.
of 0-18 years established and State of
Gannawarra’s Children
and Young People
report completed
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Grow the Gannawarra through

a diverse and broad economy.

s Facilitate infrastructure, programs and policies that support
W ]. economic development and productivity, whilst considering

our natural environment.

Action Measure Status Comments
Continue to implement adopted Kangaroo Lake Completed Work on installation of Kangaroo Lake
Waterfront Masterplans North End Jetty North End Jetty began in May 2023

works commenced and scheduled for completion in

July 2023. This project also includes
creating a footpath that connects the
jetty to a nearby amenities block area
and the installation of solar lighting.

Facilitate the implementation of new energy
¢ infrastructure and energy projects.
Action

Measure Status Comments
Continue to advocate for delivery of Keranglink process Completed Ongoing advocacy efforts to secure
KerangLink confirmed with KerangLink including meetings with

Australian Energy Ministers in Canberra and Melbourne
Market Operator as part of the Murray River Group
(AEMO) of Councils (MRGC) delegation and
facilitating meetings with the Australian
Energy Market Operator (AEMO).
Facilitate new energy projects in Number of new Completed Ongoing facilitation of two new wind
Gannawarra or planned energy farms. Three battery projects and new
projects facilitated transmission infrastructure confirmed.

B

Advocate for improvements in digital
W ¢ connectivity and services.
Action

Measure Status Comments

Review community digital connectivity  Digital connectivity Completed A blackspot study has been completed
needs and map identified gaps needs reviewed and and regular funding applications are
gaps mapped made with service provider partners to
upgrade infrastructure.
Explore options for public wifi wifi options Partially Several locations have been considered,
explored completed  but no further work has been undertaken
due to issues around unsociable
activities associated with free wifi sites.

D

OUR PERFORMANCE ANNUAL REPORT 49

GANNAWARRA SHIRE COUNCIL

. . 4 Support the creation of destinations in the Gannawarra to
. attract visitors to our region.
Action

Measure Status Comments
Implement relevant strategies that Number of actions Completed A range of initiatives developed,
support destination development implemented from including a relocate to the Gannawarra

Tourism Strategy, television advertising campaign and
Economic updated tourism marketing materials.
Development Strategy
and Retail Strategy

Adopt and commence implementation  Gannawarra Arts Partially Work has commenced with the

of the Gannawarra Arts Trail Trail implementation  completed Kerang, Leitchville and Quambatook
planning commenced communities regarding design themes

for the trail.

D

4 Continue to support existing, and facilitate diversification
SﬂIMW wa 5 o of agriculture to improve regional productivity through
sustainable planning.

Action Measure Status Comments
Continue to facilitate new industry Number of new Completed A free range poultry project is planned
projects which diversify agriculture industry projects for Kerang East, which will create 20

developed to new jobs.

diversify agriculture
Identify new projects and technology New projects
that enhance local productivity in and technology
agriculture identified

Completed Council is working with a
telecommunication company to install
network infrastructure to support rural
business activity in areas with limited
service.

B

Support growth through land rezoning for future
,IM ¢ residential development opportunities.
Action

Measure Status Comments

Review the Gannawarra Commence the Not An application was submitted to the
Planning Scheme review of the started Regional Planning Hub for assistance
Gannawarra to undertake the Planning Scheme

Planning Scheme Review. This request was successful.
It is anticipated that the review
will commence in July 2023 and be
completed by the end of 2023.
Review Urban and Rural Urban and Rural Partially Consultation regarding the Draft
Land Use Strategy Land Use Strategy completed Gannowarro Urban Strategy occurred
review commenced during May-June 2023,

D
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m ere Achieve long-term financial and
environmental sustainability.

*Mes " Generate additional revenue through new energy
. infrastructure and commercially viable services.
Action

Measure Status Comments
Continue to implement Payment in Lieu  Increased income Completed  Another new PiLoR partner has been
of Rates (PiLoR) certified energy farms from PiLoR added and revenue opportunities are
across Gannawarra increasing.

B AN A A AN R RN AR NN A RSN E RN sassssnanns Pesassasanramanany R P

Active pursuit of grants to assist Number of grants Completed Council applied for 10 grants during

in delivery of Council’s capital and applied for versus 2022/23 - five of which are active

operational service delivery successful grants projects. The five other grants are

awaiting approval.

Develop a long-term business plan for Long Term Business  Completed  Business Plan completed late 2022,

Community Care Service provision Plan for Community with a decision to cease delivery of
Care Service Aged and Disability services made at
provision completed the June 2023 Council Meeting,

R R R R ) D P cenwny DETE RS P R derasnnes e

A = Carefully monitor expenditure to ensure value for
Sww PW Z . Mmoneyand monitor the long term financial plan to
maintain financial sustainability.
Action Measu

re Status Comments

Commence Rural Transformation Fund Project commenced Completed Project delivery has started. Tasks
Asset Management software partnership undertaken include completion of
project with Swan Hill Rural City Council Information Technology (IT) Platform
and Buloke Shire Council Strategy and Design documentation

for the software. The project is now

at procurement stage and the plan

is to complete procurement and

implementation stages during 2023/24.

- - Be a creative employer of choice through our adherence to
¢ good governance and our inclusive culture.
Action

Measure Status Comments

Implement the Gender Equality Number of actions Completed Two Gender Impact Assessments
Action Plan completed from completed. Human Resources (HR)
the Gender Equality system under review to collate gender
Action Plan composition requirements. Flexible
work arrangements in place. Training on
recruitment undertaken.

BrAssrasseunsay CERE LR Seshsesansaasa R R R ) sashresunnanny NessaNreeaRnwaran D
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o Support community resilience through climate adaptation,
SW PWM 4 , ctlean energy, environmental sustainability and waste
management programs.

Action Measure Status Comments

Continue to work with regional groups FOGO rollout plan Completed An implementation plan for FOGO
on the rollout of the Food Organics, developed in line throughout the municipality will be

Garden Organics (FOGO) system to with the Regional enacted in 2023/24. This plan will
reduce waste to landfill Plan detail delivery of the service and
future education and consultation
planning.
Continue to implement the Gannawarra  Community Completed In response to the October-December
Community Resilience Plan in Resilience Action 2022 floods, agencies came together
partnership with the Gannawarra Plan reviewed and to develop the Gannawarra Municipal
Community Resilience Committee to implemented Recovery Plan. Agencies which make
support the community through rural up the Gannawarra Community
change post COVID-19 pandemic Resilience Committee have started
implementing actions and will
continue to do so during 2023/24.
Develop Council’s Climate Change Climate Change Complete  Climate Adaptation and Mitigation

Adaptation and Mitigation Plan,
which considers impacts on health
and wellbeing

Adaptation Plan to
be completed

Strategy adopted at March 2023
Council Meeting.

.......................................... D R R R
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| doal (3ovemment: Performance
POty | riamem0ik

WHAT IS THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT
PERFORMANCE REPORTING
FRAMEWORK?

The Local Government Performance Reporting
Framework is a mandatory system of performance
reporting for all Victorian councils. It ensures that
councils are measuring and reporting on their
performance in a consistent way to promote

4\

\

transparency and accountability in the local
government sector.

The framework is made up of various measures from

a range of service areas, including roads, planning,
animal management and waste. It is complemented by
a Governance and Management checklist of 24 items,
which shows the policies, plans and procedures in place
at each council. Together, they build a comprehensive
picture of council performance.

ABOVE: Nine Chbdren’s Services staff compleﬁd their Certificate i and
Diploma of Early:.Childhood Education and Care during 2022)23.

AQUATIC FACILITIES

ANNUAL REPORT 53
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Provision of indoor and outdoor aquatic facilities to the community and visitors for wellbeing,

water safety, sport and recreation.

SERVICE PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

<R

Health inspections of aquatic
facilities

[Number of authorised officer
inspections of Council aquatic
facilities / Number of Council aquatic
facilities)

w
N
~

Utilisation of aquatic facilities 3.45

[Number of visits to aquatic
facilities / Municipal population]

Cost of aquatic facilities $1096 $12.31

[Direct cost of aquatic facilities
less income received / Number of
visits to aquatic facilities)

=)

w

Gannawarra Shire Council operates
one indoor aquatic and two outdoor
seasonal aquatic facilities. All three
facilities were inspected during the
reporting period

Utilisation of Council aquatic
facilities has increased by 18.47% in
2022/2023. The increase has come
after previous years of reduced
closures due to COVID-19 lockdowns
and staffing shortages.

2021/2022 incorrectly included
depreciation which was not a

direct cost. This has impacted the
consistency of figures to 2022/2023
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ANIMAL MANAGEMENT

Provision of animal management and responsible pet ownership services to the community including
monitoring, registration, enforcement and education.

SERVICE PERFORMAMNCE INDICATORS

Results Results Results  Results

2820 2021 w3 3033 Material Variations and Comments

Service/indicator/measure

Timeliness

Council Local Laws Officers continue
to respond to animal management
requests making it their priority.

Time taken to action animal " prio
1.74 2.14 2.96 1.96 The average response time is less

a t t .
anagement requests than two days and this shows
their commitment to helping the
community.
[Numnber of days between receipt

and first response action for all

animal management requests /

Number of animal management
requests)

A total of 282 animals were collected
by Council officers in 2022/23, of
which 113 were rehomed and 71
released back to their owners.

Animals reclaimed 19.66% 26.40% 29.85% 25.18%

[Numnber of animals reclaimed
/ Number of animals collected)
x100

A total of 282 animals were collected

by Council officers in 2022/23, of

which 113 were rehomed and 71
Animals rehomed 75.64% T79.20% 70.15% 40.07% released back to their owners.

There has been an increase in the

number of wild cats being trapped

which required destruction.

[Mumber of animals rehomed [/
Number of animals collected]
x100
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ANIMAL MANAGEMENT

Provision of animal management and responsible pet ownership services to the community including
monitoring, registration, enforcement and education.

SERVICE PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Results  Results

2020 2021 Material Variations and Comments

Service/indicator/measure

Service Cost

The cost of animal services was
reduced significantly due to staff

51002 59.54 510.26 5871 vacancies and reduced access to
areas due to the October-December
2022 floods.

Cost of animal management
service per population

[Direct cost of the animal
management service / Number of
registered animals)

Health and Safety

There were no animal management

Animal menagement prosecutions  0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% prosecutions in 2022/23.

[Number of successful animal
management prosecutions /
Number of animal management
prosecutions] x 100
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N\ ¢” FOOD SAFETY
\ Provision of food safety services to the community including registrations, education, monitoring,

inspections and compliance.

SERVICE PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Results Results  Results  Resuits

Service/indicator/measure 2020 2021 2022 2023

Timeliness

Time taken to action food complaints 0.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

[Number of days between receipt and first response action for all
food complaints / Number of food complaints]

Material Variations and
Comments

Council received a total
of four food complaints
in 2022/23 and all were
actioned within 24 hours,

Food safety assessments 100.00% 12.86%  100.00% 97.47%

[Number of registered class 1 food premises and class 2 food premises that receive
an annual food safety assessment in accordance with the Food Act 1984 / Number of

registered class 1 food premises and class 2 food premises that require an annual food

safety assessment in accordance with the Food Act 1984) x100

All registered Class

1 and Class 2 food
premises received annual
inspections. However,
two recently registered
Class 2 premises are yet
to receive their annual
inspections.

Cost of food safety service $305.08 $37857 $227.95 $256.12

[Direct cost of the food safety service / Number of food premises
registered or notified in accordance with the Food Act 1984]

An increase in the cost of
the food safety service is
attributed to an increase
in Environmental Health
Officer resources
directed to this service.

Critical and major non-compliance

outcome notifications 0.00% 100.00% 100.00% 0.00%

[Number of critical non-compliance outcome notifications and major non-compliance
notifications about a food premises followed up / Number of critical non-compliance
outcome notifications and major noncompliance notifications about a food premises]
x100

Council has implemented
a risk-based food safety
assessment approach to
achieve compliance. This
has led to a reduction

in major and critical
non-compliances and
there has been no non-
compliances in 2022/23.
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GOVERNANCE

Provision of good governance to the community including making and implementing decisions with
reference to community engagement, policy frameworks and agreed practice.

SERVICE PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Results Results Results Results Material Variations and

Servica/indicatorfmeasure 2020 2021 2022 2023  Comments

Transparency
There has been an increased
number of decisions made at
meetings closed to the public
during this reporting period.
2.94% 3.42% 2.94% 10.32%  These matters include
CEQ employment matters
and decisions regarding
the future of Council's
Community Care Services.

Council decisions made at meetings closed
to the public

[Number of Council resolutions made at Ordinary or Special Meetings of Council,
or at meetings of a special committee consisting only of Councillors, closed to the
public / Number of Council resolutions made at Ordinary or Special Meetings of
Council or at meetings of a special committee consisting only of Councillors] x100

The Community Satisifaction
Survey results showed
greater improvements in the
satisfaction of community
consultation over the past
few years and Council
remains committed to
working with and listening to
our communities.

Satisfaction with community consultation

43.00 56.00 46.00 49.00
ond engagement

Community satisfaction rating out of 100 with how Council has
performed on community consultation and engagement

A

I

There has been a slight
reduction in Councillor
attendance at Council
meetings.

Councillor attendarnce ot Council Meetings 91.21% 94.05% 98.90% 90.18%

[The sum of the number of Councillors who attended each Ordinary and Special
Council Meeting / (Number of Ordinary and Special Council Meetings) x (Number of
Councillors elected at the last Council general election)] x100
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<O GOVERNANCE

OUR PERFORMANCE

Provision of good governance to the community including making and implementing decisions with

“&————4 reference to community engagement, policy frameworks and agreed practice.

SERVICE PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Results Results Results Results
2020 2021 2022 2023

Servicefindicator/measure

Service Cost

543,818.96 53602055 541,335356 551,109.32

Cost of elected representation

[Direct cost of the governance service [ Number of Councillors
elected at the last Council general election]

Material Variations and
Comments

There has been a 23.65%
increase in the cost of
elected representation
since last year. This
increase is attributed to the
recruitment of the Chief
Executive Officer, increase in
Councillor allowance as per
the Victorian Independent
Remunderation Tribunal,
and increase in Councillor
training.

Satisfaction with Council decisions 39.00 55.00 46.00 48.00

Community satisfaction rating out of 100 with how Council has performed in
making decisions in the interest of the community

The Community Satisfaction
Survey showed increasing
satisfaction over the past
12 months with Council
decisions, and this remains
steady.
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LIBRARIES
Provision of print and digital based resources to the community in a variety of formats including
collection services, e-services, research tools and interactive learning programs.

SERVICE PERFORMAMNCE INDICATORS

Results Results Results Results Material Variations and

Servicefindicatorfmeasure 2020 2021 2022 2023 Tt "

Utilisation

The slight decrease in the
library collection usage can be
attributed to the period that
the library was closed due to
the floods and patrons were
also isolated from visiting
Council's library services.

Physical library collection usage 164 133 139 132

[Number of library collection item loans / Number of library collection items)
Resource Standard

There has been a slight increase

in purchasing new items for

the collection in 202223,
38.51% 3493% 32.17% 34.17%  Gannawarra library Serviceis

still committed to increase the

standard of its collection and

withdrawing older stock.

Recently purchased library collection

[Number of library collection items purchased in the last five years [/ Number of
library collection items] x100

Parti

i

There continues to be a
reduction in active library
borrowers which can still
be attributed to the closure
of library services across
Active library borrowers in municipality 16.65% 13.50% 11.47% 10.80% Gannawarra Shire during the
recent floods. Gannawarra
Library Service is committed to
increasing library membership
through advertising campaigns
across the municipality.

[Number of active library borrowers in the last three years / The sum of the
population for the last three years] x100

Service Cost

The increase tolibrary services
can be attributed to arise in
internal plant costs, cleaning
costs and anincrease to

Cost of library service per population 55465 55704 56136 $65.03  laborcosts. There wasalso
adelay of lease payments to
Quambatook, with two years
worth of rent paid were paidin
the one financial year.

[Direct cost of the library service / Population]
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MATERNAL AND CHILD HEALTH

Provision of universal access to health services for children from birth to school age and their families
0 O including early detection, referral, monitoring and recording of child health and development.

SERVICE PERFORMAMNCE INDICATORS

Results Results Results Results Material Variations and
2020 2021 2022 2023 Comments

Servicefindicator/measure

Service Standard

Infant enrolments in the
Maternal and Child Health
Infant enrolments in the MCH service 101.28% 101.02% 101.09% 105.62%  Services has remained
high, with a small increase
throughout 2023.

[Mumnber of infants enrolled in the MCH service (from birth notifications received) /
Number of birth notifications received] x100

Service Cost

There was an increase in cost
to operate the MCH Service
S81.64 58492 59236 510764 duetoanincrease in service
delivery and the use of casual
nurses to cover vacancies.

Cost of the MCH service

NOTE: Cost of the MCH service / Hours worked by MCH nurses

i

Participation in Maternal

and Child Health Service has

increased in 2023 as service
86.88% B8560% BO77% 8B.56% restrictions from previous

years have ceased and staff

have re-engaged with families

on a more regular basis.

Participation in the MCH service

[Mumnber of children who attend the MCH service at least once (in the year) /
Number of children enrclled in the MCH service] x100

i

Participation in the Maternal
and Child Health Service by
Aboriginal children increased
during 2023 as staff continue
to strengthen partnerships
with local Aboriginal services
to provide a safe environment
for all families to attend.

Participation in the MCH service by

Aboriginal children 10000% 97.37% 83.33% 95.56%

[Mumber of Aboriginal children who attend the MCH service at least once (in the
year) / Number of Aboriginal children enrolled in the MCH service] x100

i

Participation in the 4-week

Ptrrﬁn'p.a'_ﬁan in 4-week Key Age and 101.28% 94.90% 10543% 102.25% Key A_ge al_'ld Stage \risi'E
Stage wisit remains high and consistent
with the previous year.

[Number of 4-week key age and stage visits / Number of birth netifications received] x100
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ROADS

Provision of a network of sealed local roads under the control of the municipal council to all road users.

SERVICE PERFORMAMNCE INDICATORS

Results Results Results Results Material Variations and

Service/indicator/measure 2020 2021 2022 2023  Comments
Satisfaction of Use

Sealed local road requests has
increased by 35.68%, which in
particular is due to October-
December 2022 floods and
residents' concerns regarding

Sealed local road requests 9.21 12.67 36.85 50.00 the conditions of sealed roads.
Council is aware that residents
find it difficult to ascertain a
Council maintained road as
compared to roads maintained
by other authorities.

[Number of sealed local road requests / Kilometres of sealed local roads) x100
Condition

The length of sealed local
roads maintained to condition
standards has decreased
this year by 8.75% which is
primarily due to the recent
Sealed local roads maintained to condition floads during October-
standards 942% 9950% 0% 90.72% December 2022, Council is
reviewing deteriorated roads
on a case-by-case basis and
prioritising the works to
address the worst affected
roads as a priority.

[Number of kilometres of sealed local roads below the renewal intervention level
set by Council / Kilometres of sealed local roads] x100

Cost

I

Cost of road reconstruction
has increased due to the
increase in fuel which had a
flow on effect across all costs
associated with doing these
works,

Cost of sealed local road reconstruction 544,30 53746 53841 54251

[Direct cost of sealed local road reconstruction / Square metres of sealed local
roads reconstructed]

SERVICE PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
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OUR PERFORMANCE

ROADS

Provision of a network of sealed local roads under the control of the municipal council to all road users.

; Resuits Results Results Material Variations and
Service/indicator/measure 2021 2022 2023

Comments
Service Cost.

The cost of fuel has caused
an increase in the cost of

Cost of sealed local road resealing $5.42 $4.80 $4.52 $4.65 materials and equipment
required to complete
resealing works.

[Direct cost of sealed local road resealing / Square metres of sealed local roads
resealed]

Sealed local road requests

has increased by 35.68%,

which in particular is due

to the recent floods during

October-December 2022

and residents’ concerns
Satisfaction with sealed local roads 47.00 54.00 50.00 41.00 regarding the conditions

of sealed roads. Council is

aware that residents find it

difficult to ascertain a Council

maintained road as compared

to roads maintained by other

authorities.

[Community satisfaction rating out of 100 with how Council has performed on the
condition of sealed local roads]
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STATUTORY PLANNING

Provision of land use and development assessment services to applicants and the community including
advice and determination of applications.

SERVICE PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Material Variations
and Comments

Results Results Resulits Results

Service/indicator/measure 2020 2021 2022 2023
Timeliness

The time taken to
decide planning
applications has
remained steady.

Time taken to decide planning opplications  37.00 33.00 64.00 63.00

[The median number of days between receipt of a planning application and a decision on
the application]

Service Standard

Planning applications
decided within the

required time frames
has remained steady.

Planning applications decided within

) ) 88.52% 90.75% 64.75% 66.67%
required time frames

[(Number of regular planning application decisions made within 60 days) + (Number
of VicSmart planning application decisions made within 10 days) / Number of planning
application decisions made] x100

The cost of the
statutory planning
service increased
significantly due

to a complex VCAT
hearing which required
specialist legal
representation over
anumber of days. A
decision has not been
made on this appeal to
date.

Cost of statutory planning service $1,851.17 $1,533.56 $1,880.64 $2,553.27

[Direct cost of the statutory planning service / Number of planning applications received]
Decision Making

No VCAT decisions
were received during
the 2022/23 financial
year.

Council planning decisions upheld ot VCAT  0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

[Number of VCAT decisions that did not set aside Council’s decision in relation to a
planning application / Number of VCAT decisions in relation to planning applications] x100
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WASTE COLLECTION

Provision of kerbside waste collection service to the community including garbage and recyclables.

SERVICE PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Results Results Results Resuits Material Variations and

Servicefindicater/measure 2020 2021 2022 2023 et

There has been a significant
increase in bin collection
requests and enquiries from
573in 2021/22 t0 1,247 in
2022/23. This high number
of enquiries is mainly
attributed to extra waste
Kerbside bin collection requests 42.18 90.42 10718  230.84 collections requested during
the flood periods in October
and November 2022. During
these two months Council
received 486 enquiries. On
average, Council received
around 64 enquiries per
month during 2022/23.

[Number of kerbside garbage and recycling bin collection
requests / Number of kerbside bin collection households]
x1000

There has been a significant
increase in kerbside
collection bins being

missed. This is attributed

to the period of time when
Contractors could not access
properties due to the floods.

Kerbside collection bins missed 251 2,57 221 348

[Number of kerbside garbage and recycling collection bins
missed / Number of scheduled kerbside garbage and recycling
collection bin lifts] x10,000

Service Cost

The cost of kerbside garbage
bin collection has increased
significantly because of the
diversion of waste from
Cost of kerbside garbage bin collection council owned landfill to
service $6151 36558 57106  $10925 Patho Landfill (private
operator). Itis also noted
that the prior year did not
include EPA levies paid on
Council-owned landfills.

[Direct cost of the kerbside garbage bin collection service /
Number of kerbside garbage collection bins]

SERVICE PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
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WASTE COLLECTION

Provision of kerbside waste collection service to the community including garbage and recyclables.

Results Results Results Results Material Variations and

Service/indicatorfmeasure 2020 2021 2022 2023  Comments

The cost of kerbside recycling
collection service has gone
down due to reduction in

$41.97 $4211 $70.24  $51.56  tonnage. Itis also noted that
the prior year’s data included
tonnage received at the
transfer stations.

Cost of kerbside recyclables
collection service

[Direct cost of the kerbside recyclables bin collection service /
Number of kerbside recyclables collection bins]

The percentage of waste
from kerbside collection
being diverted from landfill

3715%  44.88% 3799% 36.50% has not changed materially
from that reported last
year and it continues to
remain steady.

Kerbside collection woste diverted
from landfill

[Weight of recyclables and green organics collected from
kerbside bins / Weight of garbage, recyclables and green
organics collected from kerbside bins] x100
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GC1

GC2

GC3

GC4

GCS

GCE

GC7

GCa

GCY

GC10

GC11

GC12

GC13

GC14
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GOVERMNAMNCE AND
MANAGEMENT ITEM

Community engagement policy

Community engagement
guidelines

Financial Plan

Asset Plan

Revenue and Rating Plan

Annual budget

Risk policy

Fraud policy

Municipal emergency
management plan

Procurement policy

Business continuity plan

Disaster recovery plan

Risk management framework

Audit and Risk Committee

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

DATE IF YES
[single item
date)

17/02/2021

17/02/2021

20/10/2021

15/06/2022

16/06/2021

28/06/2023

21/07/2021

18/05/2022

19/05/2020

15/12/2021

17/10/2022

31/03/2022

25/04/2022

19/08/2020

DATE IF YES
(multiple items/
dates)

QOUR PERFORMANCE

REASON FOR "'NO’
RESPONSE

GC15

GC16

GC17

GC1E

GC19

GC20

GC21

GC22

GC23

GC24

OUR PERFORMANCE

GOVERNAMCE AND

MANAGEMENT ITEM

Internal audit

Performance reporting
framework

Council Plan report

Quarterly budget reports

Risk reporting

Performance reporting

Annual report

Councillor Code of Conduct

Delegations

Meeting procedures
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DATE IF YES
[single item

DATE IF YES

dates)

NO

YES  6/12/2021

Council Report

VES  7/02/202 February 2023

Quarterly
Budget Report
Council Dates
16/11/2022,
15/02/2023,
17/05/2023

YES

Risk Reparts
to Council on
YES 19/10/2022,
15/03/2023,
28/06/2023

NO

YES  19/10/2022

YES  17/02/2021

YES  30/06/2023

YES  17/08/2022

(multiple items/

REASON FOR 'NO’
RESPONSE

An internal auditor
was appointed up

until December 2020.
Council has adopted

a more targeted
internal audit program
focussing on efficiency
and business gains.
Auditors are appointed
on an individual case
by case scenario based
on experience and
gualifications in the
relevant field of the audit.

Council does not
undertake six-monthly
reports due to resource
contraints.
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Pudiv And Risk

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

The Audit and Risk Committee’s role is to oversee and
monitor the effectiveness of Council in carrying out its
responsibilities for accountable financial management,
good corporate governance, maintaining an effective
system of internal control and risk management and
fostering an ethical environment.

Council’s five-member Audit and Risk Committee
consists of three independent members - John
Campbell, Laura Conti (from May 2023), Bradley Tarr
(July 2022 to March 2023) and Francis Crawley - and
two Councillor representatives, being Cr Charlie
Gillingham and Cr Garner Smith.

Independent members are appointed for a three-year
term. The Chair must be an independent member and
is elected by the committee.

The Audit and Risk Committee meets at least quarterly,
with five meetings held during 2022/23. The Victorian
Auditor-General’s Office (VAGO) audit service

provider and the Chief Executive Officer and Director
Corporate Services are invited to attend all Audit

and Risk Committee meetings. Other management
representatives attend as required to present reports.

Recommendations and outcomes from each Audit and
Risk Committee meeting are subsequently reported to
and considered by Council.

INTERNAL AUDIT

Council’s internal audit function provides independent
and objective assurance to the Audit and Risk
Committee that appropriate processes and controls are
in place across Council.

Since 2020, the approach for the internal audit function
has changed to focus on strategic business reviews. An
annual internal audit plan was developed for 2022/23,
with the focus being on the following reviews:

* Operational Services review

* Plant and Fleet utilisation

* Fringe Benefits Tax (FBT)

» Long Day Care Business Review

* Asset Valuations

OUR PERFORMANCE

Management

EXTERNAL AUDIT

Council is externally audited by the Victorian Auditor-
General’s Office (VAGO). The annual external audit

of Council’s Financial Statements and Performance
Statement for 2022/23 was conducted by the VAGO
appointed audit service provider, RSD Audit.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Council officers continue to encourage and provide
support for proactive and embedded risk management
throughout the organisation.

During 2022/23, Council’s Audit and Risk Committee
received four Risk Management Reports, in accordance
with Council’s Risk Management framework (Council
Opportunity and Risk Evaluator — CORE).

No CORE assessments were undertaken however
several risk assessments were undertaken prior to the
addition of each project to the Capital Works Program
during preparation of Council’s proposed 2023/24
Budget.

Council’s Business Continuity Plan was activated once
during 2022/23. Regular reviews were undertaken on
both the Plan and department sub-plans.

OUR PERFORMANCE
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Stavtuory [nfomption

The following information is provided in accordance with
legislative and other requirements applying to Council.

DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR
PUBLIC INSPECTION

The following prescribed documents were available
for public inspection, or copies of the documents were
able to be obtained at 47 Victoria Street, Kerang:

* A document containing details of overseas or
interstate travel (other than interstate travel by land
for less than three days) undertaken in an official
capacity by any Councillor or member of Council staff
in the previous 12 months.

* Agendas for, and minutes of, Council Meetings other
than those agendas and minutes relating to part of a
meeting which was closed to members of the public
under the Act and are confidential information within
the meaning of Section 3(1) of the Act.

* A register of delegations including the date on which
the last review took place.

* A document containing details of all leases involving
land which were entered into by the Council as lessor,
including the lessee and the terms and the value of
the lease.

* A register of authorised officers appointed under
that section.

* A list of donations and grants made by the Council in
the previous 12 months, including the names of
persons who, or bodies which, have received a donation
or grant and the amount of each donation or grant.

BEST VALUE

Council is committed to the principles of the Business
Excellence Framewaork, which is an integrated leadership
and management system that describes the elements
essential to sustainable organisational excellence.

The objective of Business Excellence is to use

quality management principles and tools in business
management with the goal of improving performance
based on customer focus, stakeholder value and process
management. Council has integrated these principles
into its everyday organisational environment.

Council adopted the Growing Gennowarra - 2021-2025
Council Plan to define the goals of the organisation over
a four-year period as required by the Local Government
Act 2020. The Growing Gannawarra - 2021-2025 Council
Plan contains three goals, each featuring strategic
priorities and success measures:

* Liveability

* Growth

* Sustainability

Council progressively monitors the provision of best
practice service against success indicators using
reports provided by the Executive Leadership Team.
Shortfalls against these indicators can then be seen
as areas for improvement,

CARERS RECOGNITION

In accordance with the Carers Recognition Act 2012,

Council is required to report annually on its care

measurement obligations under Section 11 of that Act.

Council has taken all practicable measures to comply

with its responsibilities outlined in the Carers

Recognition Act 2012. Council has promoted the

principles of that Act to people in care relationships

who receive Council services, to people in care

relationships, and to the wider community by:

» Facilitating a monthly Carers Group;

* Recognising National Carers Week;

 Providing respite services to carers;

» Distributing information through Council services and
community newsletters; and

* Working in partnership with other organisations and
community groups.

CONTRACTS

Council invited tenders or sought Expressions of Interest
under its Procurement Policy for the following tenders

during 2022/23:
Quarry Expansion Feasibility $79,016
Study
Kangaroo Lake Jetty Upgrade $283,438
Kerang Stormwater Pump Upgrade $245,702

Kerang Children's Centre / Cohuna
Preschool Outdoor Playspace $387,978
Redevelopment

Flood Recovery Works - Roads,
Drainage and Associated Works

Kerang CBD Upgrade — Stage 3 $2,312,179
External Project Manager Services Schedule of Rates

Schedule of Rates

Pavement/Kerb/Infrastructure To be awarded
Condition Assessment in 2023/24

Wet & Dry Plant Hire and Civil Works  Schedule of Rates
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DISABILITY ACTION PLAN

In accordance with Section 38 of the Disability

Act 2006, Council is required to report on the
implementation of its Disability Action Plan in the
Annual Report.

During 2022/23, Council continued enacting its Socia/
Inclusion Strategy 2019-2023, which was adopted by
Council in February 2019. This strategy is Council’s
commitment to reducing barriers for groups most

at risk of being excluded from the community. This
includes those with disability, who are culturally

or linguistically diverse, who are Indigenous, who
identify as LGBTIQ#+, young people, older people

and community members facing socio-economic
disadvantage.

The strategy was developed with input from the
community, service providers and Council staff. It
incorporates an implementation plan with actions to
be completed across the life of the strategy.

DOMESTIC ANIMAL
MANAGEMENT PLAN

In accordance with the Domestic Animals Act 1994,
Council is required to prepare and implement a
Domestic Animal Management Plan (DAM Plan) every
four years, and evaluate its implementation in the
Annual Report.

Highlights during 2022/23 include:

» Working with local veterinary clinics to encourage
responsible pet ownership; and

» Continued rehousing of surrendered domestic
animals the community could no longer care for.

FOOD ACT MINISTERIAL
DIRECTIONS

In accordance with Section 7€ of the Food Act 1984,
Council is required to publish a summary of any
Ministerial Directions received during the financial year
in its Annual Report,

No Ministerial Directions were received by Council
during 2022/23,

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION

The Freedom of Information Act 1982 provides
individuals and organisations with a general right
of access to information held by the Gannawarra
Shire Council. It also provides a right of appeal to
the Victorian Information Commissioner to review
decisions to refuse access to information.

Requests for access to information under the Freedom
of Information Act 1982 should be lodged on the

FOI application form and sent to the Freedom of
Information Officer, Gannawarra Shire Council, PO Box
287, Kerang VIC 3579.

OUR PERFORMANCE

Whilst several requests for documents were received,
there were no valid Freedom of Information requests
received during 2022/23.

PROTECTED DISCLOSURE
PROCEDURES

In accordance with Section 69 of the Protected
Disclosure Act 2012, a Council must include in its Annual
Report information about how to access the procedures
established by the Council under Part 9 of that Act. It is
also required to provide certain information about the
number and types of protected disclosure complaints
investigated during the financial year.

The Protected Disclosure Act 2012 aims to ensure
openness and accountability in government by
encouraging people to disclose improper conduct
within the public sector and provide protection for
people who make disclosures. Procedures on how

to make a disclosure are outlined in Policy No. 107 -
Public Interest Disclosure, which is publicly available on
Council’s website,

During 2022/23, no disclosures were notified to
Council officers appointed to receive disclosures, or

to the Independent Broad-based Anti-corruption
Commission (IBAC).

ROAD MANAGEMENT ACT
MINISTERIAL DIRECTION

In accordance with Section 22 of the Road Management
Act 2004, a Council must publish a copy or summary of
any Ministerial direction in its Annual Report.

No Ministerial Directions were received by Council
during 2022/23.

INFRASTRUCTURE AND
DEVELOPMENT CONTRIBUTIONS

In accordance with Section 46GM and 46QD of the
Planning and Environment Act 1987, a Council that

is a collecting or development agency must prepare
and give a report to the Minister for Planning on
infrastructure and development contributions including
levies and works in kind. The report must be published
in a Council’s Annual Report.

No infrastructure and development contributions were
received by Council in 2022/23.
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Certification of the Financial Statements

In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Local Government Act
2020, the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020, the Australian Accounting Standards and other
mandatory professional reporting requirements.

q basse I8 ‘*F:j

Shana Johnny, CPA
Principal Accounting Officer

Dated : 25 September 2023

Kerang

In our opinion the accompanying financial statements present fairly the financial fransactions of Gannawarra Shire
Council for the year ended 30 June 2023 and the financial position of the Council as at that date.

At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances that would render any particulars in the financial
statements to be misleading or inaccurate.

We have been authorised by the Council and by the Local Gavernment (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020 to
certify the financial statements in their final form.

Charlie Gillingham

Councillor

Dated : 25 September 2023
Kerang

S

L -\ ‘—é’g

Garner Smith

Councillor

Dated : 25 September 2023
Kerang

E [

Geoff Roflinson

Chief Executive Officer

Dated : 25 September 2023
Kerang

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent Auditor’s Report

GANNAWARRA SHIRE COUNCIL

VAGO

Victorian Auditor-General's Office

To the Councillors of Gannawarra Shire Council

Opinion

Basis for
Opinion

Councillors’
responsibilities
for the
financial

report

| have audited the financial report of Gannawarra Shire Council (the council) which
comprises the:

. balance sheet as at 30 June 2023

» comprehensive income statement for the year then ended

. statement of changes in equity for the year then ended

. statement of cash flows for the year then ended

. statement of capital works for the year then ended

- notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies
* certification of the financial statements.

In my opinion the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the council as at 30 June 2023 and their financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with the financial reporting requirements of Part 4 of
the Local Government Act 2020, the Local Government (Planning ond Reporting)
Regulations 2020 and applicable Australian Accounting Standards.

I have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1994 which incorporates the
Australian Auditing Standards. | further describe my responsibilities under that Act and
those standards in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section
of my report.

My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. My staff and | are
independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting
Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in Victoria. My
staff and | have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

The Councillors of the council are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, the Local
Government Act 2020 and the Local Government (Flanning and Reporting] Regulations
2020, and for such internal contral as the Councillors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation and fair presentation of a financial report that is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the Councillors are responsible for assessing the council’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless it is inappropriate to do so.

Level 31 / 35 Collins Strest, Malbourne Vie 3000
T 03 8601 7000 engquines@audit vic.gov.au  www.audil vic.gov.ou
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Auditor's
responsibilities
for the audit of
the financial
report

MELBOURNE
3 October 2023

As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial
report based on the audit. My objectives for the audit are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstaternent when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

- identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

L obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the council's internal control

. evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Councillors

. conclude on the appropriateness of the Councillors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the council’s ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
maodify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
council to cease to continue as a going concern.

- evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with the Councillors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the awdit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that | identify during my audit.

g

Travis Derricott
as delegate for the Auditor-General of Victoria
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Comprehensive Income Statement
For the Year Ended 30 June 2023
Note 2023 2022
§'000 §'000

Income/Revenue
Rates and charges 3 14,558 13,935
Statutory fees and fines 32 396 409
User fees 33 2,795 2,910
Grants - operating 3.4 17,543 10,924
Grants - capital 34 3,074 7,552
Contributions - monetary 35 kT a0
Met gain (or loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 36 254 360
Other income 37 4,835 4432
Total income/revenue 43,492 40,612
Expenses
Employee costs 41 19,211 17,374
Materials and services 42 10,962 8,620
Depreciation 43 7,075 6,381
Bad and doubtful debls - allowance for impairment losses 44 133 176
Borrowing cosls 45 13 18
Other expenses 46 314 303
Total expenses 37,708 32,872
Surplus for the year 5,784 7,740
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to surplus or deficit in future periods
Met asset revaluation increment 6.1 31,901 27,642
Total other comprehensive result 31,901 27,642
Total comprehensive result 37,685 35,382

The above comprehensive income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and ofther receivables
Other financial assets
Inventories

Prepayments

Other assels

Total current assets

Non-current assets

Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment

Invesiment property
Total non-current assets
Total assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Trust funds and deposits
Provisions

Uneamed income
Interest-bearing liabilities
Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Provisions

Interest-bearing liabilities
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets

Equity

Accumulated surplus
Revaluation Reserves
Total Equity

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2023

Note

51(a)
5.11(c)
5.11(b)
5.2 (a)
52(b)
5.2(b)

6.1
6.2

5.3(a)
53 (b)
55
53(c)
54

5.5
54

9.1

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2023 2022
$'000 $'000
16,071 13,110
3,322 2,961
12,147 5,709
378 356
249 277
195 22
32,362 22,435
277,721 247 644
1,030 1,030
278,751 248,674
311,113 271,109
2,507 1,391
430 559
6,138 3,707
5,246 5,466
102 95
14,423 11,218
710 1,494
53 155
763 1,649
15,186 12,867
295,927 258,242
108,108 102,325
187,818 155,917
295,927 258,242
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 30 June 2023

2023

Balance at beginning of the financial year
Surplus for the year

Net asset revaluation increment

Balance at end of the financial year

2022

Balance at beginning of the financial year
Surplus for the year

Net asset revaluation increment

Balance at end of the financial year

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Note

6.1

Accumulated Revaluation
Total Surplus Reserve
$'000 $'000 $'000
258,242 102,325 156917
5,784 5,784 -
31,801 - 31,901
295,927 108,109 187,818
Accumulated Revaluation
Total Surplus Reserve
$'000 $'000 $'000
232 860 94,585 128,275
7,741 7,740 -
27,642 27,642
258,242 102,325 155,917
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2023 2022
Inflows/ Inflows/
(Outflows) (Outflows)
Note $'000 $'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Rates and charges 14,115 13,860
Statutory fees and fines 396 409
User fees 2956 2913
Grants - operating 17,763 11,191
Grants - capilal 2,634 8,982
Contributions - monetary 37 0
Interest received 330 15
Net trust funds and deposits taken/{repaid) (129) (253)
Other receipts 4332 4,400
Net GST refund/(payment) (81) (187)
Employee costs (17.537) (17,219)
Materials and services (9,865) (8,403)
Other payments (446) {303)
Net cash provided by operating activities 92 14,505 15,495
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 6.1 (5.955) (12,235)
Proceeds from sale of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 960 670
Purchase of investments (7.937) (3,206)
Proceeds from sale of invesiments 1,500 -
Net cash used in investing activities (11,432) (14,771)
Cash flows from financing activities
Finance cosls (13) (18)
Repayment of borrowings (95) (106)
Net cash used in financing activities {108) (124)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,964 600
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 13,110 12,510
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 16,074 13,110
Financing arrangements 5.6 255 350

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Capital Works
For the Year Ended 30 June 2023
Note 2023 2022
$'000 $'000
Property
Land 268
Land improvements 111 91
Total land m 359
Buildings 699
Building improvements 284 100
Total buildings 284 799
Total property 394 1,158
Plant and equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment 315 663
Fixtures, fittings and furniture 32 106
Computers and telecommunications 229 103
Library books 111 96
Total plant and equipment 687 969
Infrastructure
Roads 2,528 2442
Footpaths and cycleways 747 1,132
Kerb and channel 223 128
Drainage 547 1,490
Recreational, leisure and community facilities 28 1,571
Wasle management - 123
Parks, open space and streetscapes 730 3128
Other infrastructure 83 121
Total infrastructure 4,897 10,137
Total capital works expenditure 5,979 12,264
Represented by:
New asset expenditure 759 5,140
Asset renewal expenditure 4,669 5,163
Asset expansion expenditure 186 1,106
Asset upgrade expenditure 366 855
Total capital works expenditure 5,979 12,264

The above statement of capital works should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Note 1 OVERVIEW

Introduction

The Gannawarra Shire Council was established by an Order of the Governor in Council on 20 January 1995 and is a body
corporate.

The Council's main office is located at 47 Victoria Street, Kerang,

Statement of compliance

These financial statements are a general purpose financial report that consists of a Comprehensive Income Statement,
Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows, Statement of Capital Works and Notes
accompanying these financial statements. The general purpose financial report complies with the Australian Accounting
Standards (AAS), other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, the Local

Government Act 2020, and the Local Government {Planning and Reporiing) Requlations 2020.
The Council is a not-for-profit entity and therefore applies the additional AUS paragraphs applicable to a not-for-profit

entity under the Australian Accounting Standards.

Significant accounting policies

1.1 Basis of accounting

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial information satisfies
the concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying transactions or other
evenls is reported. Accounting policies applied are disclosed in sections where the related balance or financial statement
malter is disclosed.

The accrual basis of accounting has been used in the preparation of these financial statements, except for the cash flow
information, whereby assels, liabiliies, equity, income and expenses are recognised in the reporting period to which they
relate, regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The financial statements are based on the historical cost convention unless a different measurement basis is specifically
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Judgements, estimates and assumptions are required to be made about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated judgements are based on professional
judgement derived from historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The financial statements are in Australian dollars.
The amounts presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars unless otherwise
specified. Minor discrepancies in tables between totals and the sum of components are due to rounding.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and also in fulure periods
that are affected by the revision, Judgements and assumptions made by management in the application of AAS's that
have significant effects on the financial statements and estimates relate to:

- the fair value of land, buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment {refer to Nole 6.1)

- the determination of depreciation for buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (refer to Note 6.1)

- the determination of employee provisions (refer to Note 5.5)

- the determination of landfill provisions (refer to Note 5.5)

- the determination of whether performance obligations are sufficiently specific so as to determine whether an
arrangement is within the scope of AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers or AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-
Profit Entities (refer to Note 3).
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Unless otherwise stated, all accounting policies are consistent with those applied in the prior year. Where appropriate,
comparalive figures have been amended to accord with current presentation, and disclosure has been made of any
material changes to comparatives.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Income and expenses are recognised net of the amount of associated GST. Receivables and payables are stated
inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the
taxation authority is included with other receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

1.2 Impact of Covid-19

During 2022-23 the COVID-19 pandemic continued to impact on Council's operations. Council has noted the following
significant impacts on its financial operations:

* Additional Revenue include

Community services grants of $102k. Uneamed grant at 30 June 2023 of $86k.
Infrastructure stimulus capital grants of $1.330m. Uneamed grant at 30 June 2023 of $272k.
The infrastructure stimulus grants were for projects carried forward into 2022/23.

* Additional costs -
COVID-19 grant funding has been offset by expenditure to provide additional services.

* Asset Valuations -

Council has revalued the following classes of assets - roads, bridges, footpaths & cycleways, kerb & channel and
drainage. The unit rates for construction of these classes of assets have increased significantly in 2022/23. The abnormal
increase can be attributed to the construction-led COVID 19 recovery which has caused shortage of contractors,
construction materials and other factors affecting the unit cost.
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Note 2 ANALYSIS OF OUR RESULTS
Note 2.1 Performance against budget

The performance against budget notes compare Council's financial plan, expressed through its annual budget, with
actual pedformance. The Local Government {Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020 requires explanation of any
material variances. Council has adopted a materiality threshold on the variance of higher of 10 percent and $50k where
further explanation is warranted. Explanations have not been provided for variations below the materiality threshold
unless the variance is considered to be material because of its nature.

These notes are prepared to meet the requirements of the Local Government Act 2020 and the Local Government
(Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020 .

2.1.1 Income |/ Revenue and expenditure Budget Actual

2023 2023 Variance Variance

$000 $'000 $'000 % Ref
Income/Revenue
Rates & Charges 14,312 14,558 246 2% 1
Slatutory fees and fines 308 396 (2) 1%
User fees 3,861 2,795 (1,066) -28% 2
Grants - operaling L | 17,543 8,213 88%
Grants - capital 8,679 3,074 (5,604) 65% 4
Contributions - monelary 43 37 (6) -14%
Met gain/{loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure,
plant and equipment 801 254 (547) -68% 5
Other income 4,492 4,835 343 8% 6
Total incomelrevenue 41,917 43,493 1,576 4%
Expenses
Employes costs 18,152 19,211 {1,059) -6%
Materials and services 9,326 10,962 {1,637) -18% 8
Depreciation 6,593 7.075 (483) -T%
Bad and doubtful debts-allowance for impairment
losses - 133 (133) -100% 10
Borrowing costs 14 13 2 12%
Other expenses 310 315 (5) 1%
Total expenses 34,396 37,710 (3,314) -10%
Surplus for the year 7521 5,784 (1,738) -23%

(i) Explanation of material variations
1 Rates & Charges

Supplementary valuations processed during the year and additional bin services have generated additional rates
income ($257k). The supplementary valuations included substantial increase in Capital Improved Value (CIV) on
Kerang substation instigated by the Valuer General's office generating a higher than budgeted rates income ($122k).
Decrease in budgeted Payment in Lieu of Rates (PILOR) from Horfield solar farm yet to commence operation ($42k).
Interest on rates has been higher than expected ($32k).

User fees

The decrease in user fees is attributed to a number of reasons -

a. Reduction in user fees from children's services due to -

* Loss of income due to the impact of the flood on attendance and closures due to staff absences ($170k).

* Reduced fees due to kindergartens being fully subsidised by the State Government from Jan 2023 ($170k)-offset
by grants.

b. Reduction in landfill fees due to the closure of the Council's landfill to the public ($127k).

¢. Reduction in community care services user fees due to reduced client service hours on account of staff
vacancies/shortages and delivery of services during the flood period ($76k).

d. Budgeted intemnal allocation of cleaning costs across the organisation has been removed al year end ($466k).
Grants - operating

The increase in operating grants is attributed to a number of reasons -

a. Advance payment of 2023/24 Victoria Grants Commission annual allocation ($3.97m).

b. $4.93m flood assistance grants received from the State and Federal Governments - $2.25m has been spent to 30
June 2023. $4.93m is treated as income eamed in line with the accounting standards.

¢. Additional Commonwealth Home Support Program (CHSP) funding offset by additional costs ($255k).

d. Additional children's services grants to deliver the State Government new initiatives i.e. free kinder ($170k).

This increase is offset by reclassification of Roads to Recovery allocation ($1.06m) to capital grants.

Grants - Capital

Roads to recovery allocation ($1.06m) has been reclassified as capital grants.

The decrease is due to capital grants received being recognised as uneamed grants in line with the actual spend on
these projects ($4.49m). Completion of a number of projects have been deferred to 2023/24 due to delays as a
result of the Oct/Nov 2022 floods.

Net gain/{loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment

Variance relates to unsold industrial estate blocks (6 out of the 11 Kerang Industrial Estate blocks were sold in
2022/23) and the impact of revaluation of Council land & buildings class of assets in 2021/22.

There have also been delays in the delivery of vehicles.

Other Income

Increase is primarily due to additional interest on investments ($462k). At the time of the adoption of the Budget
2022/23, the cash rate was 0.85%. Cash rate at 30 June 2023 was 4.10%.

Other increases in other income include -

* NDIS Incentive payment for staff COVID booster vaccinations (100k).

* Reimbursement on LED street lights transformation project ($97k).

* Workcover reimbursements - offset by additional costs ($78k).

* Debt collection costs on unpaid rates ($197k). These have been linked fo relevant ratepayers.

* Reimbursement from the Department of Education for children's services trainees (41k).

This increase has been offset by a reduction in community care services (NDIS & Brokered Programs)
reimbursements due to reduced client service hours on account of staff vacancies/shortages during the year and
delivery of services during the flood period ($623k).
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7 Employee costs
There have a number of increases and decreases within this category of expenditure. The increases include -
* Major increase relates to provision for redundancies when Community Care Services exit by 31 Oct 2023 (31.3m).

The cash outflow will occur in November 2023.
* Higher than anticipated Workcover premiums ($66k).

* Back pay of superannuation and accrual of leave entitlements on overtime hours worked by permanent part fime
(rostered) employees which should have been treated as ordinary time eamings. This payment affects community

care workers and cleaning staff and is back dated to 1 July 2017 ($333k).

Saving due to temporary staff vacancies partly due to secondment to higher positions or flood related positions
during the year are partly offset by contractors & consultant fees. Flood related employee cosls are expected to be

recouped via flood claims and acquittal process.

8 Materials and services
The increase primarily relates to flood related works ($1.79m) which is expected to be recouped via flood claims and

acquittal process. Other increases include -
* Additional waste management costs e.g. additional green waste mulching ($190k).

* As mentioned above, debt collection costs on unpaid rates ($197k). These have been linked to relevant ratepayers.
Budgeted intemal allocation of cleaning costs across the organisation has been removed at year end (3466k).

9 Depreciation
Depreciation for 2022/23 is higher than budgeted as a result of the infrastructure revaluations as at 30 June 2022,

10 Bad and Doubtful debts

The provision for bad and doubtful debis has been increased as per estimation of doubtful debt that may need to be
written off.
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2.1.2 Capital works Budget Actual

2023 2023 Variance Variance

£'000 $'000 $'000 % Ref
Property
Land improvements 40 111 71 176% 1
Total land 40 11 Ial 176%
Buildings 1,847 - (1,847) -100% 2
Building improvements 160 284 124 % 3
Total buildings 2,007 284 {1,723) -86%
Total property 2,047 304 (1,653) -81%
Plant and equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment 608 35 (293) 48% 4
Fixtures, fittings and furniture - 32 32 100%
Computers and telecommunications 395 229 (166) 42% 5
Library books 140 111 (29) -20%
Total plant and equipment 1,143 687 (456) -40%
Infrastructure
Roads 4,856 2,528 (2,328) -48% 6
Footpaths and cycleways 3,001 747 (2,344) -T6% 7
Kerb and channel 156 223 67 43% 8
Drainage 200 547 347 174% 9
Recreational, leisure and community facilities 120 28 {92) TT% 10
Parks, open space and streetscapes 2,050 730 {1,320} 4% 11
Other infrastructure 364 93 (271) -T4% 12
Total infrastructure 10,837 4,897 {5,940} -55%
Total capital works expenditure 14,027 5,979 {8.048) 57%
Represented by:
Mew asset expenditure 5192 759 (4,433) -85%
Asset renewal expenditure 5,361 4,668 (692) -13%
Asset expansion expenditure 1,365 186 {1,179} -86%
Asset upgrade expenditure 2,109 366 (1,742) -83%
Total capital works expenditure 14,027 5,979 {8.048) -57%

Item 7.4- Attachment 1

Page 73



Council Meeting Agenda

18 October 2023

88

AMNUAL REPORT
GANMAWARRA SHIRE COUNCIL

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2023

(i) Explanation of material variations

1

10

Land Improvements
Mew Gravel Pit Geotechnical Investigation tender was higher than budgeted.
Buildings

The following projects budgeted under this category have been moved into the building improvements asset class -

The Glasshouse, Cohuna Preschool Outdoor Space Redevelopment, Gannawarra Shire Children's Centre
Qutdoor Space Redevelopment.

Building Improvements

The variance relates to the above mentioned movement from buildings to building improvement class of assets.
These grants funded projects are multi-year projects with underspent budgets to be camied forward into 2023/24 to
facilitate completion.

Plant, machinery and equipment
Global supplies of plant & machinery has been impacted due to COVID-19. Part of this program has been deferred
due to supply constraints.

Computers and telecommunications
Variance relales to the delivery of the ICT Joint Council Asset Management Software project being deferred to
2023/24.

Roads
Kerang CBD improvements were primarily works on footpaths and has been moved into the footpaths class of

assels. Remaining unspent funds have been earmarked for the continuation of the Kerang CBD works and other
roads projects that were delayed due to the floods in Oct/Mov 2022 and is part of carried forward funds.

Footpaths and cycleways

Decrease relates (o the budgeted Kerang to Koondrook rail trail project ($2.2m) which has not been successful in
receiving grant funding. The Kerang to Koondrook rail frail design project is progressing with unspent funds to be
carried forward into 2023/24 to facilitate its completion, This decrease has been partly offset by Kerang CBD
improvements being moved to the footpaths class ($486k).

Kerb and Channel
Part of works on roads included kerb & channel works that have been capitalised in this asset class.

Drainage
The increase relates to continuation of the 2021/22 projects - Murrabit Stormwater (Stages 5 & 6) and Stormwater
Metwork and Town Pump renewal project.

Recreational, leisure and community facilities
Renewal works at the swimming pool are ongoing.
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1

12

Parks, open space and streetscapes

The variance relates to carried forward works on the multiyear projects - Sustainable Recrealional Water for
Quambatook and Kangaroo Lake West Recreational Access Redevelopment. Remaining unspent funds have
been earmarked and is part of carried forward funds.

Other Infrastructure

The variance relates to camied forward works on the mulliyear projects - Koondrook Levee. Remaining unspent
funds have been earmarked and is part of carried forward funds.
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Note 2.2 Analysis of Council results by program
Council delivers its funclions and activities through the following programs.

2.2.1 Programs

Liveability

To achieve our objective of Liveability, the following are our strategic priorities:

1. Improve the health, safety and wellbeing of our community through partnerships, services and programs.

2. Build unigue transformafional infrastructure that enhances liveability and passive and aclive recreation.

3. Construct a regional community wellbeing centre.

4. Respond to key community needs through innovative, commercially focused services including aged care and early
childhood services.

Growth

To achieve our objective of Growth the following are our strategic pricrities:

1. Facilitate infrastructure, programs and policies that support economic development and productivity, whilst considering
our natural environment.

2. Faciltate the implementation of new energy infrastructure and energy projects.

3. Advocate for improvements in digital connectivity and services.

4, Support the creation of destinations in the Gannawarra to altract visitors to our region.

5. Continue to support existing agriculture and facilitate diversification to improve regional productivity through sustainable
planning.

6. Support growth through land rezoning for future rural residential development opportunities.

Sustainability

To achieve our objective of Sustainability, the following are our strategic priorities:

1. Generate additional revenue through new energy infrastructure and commercially viable services.

2. Carefully monitor expenditure to ensure value for money and monitor our long term financial plan to maintain financial
sustainability.

3. Be a creative employer of choice through our adherence to good govemnance and our inclusive culture.

4. Support community resilience through climate adaptation, clean energy, environmental sustainability and waste
management programs.

Rates and charges
To achieve a fair and equitable distribution of rates across all rating categories.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2023

ANNUALREPORT 91
GANNAWARRA SHIRE COUNCIL

2.2.2 Summary of incomelrevenues, expenses, assets and capital expenses by program

2023

Liveability

Growth

Sustainability

Rates And Charges
Victoria Grants Commission

2022

Liveability

Growth

Sustainability

Rates And Charges
Victoria Grants Commission

Grants
included
in
Income/ income/  Total
Revenue Expenses Surplus revenue assets
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
17,771 25955  (8.184) 11,769 221856
1,311 2432 (1121) 40 7.037
1,215 9,322 (8,107) 170 82,220
14,558 - 14,558 - -
8,638 - 8,638 8,638 -
43,493 37,709 5784 20617 311,114
Grants
included
in
Incomef income/  Total
Revenue Expenses Surplus revenue  assets
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 £'000
15,866 22143 (6,277) 9456 201,262
1,103 1,801 (698) 60 9,097
2,140 8928  (6,788) 1,391 60,750
13,935 - 13,935 - -
7,568 - 7,568 7,568 -
40,612 32,872 7,740 18,475 271,109
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Note 3. Funding for the delivery of our services 2023 2022
3.1 Rates and charges £'000 §'000

Council uses Capital Improved Value (CIV) as the basis of valuation of all properties within the municipal district. The CIV
of a property is its value at which the unencumbered land might be expected to realise in an open market at the time of
the valuation.

The valuation base used to calculate general rates for 2022/23 was 52,621 million (2021/22 $1,989 million).
2022-2023  2021-2022
cenisinthe  cents in the

dollar dollar
General rates 0.004099 0.006019
Commercialfindustrial 0.005503 0.006415
Farm irrigation district 0.004131 0.005168
Farm dryland 0.002493 0.003879
Cultural and recreational 0.002495 0.003010
General rates 11,440 10,935
Municipal charge 651 648
Waste management charge 2,191 2,077
Interest on rates and charges 150 154
Revenue in lieu of rates 126 121
Total rates and charges 14,558 13,935

The date of the latest general revalualion of land for rating purposes within the municipal district was 1 January 2023, and
the valuafion will be first applied in the rating year commencing 1 July 2023.

Annual rates and charges are recognised as revenues when Council issues annual rates notices. Supplementary rates
are recognised when a valuation and reassessment is completed and a supplementary rates notice issued.

3.2. Statutory fees and fines

Animal control 98 93
Town planning and building control 295 308
Other 3 8
Total statutory fees and fines 396 409

Statutory fees and fines (including parking fees and fines) are recognised as revenue when the service has been
provided, the payment is received, or when the penally has been applied, whichever first occurs.

3.3. User fees 2023 2022
$'000 $'000
Aged and health services 284 295
Child carefchildren's programs 1,868 1,842
External Works 265 313
Hall hire 17 12
Health and preventative services 73 52
Library, arts and culture 9 6
Office services 26 K|
Recreation 129 113
Tourism 7 1"
Waste and environment &8 206
Other fees and charges 29 29
Total user fees 2,795 2,910

User fees by timing of revenue recognition
User fees recognised at a point in time 2,795 2910

Total user fees 2,795 2,910

User fees are recognised as revenue at a point in time, or over time, when (or as) the performance obligation is satisfied.
Recognition is based on the underlying contractual terms.
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3.4. Funding from other levels of government
Grants were received in respect of the following
Summary of grants

Commonwealth funded grants

State funded grants

Total grants received

(a) Operating Grants
Recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Financial Assistance Grants - unallocated
Financial Assistance Grants - local roads
Children and families
Aged Care
Recurrent - State Government
Libraries
Children and families
Heritage and culture
Preventalive services
Community services
Aged care
School crossings
Municipal emergency
Roadside weeds and pest control
Recreation
Cther
Total recurrent operating grants

Non-recurrent - Commonwealth Government
2022 Flood Assistance Grants

Non-recurrent - State Government

Working for Victoria

COVID Support

2022 Flood Assistance Grants

Other Non-Recurrent State

Total non-recurrent operating grants
Total operating grants

2023
$'000

13,909
6,709

2022
$'000

12,931
5,545

5,557 4,756
3,081 2812
40 ar
1,154 934
160 144
1,665 1,217
13 ]
102 50
18 K]
338 o7
30 25

60 73

68 68

3 22

40 46
12,329 10,578
2,037 -
- 153

- 60
2,893 -
284 133
5214 346
17,543 10,924
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(b) Capital Grants 2023 2022
Recurrent - Commonwealth Government $'000 $'000
Roads to recovery 1,056 1,357
Recurrent - State Government
Library 6 ]
Total recurrent capital grants 1,062 1,363
Non-recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Buildings . 460
Drainage 365 1,285
Recreation - 286
Parks and streetscapes 619 854
Community Resilience Support Program - 100
Non-recurrent - State Government
Land improvements 138 262
Building improvements 40 604
Recreation 346 1,799
Office equipment 19 7
Footpaths 134
Drainage 5] -
Waste management 23 100
Parks and streetscapes 217 432
Total non-recurrent capital grants 2,012 6,189

3,074 7,552

Total capital grants
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(c) Recognition of grant income

Before recognising funding from government grants as revenue the Council assesses whether there is a contract that is
enforceable and has sufficiently specific performance obligations in accordance with AASE 15 Revenue from Contracis
with Customers . When both these conditions are satisfied, the Council:

- idenlifies each performance obligation relating to revenue under the coniract/agreement

- determines the transaction price

- recognises a cantract liability for its obligations under the agreement

- recognises revenue as it salisfies its performance obligations, at the time or over time when services are rendered.
Where the contract is not enforceable andfor does not have sufficiently specific performance obligations, the Council
applies AASE 1058 Income for Not-for-Profit Entities .

Grant revenue with sufficiently specific performance obligations is recognised over time as the performance obligations
specified in the underlying agreement are met. Where performance obligations are not sufficiently specific, grants are
recognised on lhe earlier of receipl or when an unconditional right to receipt has been established. Granis relating to
capital projects are generally recognised progressively as the capital project is completed. The following table provides a
summary of the accounting framework under which grants are recognised.

2023 2022
Income recognised under AASE 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities $'000 $'000
General purpose 8,638 7,568
Specific purpose grants to acquire non-financial assets 3,074 1,552
Other specific purpose granis 5,579 779
Revenue recognised under AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Specific purpose grants 3,327 2,577

20,617 18,476

(d) Unspent grants received on condition that they be spent in a specific manner

Operating
Balance at start of year 395 128
Received during the financial year and remained unspent at balance date 589 396
Received in prior years and spent during the financial year (368) (128)
Balance at year end 617 395
Capital
Balance at start of year 5,070 3,639
Received during the financial year and remained unspent at balance date 1,025 5,070
Received in prior years and spent during the financial year (1,466) (3,639)
Balance at year end 4,630 5,070

3.5. Contributions 2023 2022

$'000 $'000
Monetary 37 90
Total contributions 37 90

Monetary contributions are recognised as revenue at their fair value when Council obtains control over the contributed
asset,

3.6. Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment

Proceeds of sale 960 670
Written down value of assets disposed (706) (310)
Total net gain/{loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 254 360

The profit or loss on sale of an asset is determined when control of the asset has passed to the buyer.

3.7. Other income

Interest 503 32
Investment property rental 289 263
Reimbursements - welfare and children's services 3,484 3,734
Reimbursements - garbage collection and recycling ] 15
Reimbursements - other 542 354
Other 17 34
Total other income 4,835 4432

Interest is recognised as it is eamed.
Other income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is recognised when Council
gains control over the right to receive the income.
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Note 4. The cost of delivering services
4.1. (a) Employee costs

Wages and salaries

WorkCover

Superannuation

Fringe benefils tax

Annual leave and long service leave
Other leave

Salaries capitalised

Redundancies

Other

Total employee costs

(b) Superannuation
Council made contributions to the following funds:

Defined benefit fund
Employer contributions to Local Authorities Superannuation Fund (Vision Super)

Employer contributions payable at reporting date.

Accumulation funds

Employer contributions to Local Authorities Superannuation Fund (Vision Super)
Employer contributions - other funds

Employer contributions payable at reporting date.

Total superannuation costs

2023 2022
$'000 $'000
12,442 12,560
353 390
1,712 1415
130 112
1,821 1,550
1,474 1,311
(179) (95)
1,300 -
157 131
19,211 17,374
43 43
43 43
877 759
792 612
1,668 1,371
1,712 1,414

Contributions made exclude amounts accrued at balance date. Refer to note 9.3 for further information relating to

Council’s superannuation obligations.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ANMNUAL REPORT q9
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For the Year Ended 30 June 2023
4.2. Materials and services 2023 2022
$'000 $'000
Operational materials 2,006 1,602
Operational services 4468 3mM3
Contract payments 655 340
Building maintenance 53 71
General maintenance 8 8
Utilities 364 361
Office administration 353 285
Information technology 567 505
Insurance 460 460
Consultants 1,111 591
Contributions 450 411
Bank charges 36 ¥
Other 430 236
Total materials and services 10,962 8,620
Expenses are recognised as they are incurred and reported in the financial year to which they relate.
4.3. Depreciation
Property
Land improvements 165 140
Buildings - non specialised 581 509
Building improvements 32 35
Total depreciation - property 779 684
Plant and equipment
Plant machinery and equipment 904 935
Computers and telecomms 239 243
Library books 80 74
Total depreciation - plant and equipment 1,223 1,252
Infrastructure
Roads 3,050 2,742
Bridges 272 252
Footpaths and cycleways 160 136
Drainage 298 259
Waste management 65 53
Recreation, parks and open spaces 558 420
Agrodromes 51 44
Kerb and channel 266 242
Other infrastructure 353 297
Total depreciation - infrastructure 5,073 4,445
Total depreciation 7,075 6,381

Refer to note 6.1 for a more detailed breakdown of depreciation charges and accounting policy.
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4.4. Bad and doubtful debts - allowance for impairment losses 2023 2022

$'000 $'000
Local laws 3 g9
Rates debtors 67 17
Other debtors 64 150
Total bad and doubtful debts - allowance for impairment losses 133 176

Movement in allowance for impairment losses in respect of debtors

Balance at the beginning of the year 548 372
MNew provisions recognised during the year 132 176
Amounts already provided for and written off as uncollectible (131) -
Balance at end of year 549 548

An allowance for impairment losses in respect of debtors is recognised based on an expected credit loss model. This
model considers both historic and forward looking information in determining the level of impairment.

4.5. Borrowing costs

Interest - Bomowings 13 18

Total borrowing costs 13 18

Borrowing cosls are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred, except where they are capitalised
as part of a qualifying asset constructed by Council.

4.6. Other expenses

Auditors' remuneralion - VAGO - audit of the financial statements, performance statement

and grant acquittals 50 5
Auditors' remuneration - Internal Audit 3 4
Councillors' allowances 238 221
Valuations 23 17
Election expenses - 1
Council plan - 2
Total other expenses 314 303

Note 5. Our financial position

5.1. Financial assets 2023 2022
(a) Cash and cash equivalents $'000 $'000
Cash on hand 3 2
Cash at bank 1,352 3,199
Term deposits 14,716 9,909
Total cash and cash equivalents 16,071 13,110
(b) Other financial assets

Current

Term deposits - current 12,147 5,709
Total current other financial assets 12,147 5,709
Total financial assets 28,217 18,819

Councils cash and cash equivalents are subject to external restrictions that limit amounts available for discrefionary use.
These include:

- Trust funds and deposits (Note 5.3) 430 559
Total restricted funds 430 559
Total unrestricted cash and cash equivalents 15,641 12,551

Intended allocations
Although not externally restricted the following amounts have been allocated for specific future purposes by Council:

- cash held to fund carried forward capital works T84 981
- cash held to fund camied forward community grants project 100 100
- Grant monies received but not yet expended 5,246 5,465
- Flood grant monies received but not yet expended 2,685 -
Total funds subject to intended allocations 8,815 6,546

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits at call, and other highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three manths or less, net of oulstanding bank overdrafts.

Other financial assets are valued at fair value, at balance date. Term deposits are measured at original cost. Any
unrealised gains and losses on holdings at balance date are recognised as either a revenue or expense.

Other financial assets include term deposits and those with original maturity dates of three to 12 months are classified as
current, whilst term deposits with maturity dates greater than 12 months are classified as non-current.
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(c) Trade and other receivables

Current
Statutory receivables
Rates debtors
Provision for doubtful debts - rates
Fire services debtor levy
Net GST receivable
Infringement debtors
Provision for doubtful debts - infringements
Non statutory receivables
Other debtors
Provision for doubtful debts - other debtors
Provision for doubtful debts - NDIS
Total current trade and other receivables

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2023
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2023 2022
$'000 $'000
2,499 2,056
(357) (290)
326 301
268 187
39 40
(39) (36)
740 925
(130) (69)
(23) (153)
3,322 2,961

Short term receivables are carried at invoice amount. A provision for doubtful debts is recognised when there is objective

evidence that an impairment has occurred. Long term receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective

interest rate method.

(d) Ageing of Receivables

The ageing of the Council's trade and other receivables (excluding statutory receivables) that are not impaired was:

Current (not yet due)

Past due by up to 31 and 60 days
Past due between 61 and 90 days
Past due by more than 90 days
Total trade and other receivables

(e) Ageing of individually impaired Receivables

481 540
36 74
36 5
33 84

586 703

At balance date, other debtors representing financial assets with a nominal value of $153k (2022: $222k) were impaired.

The amount of the provision raised against these debtors was $153k (2022: $222k). They individually have been

impaired as a result of their doubtful collection. Many of the long outstanding past due amounts have been lodged with

Council's debt collectors or are on payment arrangements.
The ageing of receivables that have been individually determined as impaired at
reporting date was:

Past due by more than 1 year
Total trade & other receivables

153

222

153

222

5.2. Non-financial assets
(a) Inventories

Inventories held for distribution

Total inventories

2023 2022
$'000 $'000
378 356
378 356

Inventories held for distribution represent gravel stockpile and are measured at charge out rates based on gravel

extraction, processing and cartage rates.

(b) Other assets
Prepayments 249 278
Accrued income 195 22
Total other assets 444 300
5.3. Payables, trust funds and deposits and unearned income/revenue
{a) Trade and other payables
Current
Non-statutory payables
Trade payables 1,774 639
Accrued expenses 733 752
Total current trade and other payables 2,507 1,391
(b) Trust funds and deposits
Current
Refundable deposits 60 72
Fire services levy 326 303
Retention amounts 33 137
Other refundable deposits 1" 48
Total current trust funds and deposits 430 560
(c) Unearned income
Current
Grants received in advance - operating 617 39
Grants received in advance - capital 4630 5,070
Total current unearned income 5,246 5,466

Uneamed income/revenue represents contract liabilities and reflect consideration received in advance from customers in
respect of grants received. Uneamned income/revenue are derecognised and recorded as revenue when promised goods

and services are transferred to the customer. Refer to Note 3.

Amounts received as deposits and retention amounts controlled by Council are recognised as trust funds until they are
returned, transferred in accordance with the purpose of the receipt, or forfeited. Trust funds that are forfeited, resulting in

council gaining control of the funds, are to be recognised as revenue at the time of forfeit.
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Purpose and nature of items
Refundable Deposits - Deposits are taken by Council as a form of surety in a number of circumstances, including in
relation to building works, tender deposits, contracl deposits and the use of civic facilities.

Fire Service Levy - Council is the collection agent for fire services levy on behalf of the Stale Government. Council
remits amounts received on a quarterly basis. Amounts disclosed here will be remitted to the state government in line
with that process.

Retention Amounts - Council has a contractual right to retain certain amounts unlil a contractor has met certain
requirements or a related warrant or defect period has elapsed. Subject to the satisfactory completion of the confractual
obligations, or the elapsing of time, these amounts will be paid to the relevant contractor in line with Council's contractual
obligations.

5.4. Interest-bearing liabilities 2023 2022
$'000 $'000
Current

Bomowings - secured 102 95
102 95

Non-current
Borrowings - secured 53 155
53 155
Total 155 250

Borrowings are secured by rales.

{2) The maturity profile for Council's borrowings is:

Mot later than one year 102 95
Later than one year and not later than five years 53 155
155 250

Borrowings are initially measured at fair value, being the cost of the interest bearing liabilities, net of transaction costs.
The measurement basis subsequent to initial recognition depends on whether the Council has categorised its interest-
bearing liabilities as either financial liabilities designated at fair value through the profit and loss, or financial liabilities at
amortised cost. Any difference between the initial recognised amount and the redemption value is recognised in net
result over the period of the bomrowing using the effeclive interest method.

The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the interest bearing liabilities. The Council determines the
classification of its interest bearing liabilities at initial recognition.
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5.5. Provisions

Employee Landfill Total

restoration

2023 $'000 $'000 $'000
Balance at beginning of the financial year 3975 1,226 5,201
Additional provisions 3174 39 3,213
Amounts used (1,201) - (1,201)
Change in the discounted amount arising because of time
and the effect of any change in the discount rate (300) (66) (366)
Balance at the end of the financial year 5,649 1,199 6,848
Provisions - current 5454 683 6,138
Provisions - non-current 194 516 710
2022
Balance at beginning of the financial year 3821 1,182 5,003
Additional provisions 1,751 196 1,947
Amounts used (1,240) - (1,240)
Change in the discounted amount arising because of time
and the effect of any change in the discount rate (357) (152) (509)
Balance at the end of the financial year 3,975 1,226 5,201
Provisions - current 3,707 - 3,707
Provisions - non-current 268 1,226 1,494
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2023 2022
(a) Employee provisions $'000 $'000
Current provisions expected to be wholly settled within 12 months
Annual leave 1,148 1,020
Long service leave 2149 1,785
Redundancies 1,300 -
4,597 2,805
Current provisions expected to be wholly settled after 12 months
Annual leave 340 307
Long service leave 518 595
858 902
Total current employee provisions 5454 3,707

The increase in employee current provisions expected to be wholly settled within 12 months takes into account payout of
leave balances and redundancies when communily care services exit on 31 Oct 2023.

MNon-current

Long service leave 194 268
Total non-current employee provisions 194 268
Aggregate carrying amount of employee provisions:

Current 5454 3,707
Mon-current 194 268
Total aggregate carrying amount of employee provisions 5,649 3,975

The calculation of employee costs and benefits includes all relevant on-costs and are calculated as follows at reporting
date.

Annual leave

A liability for annual leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits as a current liability because the Council
does not have an unconditional right to defer settiement of the liability. Liabilities for annual leave are measured at:

- nominal value if the Council expects to wholly settle the liability within 12 months

- present value if the Council does not expect to wholly settle within 12 months.

Liabilities that are not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in the provision
for employee benefits as current liabilities, measured at the present value of the amounts expected lo be paid when the
liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.

Long service leave

Liability for long service leave (LSL) is recognised in the provision for employee benefils. Unconditional LSL is disclosed
as a current liability as the Council does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement. Unconditional LSL is
measured at nominal value if expected to be settled within 12 months or at present value if not expected to be settled
within 12 months. Conditional LSL that has been accrued, where an employee is yet to reach a qualifying term of
employment, is disclosed as a non-current liability and measured at present value.

Key assumptions: 2023 2022
- discount rate 4.06% 3.69%
- index rate 4.35% 3.85%
2023 2022

(b} Landfill restoration $'000 £'000
Current 683 -
Mon-current 516 1,226
1,199 1,226

Council is obligated lo restore Denyer's site to a particular standard. The forecast life of the sile is based on current
estimates of remaining capacity and the forecast rate of infill. The provision for landfill restoration has been calculated
based on the present value of the expecled cost of works to be undertaken. The expected cost of works has been
estimated based on current understanding of work required to reinstate the site to a suitable standard. Accordingly, the
estimation of the provision required is dependent on the accuracy of the forecast timing of the work, work required and
related costs.

Council reviews the landfill restoration provision on an annual basis, including the key assumptions listed below.

Key assumptions: 2023 2022
- discount rate 4.06% 3.69%
- index rate 5.62% 6.14%

The increase in landfill restoration current provisions is due lo resforalion works commencing in 2023/24.

5.6. Financing arrangements

The Council has the following funding arrangements in place as at 30 June 2023.

Credit card facilities 100 100
Loans 155 250
Total facilities 255 350
Used facilities 175 270
Unused facilities 80 80
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5.7. Commitments
The Council has entered into the following commitments, Commitments are not recognised in the Balance Sheet,
Commitments are disclosed at their nominal value and presented inclusive of the GST payable.
a) Commitments for expenditure
Laterthan 1 Later than 2
year andnot  years and
Mot later than  later than 2 not later than Later than 5
2023 1 year years 5 years years Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Operating
Garbage & Recycling Collection 1,219 1,271 4,149 1,503 8,141
Major Community Project Fund 100 - - - 100 £58 8| egasgls
Total 1,319 1,271 4,149 1,503 8241 Eg . Y| 5+ g ~lE
Capital =
Recreation and Community 4,586 - - - 4,586 $8| ».288
Plant and Equipment 81 - - - 81 § - - =
Total 4,666 - - - 4,666 .
Laterthan1 Later than 2 55 e p—
year and not  years and o _% g Kl &7 £
Mot later than  later than 2 not later than  Later than 5 g s 5
2022 1 year years 5 years years Total 2 E
$'000 §000 §'000 §'000 §'000 £y £8| E8E .8 £8 zzf8
Operating é E 3 e = E -
Garbage & Recycling Collection 916 992 3,499 2,846 8,253 25 3 o
Major Community Project Fund 100 . - - 100 R . e
Total 1016 992 3,499 2846 8,353 :E g2 - 2 8|2
Capital g =" £
o
Recreation and Community 2,845 - - - 2,845
Office Equipment 75 - - - 75 ] - = ] e
EE =338 EE| =58z
Total 2,921 - - - 2,921 £ ] b = b = L
3 3
b) Operating lease receivables _
: . : o " : [£58 B| szs3)3| |[FEE wmsE
The Council has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property, consisting of surplus freehold office i E Ex “| 5z 5 S |
complexes. These properties held under operating leases have remaining non-cancellable lease terms of between 1 and E g °°3 -
10 years. All leases include a CPI based revision of the rental charge annually. & E 5
Future undiscounted minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: g 2
L] -]
2023 2022 _';; -E
§'000 $'000 o & 4
Mot later than one year 248 263 E g = i
Later than one year and not later than five years 255 33 ; é E E E
Later than five years 179 154 £z ,§ £ - % : -
682 730 2 g - ,g 2 g 2 5
L %f%‘ £ §§
ﬁ s @ EEE § @ EEE
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e |22[z| zs¢E gg gg g gl 28|s Notes to the Financial Report
5Egg8g| "= =R =8 ~|8] £E8 For the Year Ended 30 June 2023
[ =] E -
cz (8.8 8.8 - z .|z Acquisition . ) ) )
=t 8 2 =22 =2 The purchase method of accounting is used for all acquisitions of assets, being the fair value of assels provided as
£ E - consideration at the date of acquisition plus any incidental costs attributable to the acquisition. Fair value is the price that
=l _ _ _ would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability) in an orderly transaction between market parficipants at
5 : 23 g 8 EgE the measurement date.
Eg~ = =
£ Where assets are constructed by Council, cost includes all materials used in construction, direct labour, bormowing costs
- = S _ - incurred during construction, and an appropriate share of directly attributable variable and fixed overheads.
1r.locs V5 B B |F] B3R
3 E g - In accordance with Council's policy, the threshold limits have applied when recognising assets within an applicable asset
class and unless otherwise stated are consistent with the prior year.
E . s %z s 5 55l8 Depreciation  Threshold Limit
: g “=T Period
. = | . Asset recognition thresholds and depreciation periods $'000
] 55 ] Z
é % 2 g = § .8 % = = g 3 g Land & land improvements
H i a - Not 2,000
8 o | Land depreciated
§ % . 3 g 3|3 g gl g2z Land improvements 40 - 50 years 5,000
s 2§ 7= i Buildings
: 3 = Buildings 43 - 65 years 5,000
£ : 5 § g ZER 2 :g § § gg Building and leasehold improvements 10 - 65 years 5,000
2 E £ 2 i - B e Plant and Equipment
=8 . Plant, machinery and equipment 3-10 years 2,000
T 8zl g8 gl 88 gl sE|z Fixtures, fittings and furniture 5-10 Years 2,000
2 E g1= =" - N b e Computers and telecomms 4-10 Years 2,000
gz ® Library books 15 20 years 1,000
2l .g. 85| §2 =g =gl restetre
% g & &= = = = e I Roads - pavements, substructure, formation 15- 100 years 10,000
= and earthworks
258 23 glz| 88 g|F| s&l5 Roads - kerb, channel and minor culverts 80 years 5,000
3 Elg2E| =  Z8| =2 ~[5| 5E|5 Bridges 100 years 5,000
Footpaths and cycleways 100 years 5,000
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Land under roads

Council recognises land under roads it controls at fair value. Valuation of land under roads was undertaken by a qualified
independent valuer, Preston Rowe Paterson Horsham & Wimmera Pty. Lid. Land under roads has been valued based on
land sales, sales of unused roads and sales of channel easements with adjustments made for location and overall land
area.

Depreciation and amorlisation

Buildings, land improvements, plant and equipment, infrastructure, and other assets having limited useful lives are
systematically depreciated over their useful lives to the Council in a manner which reflects consumption of the service
potential embodied in those assets. Estimates of remaining useful lives and residual values are made on a regular basis
with major asset classes reassessed annually. Depreciation rates and methods are reviewed annually.

Where assets have separate identifiable components that are subject to reqular replacement, these components are
assigned distinct useful lives and residual values and a separate depreciation rafe is determined for each component.

Road earthworks are not depreciated on the basis that they are assessed as not having a limited useful life.
Straight line depreciation is charged based on the residual useful life as determined each year.
Depreciation periods used are listed above and are consistent with the prior year unless otherwise stated,

Repairs and maintenance
Where the repair relates to the replacement of a component of an asset and the cost exceeds the capitalisation threshold
the cost is capitalised and depreciated. The carrying value of the replaced asset is expensed.

Valuation of land and buildings

Valuation of land and buildings were undertaken by a qualified independent valuer, Preston Rowe Paterson Horsham &
Wimmera Pty. Ltd. The valuation of land and buildings is at fair value, being market value based on highest and best use
permitted by relevant land planning provisions. Where land use is restricted through existing planning provisions the
valuation is reduced to reflect this limitation. This adjustment is an unobservable input in the valuation. The adjustment
has no impact on the comprehensive income statement.

Specialised land is valued at fair value using site values adjusted for englobo (undeveloped andfor unserviced)
characteristics, access rights and private interests of other parties and entitlements of infrastructure assels and services.
This adjustment is an unobservable input in the valuation. The adjustment has no impact on the comprehensive income
statement.

Any significant movements in the unobservable inputs for land and land under roads will have a significant impact on the
fair value of these assets.

The date of the current valuation is detailed in the following table.

Details of the Council's land and buildings and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 30 June 2023 are as
follows:

Level 1 Level2 Level 3 vgﬂf:;;: Type of Valuation
$'000 £'000 §'000

Land - 5,087 5144  30/06/2022 Independent
Land Improvements - - 4493 30/06/2022 Independent
Land under roads - - 4500  30/06/2022 Independent
Buildings - - 17,523  30/06/2022 Independent
Building Improvements - - 730 30/06/2022 Independent
Total - 5,087 32,389

Valuation of infrastructure

Valuation of infrastructure assets has been determined in accordance with a valuation undertaken by Council's Manager
of Assets & Property, Dmitry Belyakov (MSc, CPEng) staff using Confirm asset management software. Bridges condition
and unit rate assessments were completed by JJ Ryan Consulting Pty Ltd. Drainage valuation indexation was based on
Rawlinson's Australian Construction Handbook 2023 and roads kerb & channel and footpath valuation were based on
internal and contract rates.

The date and type of the current valuation is detailed in the following table.
The valuation is at fair value based on replacement cost less accumulated depreciation as at the date of valuation.

Details of the Council's infrastructure and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 30 June 2023 are as follows:

Date of

Level 1 Level2 Level 3 v . Type of Valuation
aluation
$'000 $'000 $'000

Roads - - 121,331 30/06/2023 Independent
Bridges - - 30,040  30/06/2023 Independent
Foolpaths and cycleways - - 9515  30/06/2023 Independent
Drainage - - 14,957  30/06/2023 Independent
Waste management - - 1,887  30/06/2022 Independent
Parks, open space and 19046  30/06/2022 Independent
sireetscapes
Aerodromes . . 1,200  30/06/2022 Independent
Kerb and channel - - 25451  30/06/2023 Independent
Other infrastructure - - 9804  30/06/2022 Independent
Total - - 233,232
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Description of significant unobservable inputs into level 3 valuations

Specialised land and land under roads is valued using a market based direct comparison technique. Significant
unobservable inputs include the extent and impact of restriction of use and the market cost of land per square metre. The
extent and impact of restrictions on use varies and results in a reduction to surrounding land values between 30% and

80%. The market value of land varies significantly depending on the location of the land and the current market conditions.

Currently land values range between $7.50 and $425 per square metre.

Specialised buildings are valued using a current replacement cost technique. Significant unobservable inputs include
the current replacement cost and remaining useful lives of buildings. Current replacement costs are calculated on a
square metre basis and ranges from $330 to $5,500 per square metre. The remaining useful lives of buildings are
determined on the basis of the current condition of buildings and vary from 4 to 50 years. Replacement cost is sensitive to
changes in market conditions, with any increase or decrease in cost flowing through to the valuation. Useful lives of
buildings are sensitive to changes in expectations or requirements that could either shorten or extend the useful lives of
buildings.

Infrastructure assets are valued based on the current replacement cost. Significant unobservable inputs include the
current replacement cost and remaining useful lives of infrastructure. The remaining useful lives of infrastructure assets
are determined on the basis of the current condition of the asset and vary from 15 years to 100 years. Replacement cost
is sensitive to changes in market conditions, with any increase or decrease in cost flowing through to the valuation. Useful
lives of infrastructure are sensitive to changes in use, expectations or requirements that could either shorten or extend the
useful lives of infrastructure assets.

2023 2022
Reconciliation of specialised
land $'000 $'000
Land 5,144 5,144
Land improvements 4493 4,640
Land under roads 4,500 4,500
Total specialised land 14,137 14,284
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6.2 Investment property 2023 2022
$'000 $'000

Balance at beginning of financial year 1,030 1,030

Balance at end of financial year 1,030 1,030

Investment property is held to generate long-term rental yields. Investment property is measured initially at cost,
including transaction costs. Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised when it is probable that
future economic benefit in excess of the originally assessed performance of the asset will flow to the Council.
Subsequent to initial recognition at cost, investment property is carried at fair value, determined annually by
independent valuers. Changes to fair value are recorded in the comprehensive income statement in the period that
they arise.

Valuation of investment property

Valuation of investment property has been determined in accordance with an independent valuation in 2021 by
Eishold Property (Simon Eishold, Certified Practising Valuer) who has experience in the location and category of the
property being valued. The valuation is at fair value, based on the current market value for the property as at 1 June
2021.
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Note 7. People and relationships
7.1. Council and key management remuneration
(a) Related Parties

Parent entify
Council is the parent entity.

Subsidiaries and Associales

Mystic Park Cemetery Trust has not been consolidated into the accounts of the parent entity as the level of transactions
is immaterial. There are no other subsidiaries or associates.

(b) Key Management Personnel

Key management personnel (KMP) are those people with the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of Gannawarra Shire Council. The Councillors, Chief Executive Officer and Directors are
deemed KMP.

Details of KMP at any time during the year are:

Councillor Charlie Gillingham (Mayor)

Councillor Jane Ogden (Deputy Mayor)

Councillor Ross Stanton

Councillor Kelvin Burt

Councillor Travis Collier

Councillor Keith Link

Councillor Garner Smith

Chief Executive Officer

Director - Corporate Services

Director - Community Wellbeing

Director - Infrastructure and Development

Executive Manager - Economic Development 2023 2022
No. No.

Councillors

Total Number of Councillors

Total of Chief Executive Officer and other Key Management Personnel

Total Number of Key Management Personnel 13 1
Note:- One senior officer is now part of Key Management Personnel in 2022/23.
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(¢) Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

Remuneration comprises employee benefits including all forms of consideration paid, payable or provided by Council, or
on behalf of the Council, in exchange for services rendered. Remuneration of Key Management Personnel and Other
senior staff is disclosed in the following categories.

Short-term employee benefits include amounts such as wages, salaries, annual leave or sick leave that are usually
paid or payable on a regular basis, as well as non-monetary benefits such as allowances and free or subsidised goods
or services.

Other long-term employee benefits include long service leave, other long service benefits or deferred compensation.

Post-employment benefits include pensions, and other retirement benefits paid or payable on a discrete basis when
employment has ceased.

Termination benefits include termination of employment payments, such as severance packages.

2023 2022
$'000 $'000
Tolal remuneration of key management personnel was as follows:
Short-term benefits 1,256 991
Other long-term benefits 54 17
Post employment benefits 95 72
Total 1,404 1,080

The numbers of key management personnel whose total remuneration from Council and any relaled entities, fall within
the following bands:

No. No.
$20,000 - 529,999 5 5
$30,000 - 539,999 1 1
$70,000 - 579,998 1 1
$80,000 - 589,999 1
$170,000-5179,999 1 .
$190,000 - $199,999 - 2
$200,000 - $209,999 2 1
$210,000 - $219,999 1 -
$280,000 - $289,999 1 1

13 1"

(d) Remuneration of other senior staff
Mo senior staff with remuneration excess of $160,000 in 2022/23.
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7.2. Related party disclosure 2023 2022
(a) Transactions with related parties

During the period Council entered into the following transactions with related parties.

Purchase of hay during the floods - from related party to Cr. Gillingham $ 920 Nil
(b) Outstanding balances with related parties

The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting period in relation to

transactions with related parties Nil Nil
(c) Loans to/from related parties
The aggregate amount of loans in existence at balance date that have been made, Nil Nil

guaranteed or secured by the council to a related party as follows:

(d) Commitments to/from related parties

The aggregate amount of commitments in existence at balance date that have been made,
guaranteed or secured by the council to a related party are as follows: Nil Nil

Note 8. Managing uncertainties
8.1. Contingent assets and liabilities

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet, but are disclosed and if quantifiable,
are measured at nominal value. Contingent assets and liabilities are presented inclusive of GST receivable or payable,
respectively.

(a) Contingent assets

Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events, whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council.

At balance date, Council held the following bank guarantees for contract works being undertaken.

Start Amount

Date $000
CJ & BT McLoughlan Pty Ltd - G10-2020 (Defects Liability) 11/06/2021 15
S & R Engineering - G08-2020 (Defects Liability) 19/11/2021 30
Boral Asphalt - G06-2021 (Practical Completion) 21112/2021 45
CJ & BT McLoughlan Pty Ltd - G07-2021 (Defects Liability) 13/12/2021 28
CJ & BT McLoughlan Pty Ltd - G08-2021 (Defects Liability) 16/02/2022 24
Earthworks Civil & Construction Pty Ltd - G10-2021 (Practical Completion) 9/07/2022 38
Earthworks Civil & Construction Pty Ltd - G10-2021 (Defects Liability) 9/07/2022 38
CJ & BT McLoughlan Pty Ltd - G04-2022 (Practical Completion) 8/12/2022 7
CJ & BT McLoughlan Pty Ltd - G04-2022 (End of Maintenance Period) 8/12/2022 7
CJ & BT McLoughlan Pty Ltd - G06-2022 (Practical Completion) 15/02/2023 10
CJ & BT McLoughlan Pty Ltd - G06-2022 (End of Maintenance Period) 15/02/2023 10
S & R Engineering - G02-2021 (Practical Completion) 23/02/2023 25
S &R Engineering - G11-2021 (Practical Completion) 23/02/2023 1"
Veolia Environmental Services - G03-2021 (Practical Completion) 28/03/2023 310
CJ & BT McLoughlan Pty Ltd - G10-2022 (Practical Completion) 10/05/2023 58
CJ & BT McLoughlan Pty Ltd - G10-2022 (End of Maintenance Period) 27/04/2023 58

(b) Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are:

- possible obligations that arise from past events, whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council; or

- present obligations that arise from past events but are not recognised because:

- itis not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or
- the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Superannuation

Council has obligations under a defined benefit superannuation scheme that may result in the need to make additional
contributions to the scheme, matters relating to this potential obligation are outlined below. As a result of the volatility in
financial markets the likelihood of making such contributions in future periods exists.

Landfill

Council operates a landfill. Council will have to carry out site rehabilitation works in the future. At balance date Council is
unable to accurately assess the financial implications of such works.

Insurance claims

Council is unaware of any major insurance claims that could have a material impact on future operations.
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Legal matters
Council is unaware of any major legal matters that could have a material impact on future operations.

Building cladding

Council is unaware of any potential contingents that may exist in relation to rectification works or other matters associated
with building cladding that may have the potential to adversely impact on Council.

Liability Mutual Insurance

Council is a participant of the MAV Liability Mutual Insurance (LMI) Scheme. The LMI scheme provides public liability
and professional indemnity insurance cover. The LMI scheme states that each participant will remain liable to make
further contributions to the scheme in respect of any insurance year in which it was a participant to the extent of its
participant’s share of any shortfall in the provision set aside in respect of that insurance year, and such liability will
continue whether or not the participant remains a participant in future insurance years.

(c) Guarantees for loans to other entities

The amount disclosed for financial guarantee in this note is the nominal amount of the underlying loan that is guaranteed
by the Council, not the fair value of the financial guarantee. This amount is determined by the Environment Protection
Authority to cover the Council's landfill rehabilitation requirements.

Financial guarantee contracts are not recognised as a liability in the balance sheet unless the lender has exercised their
right to call on the guarantee or Council has other reasons to believe that it is probable that the right will be exercised.

The following Bank Guarantee is held by State of Victoria - Environment Protection Authority on behalf of Council:

Start Amount
Date $'000
Kerang Landfill Financial Assurance 11/04/2013 247

8.2. Change in accounting standards

Certain new Australian Accounting Standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for the 30
June 2023 reporting period. Council assesses the impact of these new standards. As at 30 June 2023 there were no new
accounting standards or interpretations issued by the AASB which are applicable for the year ending 30 June 2024 that
are expected to impact Council.

8.3. Financial instruments

(a) Objectives and policies

The Council's principal financial instruments comprise cash assels, term deposits, receivables (excluding statutory
receivables), payables (excluding statutory payables) and bank borrowings. Details of the significant accounting policies
and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and
expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument is disclosed
in the notes of the financial statements. Risk management is carried out by senior management under policies approved
by the Council. These policies include identification and analysis of the risk exposure to Council and appropriate
procedures, controls and risk minimisation.
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(b) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of Council's financial instruments will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. The Council's exposure to market risk is primarily through interest rate risk with only
insignificant exposure to other price risks and no exposure to foreign currency risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the value of a financial instrument or cash flows associated with the instrument will
fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. Council's interest rate liability risk arises primarily from long term loans
and borrowings at fixed rates which exposes council to fair value interest rate risk.

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. Council has minimal exposure to cash flow interest rate risk through its cash and deposits that
are al floating rales.

Investment of surplus funds is made with apprmrad financial institutions under the Local Government Act 2020 . Council
manages interest rate risk by adopting an investment policy that ensures:

- diversification of investment product;

- monitoring of return on investment; and

- benchmarking of returns and comparison with budget.

There has been no significant change in the Council's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing
interest rate risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.

Interest rate movements have not been sufficiently significant during the year to have an impact on the Council's year end
result.

(c) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a contracting entity will not complete its obligations under a financial instrument and cause
Council to make a financial loss. Council have exposure to credit risk on some financial assets included in the balance
sheet. Particularly significant areas of credit risk exist in relation to outstanding fees and fines as well as loans and
receivables from sporting clubs and associations. To help manage this risk:

- Council have a policy for establishing credit limits for the entities Council deal with;

- Council may require collateral where appropriate; and

- Council only invest surplus funds with financial instituions which have a recognised credil rating specified in Council's
investment policy.

Receivables cansist of a large number of customers, spread across the ratepayer, business and govemment sectors.
Credit risk associated with the council's financial assets is minimal because the main deblor is secured by a charge over
the rateable property.

There are no material financial assets which are individually determined to be impaired.

Council may also be subject to credit risk for iransactions which are not included in the balance shee, such as when
council provide a guarantee for another party. Details of our contingent liabilities are disclosed in Note 8.1(b).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporling date to recognised financial assets is the carrying amount, net of
any provisions for impairment of those assets, as disclosed in the balance sheet and notes to the financial statements.
Council does not hold any collateral,
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(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk includes the risk that, as a result of council's operational liquidity requirements it will not have sufficient funds
to settle a transaction when required or will be forced to sell a financial asset at below value or may be unable to settle or
recover a financial assel.

To help reduce these risks Council:

- have a liquidity policy which targets a minimum and average level of cash and cash equivalents to be maintained;

- have readily accessible standby facilities and other funding arrangements in place;

- have a liquidity portfolio struclure that requires surplus funds to be invested within various bands of liquid instruments;

- monitor budget to actual performance on a regular basis; and

- sef limits on borrowings relating fo the percentage of loans to rate revenue and percentage of loan principal repayments
to rate revenue.

The Council's maximum exposure to liquidity risk is the carrying amounts of financial liabilities as disclosed on the face of
the balance sheet and the amounis related to financial guarantees disclosed in Mote 8.1(c), and is deemed insignificant
based on prior periods’ data and current assessment of risk.

There has been no significant change in Council's exposure, or ils objeclives, policies and processes for managing
liquidity risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.

With the exception of borrowings, all financial liabilities are expected to be seftled within normal terms of trade. Details of
the maturity profile for borrowings are disclosed at Note 5.4,

Unless otherwise stated, the carrying amounts of financial instruments reflect their fair value.

(e) Sensitivity disclosure analysis

Taking info account past performance, future expectations, economic forecasts, and management's knowledge and
experience of the financial markets, Council believes the following movements are ‘reasonably possible’ over the next 12
months:

- A parallel shift of +1.5% and -1.5% in market interest rates (AUD) from year-end rates of 5.10%.

These movements will not have a material impact on the valuation of Council's financial assets and liabilities, nor will they
have a malerial impact on the resulls of Council's operations.
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8.4. Fair value measurement

Fair value hierarchy

Council's financial assets and liabilities are not valued in accordance with the fair value hierarchy , Council's financial
assets and liabilifies are measured at amortised cost.

Council measures certain assets and liabilities at fair value where required or permitted by Australian Accounting
Standards. AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement, aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a
definition of fair value and a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across
Australian Accounting Standards.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within a
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable; and

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, Council has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

In addition, Council determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Revaluation

Subsequent to the initial recognition of assets, non-current physical assets, other than plant and equipment, are
measured at their fair value, being the price that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability) in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. (For plant and equipment carrying amount is
considered to approximate fair value given short useful lives). At balance date, the Council reviewed the carrying value
of the individual classes of assets measured at fair value to ensure that each asset materially approximated its fair
value. Where the carrying value materially differed from the fair value at balance date, the class of asset was revalued.

Fair value valuations are determined in accordance with a valuation hierarchy. Changes to the valuation hierarchy wil
only occur if an external change in the restrictions or limitations of use of an asset result in changes to the permissible or
practical highest and best use of the asset. In addition, Council undertakes a formal revaluation of land, buildings, and
infrastructure assets on a regular basis ranging from 3 to 4 years. The valuation is performed either by experienced
council officers or independent experts. The following table sets out the frequency of revaluations by asset class.

Item 7.4- Attachment 1

Page 92



Council Meeting Agenda

18 October 2023

126 ANNUAL REPORT
GANNAWARRA SHIRE COUNCIL

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2023

Revaluation

Asset class frequency
Land 31to 4 years
|Buildings 3to 4 years
Roads 3104 years
|Bridges 3to4 years
Footpaths and cycleways 3to 4 years
Drainage 3to 4 years
Recreational, leisure and community facilities 3104 years
Waste management 31to 4 years
Parks, open space and streetscapes 3104 years
Aerodromes 3to 4 years
Other infrastructure 3tod years

Where the assets are revalued, the revaluation increments are credited directly to the asset revaluation reserve except
to the extent that an increment reverses a prior year decrement for that class of asset that had been recognised as an
expense in which case the increment is recognised as revenue up to the amount of the expense. Revaluation
decrements are recognised as an expense except where prior increments are included in the asset revaluation reserve
for that class of asset in which case the decrement is taken to the reserve to the extent of the remaining increments.
Within the same class of assets, revaluation increments and decrements within the year are offset.

Impairment of assets

At each reporting date, the Council reviews the carrying value of its assets to determine whether there is any indication
that these assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher
of the asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use, is compared to the assets carrying value. Any excess of
the assets carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed to the comprehensive income statement, unless the
asset is carried at the revalued amount in which case, the impairment loss is recognised directly against the revaluation
surplus in respect of the same class of asset to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the amount in the
revaluation surplus for that same class of asset.

8.5. Events occurring after balance date
No matters have occurred after balance date that require disclosure in the financial report.
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Note 9. Other matters

9.1. Reserves
(a) Asset revaluation reserves

2023

Property

Land and land improvements
Buildings

Infrastructure

Roads

Bridges

Footpaths and cycleways
Drainage

Waste management

Recreation, parks and open space
Aerodromes

Kerb and channel

Other infrastructure

Total asset revaluation reserves

2022

Property

Land and land improvements
Buildings

Infrastructure

Roads

Bridges

Footpaths and cycleways
Drainage

Waste management

Recreation, parks and open space
Aerodromes

Kerb and channel

Other infrastructure

Total asset revaluation reserves

The asset revaluation reserve is used to record the increased (net) value of Council's assets over time.

Balance at
beginning of Increment  Balance at end of
reporting period (decrement) reporting period
$'000 $'000 $'000
3,539 - 3,539
10,552 - 10,552
14,091 - 14,091
106,036 4,089 110,125
7,579 12,665 20,244
3,147 1,585 4733
5,986 1,109 7,095
183 - 183
3,351 - 3,351
819 - 819
6,617 12,453 19,070
8,106 - 8,106
141,825 31,901 173,726
155,917 31,901 187,818
1,320 2,219 3,539
5,678 4874 10,552
6,998 7,093 14,091
97,038 8,998 106,036
6,207 1,372 7,579
2,605 542 3,147
5,051 935 5,986
71 112 183
1,193 2,158 3,351
599 220 819
5,619 998 6,617
2,893 5,213 8,106
121,276 20,548 141,825
128,274 27,642 155,917
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9.2. Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities to surplus

Surplus for the year

Profit on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Depreciation

Borrowing costs

Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments
Increase/(decrease) in accrued income
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables
Increase/{Decrease) in uneamed income
(Decrease)fincrease in other liabilities
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
Increase/(decrease) in provisions

Net cash provided by operating activities

9.3. Superannuation

Council makes the majority of its employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to the Local

2023 2022
$'000 $'000
5,785 7,740
(254) (360)
7,075 6,381
13 18
(362) (83)
30 1)
(173) (17)
1,116 400
(221) 1,697
(129) (253)
(23) (206)
1,647 199
14,505 15,495

Authorities Superannuation Fund (the Fund). This Fund has two categories of membership, accumulation and defined
benefit, each of which is funded differently. Obligations for contributions to the Fund are recognised as an expense in

Comprehensive Operating Statement when they are made or due.

Accumulation

The Fund's accumulation category, Vision MySuper/Vision Super Saver, receives both employer and employee

contributions on a progressive basis. Employer contributions are normally based on a fixed percentage of employee

earnings (for the year ended 30 June 2023, this was 10.5% as required under Superannuation Guarantee (SG)

legislation (2022: 10.0%)).

Defined Benefit
Council does not use defined benefit accounting for its defined benefit obligations under the Fund's Defined Benefit
category. This is because the Fund's Defined Benefit category is a pooled multi-employer sponsored plan.

There is no proportional split of the defined benefit liabilities, assets or costs between the participating employers as the
defined benefit obligation is a floating obligation between the participating employers and the only time that the aggregate
obligation is allocated to specific employers is when a call is made. As a result, the level of participation of Council in the
Fund cannot be measured as a percentage compared with other participating employers. Therefore, the Fund Actuary is
unable to allocate benefit liabilities, assets and costs between employers for the purposes of AASB 119 Employee
Benefits .

Funding arrangements

Council makes employer contributions to the Defined Benefit category of the Fund at rates determined by the Trustee on
the advice of the Fund Actuary. A triennial actuarial investigation is currently underway for the Defined Benefit category
which is expected to be completed by 31 December 2023. Council was notified of the 30 June 2023 VBI during August
2023 (2022: August 2022). The financial assumptions used to calculate the 30 June 2023 VBI were:

Net investment retums 5.7% pa
Salary information 3.5% pa
Price infiation (CP1) 2.8% pa.

As at 30 June 2022, an interim actuarial investigation was held as the Fund provides lifetime pensions in the Defined
Benefit category. The vested benefit index (VBI) of the Defined Benefit category of which Council is a contributing
employer was 102.2%. The financial assumptions used to calculate the VBI were:

Net investment returns 5.5% pa
Salary information 2.5% pa to 30 June 2023, and 3.5% pa thereafter
Price inflation (CP1) 3.0% pa.

Council was notified of the 30 June 2022 VB! during August 2022 (2021: August 2021). Vision Super has advised that the
estimated VBI at June 2023 was 104.1%.

The VBI is used as the primary funding indicator. Because the VBI was above 100%, the 30 June 2022 actuarial
investigation determined the Defined Benefit category was in a satisfactory financial position and that no change was
necessary to the Defined Benefit category's funding arrangements from prior years.
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Employer contributions

{A) Regular contributions

On the basis of the results of the 2022 interim acluarial investigation conducted by the Fund Actuary, Council makes
employer contributions to the Fund's Defined Benefit category at rates determined by the Fund's Trustee. For the year
ended 30 June 2023, this rate was 10.5% of members' salaries (10.0% in 2021/22). This rale is expecled to increase in
line with any increases in the SG contribution rate and was reviewed as part of the 30 June 2022 interim valuation.

In addition, Council reimburses the Fund to cover the excess of the benefils paid as a consequence of retrenchment
ahove the funded resignation or retirement benefit,

(B) Funding calls

If the Defined Benefit category is in an unsalisfactory financial position at an actuarial invesligation or the Defined Benefit
category’s VBI is below its shortfall limit at any time other than the date of the actuarial investigation, the Defined Benefit
category has a shortfall for the purposes of SPS 160 and the Fund is required to put a plan in place so that the shortfall is
fully funded within three years of the shortfall occurring. The Fund monitors its VBI on a quarterly basis and the Fund has
set its shortfall limit at 97%.

In the event that the Fund Actuary determines that there is a shortfall based on the above requirement, the Fund's
participating employers (including Council) are required to make an employer contribution to cover the shorifall,

Using the agreed methodology, the shortfall amount is apportioned between the participating employers based on the pre-

1 July 1993 and post-30 June 1993 service liabilities of the Fund's Defined Benefit category, together with the employer's
payroll at 30 June 1993 and at the date the shortfall has been calculated.

Due to the nature of the contractual obligations between the participating employers and the Fund, and that the Fund
includes lifetime pensioners and their reversionary beneficiaries, it is unlikely that the Fund will be wound up.

If there is a surplus in the Fund, the surplus cannot be retumed to the participating employers.

In the event that a participating employer is wound-up, the defined benefit obligations of that employer will be transferred
fo that employer’s successor.

The 2022 interim actuarial investigation surplus amounts

An actuarial investigation is conducted annually for the Defined Benefit calegory of which Council is a contributing
employer. Generally, a full actuarial investigation is conducted every three years and interim actuarial investigations are
conducted for each intervening year. An interim investigation was conducted as at 30 June 2022 and the last full
investigation was conducted as at 30 June 2020,

The Fund's actuarial investigation identified the following for the Defined Benefit category of which Council is a

contribufing employer:
2022 201
(Interim) (Interim})
$m $m
- AVBI Surplus 446 2147
- A total service liability surplus 105.8 270.3
- A discounted accrued benefits surplus 111.9 285.2

The VBI surplus means that the market value of the fund's assets supporting the defined benefit obligations exceed the
vested benefits that the defined benefit members would have been entitied to if they had all exited on 30 June 2022,

The total service liability surplus means that the current value of the assets in the Fund's Defined Benefit category plus
expected fulure contribulions exceeds the value of expected fulure benefits and expenses as at 30 June 2022,

The discounted accrued benefits surplus means that the current value of the assets in the Fund's Defined Benefit
category exceeds the value of benefits payable in the future but accrued in respect of service to 30 June 2022.

The 2023 triennial actuarial investigation

A triennial actuarial investigation is being conducted for the Fund's position as at 30 June 2023, It is anticipated that this
actuarial investigation will be completed by 31 December 2023. The financial assumptions for the purposes of this
investigation are:

2023 2020

Triennial Triennial
Investigation Investigation

Net investment refurn 5.7%pa 56%pa

250%p.a

Salary inflation 35%pa ;:ar r;h : nrgszltt;;?%

p.a thereafter

Price inflation 28%pa 20%p.a
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Superannuation contributions
Confributions by Council {excluding any unfunded liability payments) to the above superannuation plans for the financial
year ended 30 June 2023 are detailed below:

2023 2022
Scheme Type of Scheme Rate $'000 $'000
Vision super Defined benefits 10.5%
(2022:10.0%) 43 43
Vision super Accumulation 10.5%
(2022:10.0%) 877 759
Other Funds Accumulation 10.5%
{2022:10.0%) 702 612

There were no contributions outstanding and no loans issued from or to the above schemes as at 30 June 2023,

The expected conlributions to be paid to the Defined Benefit category of Vision Super for the year ending 30 June 2024
is $43k.

10. Change in accounting policy
There have been no changes to accounting policies in the 2022-23 year.
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GANNAWARRA SHIRE COUNCIL
PERFORMANCE STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

DESCRIPTION OF MUNICIPALITY

The Gannawarra is a region loaded with natural
features; our rivers, lakes, swamps, marshes, and
wetlands, all surrounded by majestic forests. These
special natural places of interest in The Gannawarra
are all within a three-hour drive from Melbourne and
around one hour from the neighbouring centres of
Swan Hill, Echuca, and Bendigo.

Our Mediterranean climate has seen us take advantage
of the sun for renewable energy activity — in fact The
Gannawarra is home to Australia’s largest integrated
solar farm and battery storage facility.

Our primary centres are Kerang, Cohuna, and
Koondrook. Smaller outlying communities include
Leitchville, Quambatook, Murrabit, Lake Charm,
Lalbert, Macorna, and Mystic Park, making up a
population of 10,528, covering 2,281 kilometres.
Gannawarra is a place of strong community pride
where our communities inspire each other to make The
Gannawarra a great place to live, visit and do business.
Gannawarra is a place of strong community pride
where our communities inspire each other to make The
Gannawarra a great place to live, visit and do business.
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OVERVIEW OF 2022/2023

Like many municipalities across northern Victoria, the
October-December 2022 floods impacted Gannawarra
Shire Council’s operations during 2022/23, with
resources directed to assist agencies to respond to this
emergency and to guide recovery efforts.

Despite these challenges, Council was able to
implement a record capital works program featuring
projects that have enhanced the liveability of our
communities. Completed projects include the Kerang
All Abilities Play Space and Changing Facility, both
located at Atkinson Park, and the Murrabit Stormwater
Project. Work also began on Stage 3 of the Kerang CBD
Redevelopment and improvements to play spaces at
the Cohuna and District Pre-School and Gannawarra
Shire Children’s Centre.

Council looks forward to 2023/24 - a year which will
see the Gannawarra continue to recover from the
October- December 2022 floods and Council will work
with the community to achieve milestones identified in
the Growing Gannawarra — 2021-2025 Council Plan.

SUSTAINABLE CAPACITY INDICATORS

For the year ended 30 June 2023

Expenses
per head of
municipal
population

$2,836.04 $3,16933  $3,149.26

[Total expenses / Municipal

population)

Infrastructure

per head of ) nar & .
$18,22040 51938096 $21,806.76

municipal

population

[Value of infrastructure / Municipal population)

$24,553.38

The increase in 2022/23 is due to flood related
works and depreciation for 2022/23 being
higher than prior years as a result of the
infrastructure revaluations as at 30 June 2022
Flood related costs are primarily grant funded
and are expected to be recouped via flood
claims and acquittal. Provision for payment

of redundancies associated with the exit of
community care services by 31 October 2023
{$1.3million) has also been factored into total
expenses, The cash flow associated with the
redundancies will occur in November 2023.

$3,581.78

Afurther increase between 2021/22 and
2022/23 is due to infrastructure revaluations.
The cost of construction of infrastructure assets
have increased significantly.
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SUSTAINABLE CAPACITY INDICATORS

’ Results Results
indicatorfmeasure 2020 2021

Population density per length of road
has remained stable throughout
2022/23.

Population density per

length of road 458 455 4.58 4.62

[Municipal population / Kilometres of local roads)

Own-source revenue
per head of municipal $1,786.96  $1,866.92 $2,112.09 $2,169.26
population

The growth is line with rate cap and
increase in user fees.

[Own-source revenue / Municipal population]

Recurrent grants increased in
Recurrent grants per

o 2022/23 due to the early payment of
h:az’:fn_ I::mc:pal $1,053.00 $1,157.50 $1,144.09 $1,271.94 Federal Assistance Grants of 100% of
pop the 2023/24 annual allocation.

[Recurrent grants / Municipal population]
There has been no change in

200 Council’s Relative Socio-Economic
Disadvantage.

Relative socio-

economic disadvantage 3.00 3.00 3.00

[Index of Relative Socio-economic Disadvantage by decile]

i
-5

Council’s staff turnover rate
12.09% 8.98% 11.48% 11.36% remained steady in 2022/23 with a
slight decrease of 1%.

Percentage of staff
turnover

[Number of permanent staff resignations and terminations /
Average number of permanent staff for the financial year] x 100

DEFINITIONS

"adjusted underlying revenue" means total income other than:

(a) non-recurrent grants used to fund capital expenditure; and

(b) non-monetary asset contributions; and

(c) contributions to fund capital expenditure from sources other than those referred to above

“infrastructure” means non-current property, plant and equipment excluding land.

“local road" means a sealed or unsealed road for which the council is the responsible road authority under the Road
Management Act 2004

"population” means the resident population estimated by council'

"own-source revenue" means adjusted underlying revenue other than revenue that is not under the control of council
(including government grants)

“relative socio-economic disadvantage", in relation to a municipality, means the relative socio-economic disadvantage,
expressed as a decile for the relevant financial year, of the area in which the municipality is located according to the
Index of Relative Socio-Economic Disadvantage (Catalogue Number 2033.0.55.001) of SEIFA

"SEIFA" means the Socio-Economic Indexes for Areas published from time to time by the Australian Bureau of Statistics
on its Internet website,

"unrestricted cash” means all cash and cash equivalents other than restricted cash.
1 Council has utilised the March 2022 Australian Bureau of Statistics release for population estimate..

PERFORMANCE STATEMENTS ANNUAL REPORT 137

GANNAWARRA SHIRE COUNCIL

SERVICE PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
For the year ended 30 June 2023

SERVICE PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Service/indicator/measure %;gm ;;;:Its ;;;gm

Aguatic facilities

Utilisation of Council aquatic
facilities has increased by
18.47% in 2022/23. The
increase has come after
previous years of reduced
closures due to COVID-19
lockdowns and staffing
shortages.

Utilisation of aquatic facilities 3.45 3.27 3.03 3.59

[Number of visits to aquatic facilities / Municipal population]

Animal management

Meaith ond safety

There were no animal
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% management prosecutions in
2022/23.

Animal management
prosecutions

[Number of successful animal management prosecutions / Number of
Animal management prosecutions] x100

Food safety

Council has implemented

a risk-based food safety
assessment approach to
achieve compliance. This has
led to a reduction in major
and critical non-compliances
and there has been no non-
compliances in 2022/23.

Critical and major

) T 0.00% 100.00%  100.00% 0.00%
non-compliance notifications

[Number of critical non-compliance notifications and major non-
compliance notifications about a food premises followed up / Number
of critical non-compliance notifications and major non-compliance
notifications about a food premises] x100

Governance

The Community Satisfaction
Survey showed increasing
Sali_sf.acdon with council 39.00 55.00 46.00 48.00 satisfaction qver the pa_sst
decisions 12 months with Council
decisions, and this remains
steady.

[Community satisfaction rating out of 100 with how council has
performed in making decisions in the interest of the community]
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Results Results Results Results

2019 2020 2021 2022 Material Variations

Service/indicator/measure

Libraries

Participation

There continues to be a
reduction in active library
borrowers which can

still be attributed to the
closure of library services
across Gannawarra Shire
during the recent floods.
Gannawarra Library Service
is committed to increasing
library membership through
advertising campaigns across
the municipality.

Active library borrowers in

municipality 16.65% 13.50% 11.47% 10.80%

[Number of active library borrowers in the last three years
/ The sum of the population for the last three years] x100

Maternal and Child Health

I

Participation in Maternal

and Child Health Service has

increased in 2023 as service
86.88% 85.60% B0.77% 88.56% restrictions from previous

years have ceased and staff

have re-engaged with families

on a more regular basis.

Participation in the MCH
service

[Number of children who attend the MCH service at least
once (in the year) / Number of children enrolled in the
MCH service] x100

Maternal and Child Health

I

Participation in Maternal

and Child Health Service

by Aboriginal children have

increased during 2023 as
100% 97.37% 83.33% 95.56% staff continue to strengthen

partnerships with local

Aboriginal services to provide

a safe environment for all

families to attend.

Participation in the MCH
service by Aboriginal children

[Number of Aboriginal children who attend the MCH
service at least once (in the year) / Number of Aboriginal
children enrolled in the MCH service] x100
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SERVICE PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Results Results Results Results

2018 2020 2021 2022 Material Variations

Service/indicator/measure

Roads

Satisfertion

Major decline in the
condition of local roads
has been influenced by the
recent floods from October
47.00 54.00 50,00 41.00 to December 2022, These
have specifically impacted
and damaged roads in
flood-impacted areas within
Gannawarra Shire.

Sotisfaction with sealed
local roads

[Community satisfaction rating out of 100 with how council has
performed on the condition of sealed local roads]

Statutory Planning

Decision making

. . No VCAT decisions were
Council planning decisions . )
upheld at VCAT 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% received during the 2022/23

financial year.

[Number of VCAT decisions that did not set aside council's decision
in relation to a planning application / Number of VCAT decisions in
relation to planning applications] x100

Waste Collection

Waste diversion
The percentage of waste
from kerbside collection
; i being diverted from landfill
Kerbside collection waste .
diverted from landfill 37.15% 44.88% 37.99% 36.50% has not changed materially

from that reported last year
and it continues to remain
steady.

[Weight of recyclables and green organics collected from kerbside bins
/ Weight of garbage, recyclables and green organics collected from
kerbside bins] x100
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DEFINITIONS

“Aboriginal child" means a child who is an Aboriginal person.

“Aboriginal person® has the same meaning as in the Aboriginal Heritage Act 2006.

"active library borrower” means a member of a library who has borrowed a book from the library.
"annual report" means an annual report prepared by a council under section 98 of the Act.

“class 1 food premises” means food premises, within the meaning of the Food Act 1984, that have been declared as
class 1 food premises under section 19C of that Act.

“class 2 food premises” means food premises, within the meaning of the Food Act 1984, that have been declared as
class 2 food premises under section 19C of that Act.

“critical non-compliance outcome notification" means a notification received by council under section 19N (3) or (4)
of the Food Act 1984, or advice given to council by an authorized officer under that Act, of a deficiency that poses an
immediate serious threat to public health.

“food premises” has the same meaning as in the Food Act 1984.

"local road" means a sealed or unsealed road for which the council is the responsible road authority under the Road
Management Act 2004.

“major non-compliance outcome notification® means a notification received by a council under section 19N (3) or (4) of
the Food Act 1984, or advice given to council by an authorized officer under that Act, of a deficiency that does not pose
an immediate serious threat to public health but may do so if no remedial action is taken.

"MCH" means the Maternal and Child Health Service provided by a council to support the health and development of
children within the municipality from birth until school age.

"population” means the resident population estimated by council. 2

2 Council has utilised the March 2022 Australian Bureau of Statistics release for population estimate,
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

For the year ended 30 June 2023

FINANCIAL PERFORMAMNCE INDICATORS
Resuits Forecasts

The increase in this ratio

is due to flood related
works and depreciation for
2022/23 being higher than
prior years as a result of the
infrastructure revaluations
as at 30 June 2022. Flood
related costs are primarily
grant funded and are

Expenses expected to be recouped via

per property 5434514 5470871 5469600 5538700 5503535 5519333 5529320 5541437 flood claims and acquittal.

assessment Provision for payment of
redundancies associated

with the exit of community
care services by 31 October
2023 (51.3milion) has

also been factored into
total expenses, The cash
flow associated with the
redundancies will occur in
Novermnber 2023,

[Total expenses / Number of property assessments]

The increase above
rate cap is due the
supplementary valuation

Average rate
of Kerang substation
ﬂ:;::;o":::;:}' $1611.12 5161329 $1654.71 S172729 5178629 5183655 5188926 5193416 instigated by the Valuer

General's office, generating
a higher than budgeted
rates income,

[General rates and Municipal charges / Number property assessments]
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Dimension/ Results
indicator]

measure 2000 2021 2022 2023 2026 2025 202 2027

Liquidity

PERFORMANCE STATEMENTS

Council's position is
sound with higher than
anticipated cash and
investments received.
This is due to advance
payment of 100% annual
allocation of Federal
Assistance Grants for
2023/24, flood grants
and other capital grants.
Current leave provisions
have been increased to
allow for annual leave,

Current gssets long service leave and
compared redundancy payouts for
to current 255.12% 197.32% 199.99% 22438% 327.23% 336.39% 347.73% 359.32% community care staff in
liabilities November 2023 when

[Current assets / Current liabilities] x100

Council exits this service,
Current landfill provision
has also increased to allow
for landfill rehabilitation
in 2023/24. These
movements are between
non-current provisions
and current provisions.
The indicator increases

in the forward years as
Council does not budget
for unearned grants which
is an unknown factor.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Dimension/ Resuits
indicotorf
measure 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Liquidity

Unrestricted cash is
sufficient to cover Council's
current obligation towards
employee provisions,

loan liabilities and trade
payables. Unrestricted
cash excludes other
financial assets i.e., term
deposits with maturity
greater than 90 days. This

Unrestricted indicator is lower than
cash compared prior years because of
to current 48.76% 8064% S5441% 4756% 17412% 200.07% 219.95% 233.76% the movement between
liabilities non-current and current

provisions to allow for
annual leave, long service
leave and redundancy
payouts for community
care staff in November
2023 when Council exits
this service and current
landfill provision increased
to allow for landfill
rehabilitation in 2023/24.

[Unrestricted cash / Current liabilities] x100
Obligations

Council has a low level of
debt. Based on current
borrowings, Council will

Loans and be debt free in 2024/25.
borrowings Council's Adopted Budget
compared to 346%  264%  179%  106%  034%  0.00% 000% 1364% 2023/24 proposes new
rates loan borrowings for

the construction of the
Integrated Aquatic Facility
in 2026/27.

[Interest and principal repayments on Interest bearing loans and borrowings / Rate revenue] x100
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
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Dimension/ Results Forecasts
indicator/ Material Variations
measure 2020 2021 022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

Obligations
Loans and borecwings

Council has a low level of debt.
Based on current borrowings,
Loans and Council will be debt free in

borrowings .

repayments 10% 093% 089% 074% O71% 034% 000%  088% ﬁ:ﬁzﬁg‘;‘};ﬁ'mﬂﬂf&

grr:fured to for the construction of the
Integrated Aguatic Facility in
202627,

[Interest and principal repayments on interest bearing loans and borrowings / Rate revenue] x100

Council has a low level of
debt. The debt is reducing
and rates income is increasing
in line with the rate cap.

This indicator is lawer than

prior years because of

the movement between

noncurrent and current
Naon-current provisions to allow for annual
liahilities leave and long service leave
compared to 771%  B36%  T4BM  335%  643% 628%  6lE%  14.29% payouts for community care
oW SoUrce staff in Novernber 2023
revenue when Council exits this

service. The current landfill
provision increased to allow
for landfill rehabilitation in
202324, Council's adopted
budget 2023/24 proposes
new loan barrowings for the
construction of the Integrated
Aquatic Facility in 2026/27.

[Non-current liabilities / Own source revenue| x100

Asset renewal and upgrade

The decrease in this ratio

is due to depreciation for

202223 being higher than

prior years as a result of the
Asset renewal infrastructure revaluations
ond upgrade as at 30 June 2022, Capital
compared to 112.06% 11153% 94.31%  7115% 469700 26145% 106.89% 14145% spends on assat renewals and
depreciation upgrade have not increased

in line with the depreciation
increase due to rate cap limits
and limited opportunity to
raise additional revenue.

[Asset renewal and upgrade expense / Asset depreciation] x100
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FINANCIAL PERFORMAMNCE INDICATORS

Dimension/ Results Forecasts
indicatorf Material Variations
measure 2020 2022 2023 2024 2025 26 2027
Operating position
Council's 202223 result
is higher due to the early
payment of 100% of the
2023/24 annual allocation
of Federal Assistance Grants.
In 202122, there was an
early payment of 75% of the
Adjusted 2022/23 annual allocation
underlying E of Federal Assistance Grants.
surplus for 026%  -223%  445%  9.09%  -432%  0.26%  130%  148% Provision for payrnent of
deficit) redundancies associated
with the exit of community
care services by 31 October

2023 (51.3m) has also been
factored into total expenses,
The cash flow associated with
the redundancies will occur in
Nowvember 2023.

[Adjusted underlying surplus (deficit)/ Adjusted underlying revenue] x100

Stability
Rotes concentration

Rates proportion of adjusted
faze:_m;r:dpared underlying revenue is lower
U(:'rde‘:zj'n 4451% 4184% 4050% 35.10% 4597% 4380% 4379% 4378% than prior years because
e g of flood assistance grants

received in 2022/23.
[Rate revenue / Adjusted underlying revenue] x100

Rates compared Rates revenue compared
to property 073% 072% 069% 055% 045% 046%  046%  047% to property values remains
values consistent due to rate capping.

[Rate revenue / Capital improved value of rateable properties in the municipality] x100
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PERFORMANCE STATEMENTS

DEFINITIONS

"Adjusted underlying revenue” means total income other than;

(a) non-recurrent grants used to fund capital expenditure; and

{b) non-monetary asset contributions; and

(c) contributions to fund capital expenditure from sources other than those referred to above

"Adjusted underlying surplus (or deficit)" means adjusted underlying revenue less total expenditure.

“Asset renewal expenditure” means expenditure on an existing asset or on replacing an existing asset that returns the
service capability of the asset to its original capability.

"Current assets" has the same meaning as in the AAS.

"Current liabilities™ has the same meaning as in the AAS.

"non-current assets" means all assets other than current assets.

"non-current liabilities” means all liabilities other than current liabilities.

“non-recurrent grant" means a grant obtained on the condition that it be expended in a specified manner and is not
expected to be received again during the period covered by a council's Strategic Resource Plan

"Own-source revenue" means adjusted underlying revenue other than revenue that is not under the control of council
{including government grants

"population" means the resident population estimated by Council.?

“Rate revenue" means revenue from general rates, municipal charges, service rates and service charges.

"Recurrent grant” means a grant other than a non-recurrent grant.

"Residential rates" means revenue from general rates, municipal charges, service rates and service charges levied on
residential properties.

“Restricted cash™ means cash and cash equivalents, within the meaning of the AAS, that are not available for use other
than for a purpose for which it is restricted and includes cash to be used to fund capital works expenditure from the
previous financial year.

"Unrestricted cash" means all cash and cash equivalents other than restricted cash.

2 Council has utilised the March 2022 Australian Bureau of Statistics release for population estimate.

OTHER INFORMATION
For the year ended 30 June 2023

1. Basis of preparation

Council is required to prepare and include a performance statement within its annual report. The performance
statement includes the results of the prescribed sustainable capacity, service performance and financial performance
indicators and measures together with a description of the municipal district and an explanation of material variations
in the results. This statement has been prepared to meet the requirements of the Local Government Act 2020 and Local
Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020.

Where applicable the results in the performance statement have been prepared on accounting bases consistent with
those reported in the Financial Statements. The other results are based on information drawn from Council information
systems or from third parties (e.g., Australian Bureau of Statistics).

The performance statement presents the actual results for the current year and for the prescribed financial
performance indicators and measures, the results forecast by the council’s strategic resource plan. The Local
Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020 requires explanation of any material variations in the results
contained in the performance statement. Council has adopted materiality thresholds relevant to each indicator and
measure and explanations have not been provided for variations below the materiality thresholds unless the variance is
considered to be material because of its nature.

The forecast figures included in the performance statement are those adopted by Council in its strategic resource
plan on 28 June 2023 and which forms part of the Council plan. The strategic resource plan includes estimates based
on key assumptions about the future that were relevant at the time of adoption and aimed at achieving sustainability
over the long term. Detailed information on the actual financial results is contained in the General-Purpose Financial
Statements. The strategic resource plan can be obtained by contacting Council.
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CERTIFICATION OF THE PERFORMANCE STATEMENT

In my opinion, the accompanying performance statement has been prepared in accordance with the
Local Government Act 2020 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020.

3 basa 18 ‘«4-1-{1
=
Shana Johnny, CPA
Principal Accounting Officer

Dated: 25 September 2023

In our opinion, the accompanying performance statement of the Gannawarra Shire Council for the year
ended 30 June 2023 presents fairly the results of Council's performance in accordance with the Local
Government Act 2020 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020.

The performance statement contains the relevant performance indicators, measures, and results in
relation to service performance, financial performance, and sustainable capacity.

At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances that would render any particulars in the
performance statement to be misleading or inaccurate.

We have been authorised by the council and by the Local Government (Planning and Reporting)
Regufations 2020 to certify this performance statement in its final form.

Y

Cr Char{ié Gillingham Cr Garner Smith
Councillor Councillor

Dated: 25 September 2023 Dated: 25 September 2023

A

-
Geoff Rollinson
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: 25 September 2023
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VAGO

Victorian Auditor-General’s Office

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Councillors of Gannawarra Shire Council

Auditor’s
responsibilities for the
audit of the
performance
statement

Opinion | have audited the accompanying performance statement of Gannawarra Shire

Council (the council) which comprises the:

. description of municipality for the year ended 30 June 2022

. sustainable capacity indicators for the year ended 30 June 2022

. service performance indicators for the year ended 30 June 2022
. financial performance indicators for the year ended 30 June 2022
. other information and

. certification of the performance statement.

In my opinion, the performance statement of Gannawarra Shire Council in
respect of the year ended 30 June 2022 presents fairly, in all material respects,
in accordance with the performance reporting requirements of Part 4 of the
Local Government Act 2020 and Local Government (Planning and Reporting)
Regulations 2020.

Basis for Opinion | have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1994 which
incorporates the Australian Standards on Assurance Engagements. | further
describe my responsibilities under that Act and those standards in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the performance statement section

of my report.

My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. My staff and |
are independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of
the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of
the performance statement in Victoria. My staff and | have also fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my opinion.

Councillors'
responsibilities for the
performance
statement

The Councillors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
the performance statement in accordance with the performance reporting
requirements of the Local Government Act 2020 and the Local Government
(Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020 and for such internal control as the
Councillors determines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair
presentation of a performance statement that is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Level 31 / 35 Collins Street, Melbourne Vic 3000
T 03 8601 7000 enquiries@audit.vic.gov.ou www.oudit.vic.gov.ou

MELBOURNE
28 September 2022
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As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion
on the performance statement based on the audit. My objectives for the audit
are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the performance
statement as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Standards on Assurance
Engagements will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the decisions of users taken on the basis of this performance
statement.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Standards on Assurance
Engagements, | exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

. identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
performance statement, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

. obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the council’s internal control

. evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
performance statement, including the disclosures, and whether
performance statement represents the underlying events and results in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with the Councillors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that | identify during my audit.

<

T

Travis Derricott
as delegate for the Auditor-General of Victoria
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Glossay

ACT - A decree proclaiming the law, passed by the
legislature and given royal assent by the Crown.

ACTION PLAN - A document that lists the actions and
steps needed to achieve a goal and/or objective.

ADVOCACY - Lobbying for the needs of the community
through reasoned argument to the relevant authorities.

ASSET - A physical component of a facility that has

a value, enables a service to be provided and has an
economic life greater than 12 months. Roads, halls and
footpaths are assets.

ASSET MANAGEMENT - The processes by which
Council collects and maintains a comprehensive
database of asset conditions and uses this information
to prioritise works funding and maintain existing assets
at desired condition levels.

BUSINESS EXCELLENCE FRAMEWORK - A framework
or foundation used to create an environment for
continuous improvement that leads to sustainable
organisational success.

CAPITAL WORKS - Work undertaken to either

renew, upgrade, or construct assets owned by the
Gannawarra community. Renewal capital works extend
the functional use of an existing asset by complete or
part refurbishment or replacement. These works are
usually carried out on an asset which is deteriorating to
an unacceptable service level. Upgrade capital works
intentionally improve the level of service provided by
an existing asset, due to performance requirements
having increased beyond current capacity.

CIRCULAR ECONOMY - A model of production and
consumption, which involves sharing, leasing, reusing,
repairing, refurbishing and recycling existing materials
and products as long as possible.

CODES OF CONDUCT - Statements of how the
Councillors and/or staff will interact and work with
colleagues and the community.

COMMUNITY PLAN - Plan developed by a community
that outlines the community’s priorities.

COMMUNITY SATISFACTION SURVEY - An
independent annual survey of community satisfaction,
jointly sponsored by Local Government Victoria and
local governments.

CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT - Process of ensuring
that review and improvement practises are built into
operational activities.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION - An expense

which recognises the value of a fixed asset as it is used
up over time.

ABBREVIATIONS AND ACRONYMS

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - Relates to wages and salaries,
casual staff payments, annual leave, long service leave,
superannuation, fringe benefits tax, Work Cover and
redundancy payments.

EQUITY - Residual interest in the assets of Council
after the deduction of its liabilities, which is made up of
accumulated surplus and reserves. Total equity is also
equal to net assets.

EXPENSE - An outgoing payment made by Council.

GOVERNANCE - How Council operates as a decision-
making body, its relationship with the administration,
and the ways that Council engages with its community
in this process.

GROWING GANNAWARRA - 2021-2025 COUNCIL PLAN -
Plan written to guide Council’s activities for a four-year
period. Details the strategic directions and objectives for
the municipality, and underpins all the decision making
processes, policies and procedures of Council.

INCOME - An incoming payment made to Council.

INFRASTRUCTURE - Physical assets required to enable
the community to be connected and operational.

This includes roads, drains, footpaths and public open
spaces, as well as public facilities and buildings.

LIABILITIES - Future sacrifices of economic benefits that
Council is presently obliged to make to other entities as a
result of past transactions or other past events.

POLICY - A set of general guidelines that outlines
Council’s plan for addressing certain matters.

REVENUE - The amount of money that Council actually
receives from its activities, mainly from rates, grants
and services provided to customers and ratepayers.

RISK MANAGEMENT - Discipline for developing
appropriate procedures to reduce the possibility of
adverse effects from future events.

ROAD MANAGEMENT PLAN/ROAD ASSET
MANAGEMENT PLAN - The plan developed to
establish a management system for the public road
functions that are the responsibility of the Council. The
management system is based on policy and operational
objectives and at the same time recognises resource
limitations in undertaking the necessary levels of
service and performance standards outlined in the plan.

STRATEGY - A plan of action designed to achieve a
long-term or overall aim.

WARDS - The geographical area of Gannawarra Shire is
broken into four electoral divisions named wards. Each
ward has elected representatives,
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Abbreniations ama Aouoniyms

ABS Australian Bureau of Statistics

AEMO Australian Energy Market Operator

AAS Australian Accounting Standard

CALD Culturally and Linguistically Diverse
CBD Central Business District

CEO Chief Executive Officer

CORE Council Opportunity and Risk Evaluator
CPA Certified Practicing Accountant

cPl Consumer Price Index

CR Councillor

CVGA Central Victorian Greenhouse Alliance
ELT Executive Leadership Team

EPA Environmental Protection Agency
FBT Fringe Benefits Tax

FOGO Food Organics, Garden Organics
FTE Full Time Equivalent
GLAM Gannawarra Local Agency Meeting

GNETS Gannawarra Non-Emergency Transport

Service

GST Goods and Services Tax

HA Hectares

HON. Honourable

HR Human Resources

HSC High School Certificate

IBAC Independent Broad-based Anti-corruption
Commission

IDAHOBIT International Day against Homophobia,
Biphobia, Intersex discrimination

BACK PAGE: Outdoor dining space at Garden Park, Cohuna

IPAA
IT
KM
Kmp
LGA

LGBTIQ+

LGPRF

LGPRO
LGV
MAV
MCH
MFMPC

MPHWP
MRGC
MSS
NDCH
NDIS
OHS
PILOR
RSL
SEIFA
VAGO

VBl

and Transphobia

Institute of Public Administration Australia
Information Technology

Kilometres

Key Management Personnel

Local Government Area

Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Trans, Intersex,
Queer, Asexual. The "+ represents minority
gender identities and sexualities not
explicitly included in the term LGBTIQ

Local Government Performance Reporting
Framework

Local Government Professionals
Local Government Victoria
Municipal Association of Victoria
Maternal and Child Health

Municipal Fire Management Planning
Committee

Municipal Public Health and Wellbeing Plan
Murray River Group of Councils

Municipal Strategic Statement

Northern District Community Health
National Disability Insurance Scheme
Occupational Health and Safety

Payment in Lieu of Rates

Returned and Services League
Socio-Economic Indexes for Areas
Victorian Auditor-General’s Office

Vested Benefit Index
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7.5 AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE - 12 SEPTEMBER, 2023 MEETING

Author: Alissa Harrower, Manager Governance
Authoriser: Geoff Rollinson, Chief Executive Officer
Attachments: Nil

RECOMMENDATION

That Council receive and note the summary of the discussions of the Audit and Risk Committee
meeting held 12 September 2023.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
The Audit and Risk Committee (ARC) met on Tuesday, 12 September 2023. The focus of the ARC

meeting was to review the draft Financial Statements and the draft Performance Statement. Other
reports related to governance, compliance and risk management matters.

PURPOSE

This report outlines the actions of the ARC to meet its responsibilities to: - ensure compliance with
Council policies; monitor financial performance; monitor risk and fraud control and overview the
audit functions.

ATTACHMENTS
Nil
DISCUSSION

Details of the 12 September 2023 ARC Meeting:

Member attendees:

John Campbell — Independent Member — Chair
Francis Crawley — Independent Member

Laura Conti — Independent Member

Cr Charlie Gillingham — Councillor Representative
Cr Garner Smith — Councillor Representative

Also in attendance:

Staff

Geoff Rollinson — Chief Executive Officer
Shanna Johnny — Chief Financial Officer
Alissa Harrower — Manager Governance
Melissa Mathers — Executive Assistant

Auditor
Josh Porker — RSD Audit for the 2023 Financial Statements and Performance Statement

Shivam Goel - RSD Audit for the 2023 Financial Statements and Performance Statement

The following items were considered by the ARC at the meeting:

Iltem 7.5 Page 108



Council Meeting Agenda

18 October 2023

with legislation
and regulations

regulations was provided.

Report Item for Discussion Recommendation/Outcome
2023 Annual The 2023 Annual Financial Statements and 1. The ‘in principle‘ 2023
Financial Performance Statement were presented for ‘in Financial Statements and
Statements and | principle’ endorsement by the Audit and Risk Performance Statement
Performance Committee (ARC). were endorsed.
Statement 2. Approved the ‘in
principle’ reports subject
to any changes made by
VAGO.
Compliance An update on compliance with legislation and The ARC received and noted

the report.

Risk
Management
Report

Council’s current Risk Management Framework
requires quarterly reporting to the ARC. The
report examined risk management progress
and highlights from individual directorates for
the period 1 April 2023 to 30 June 2023.

The ARC received and noted
the report.

Outstanding
Internal Audit

The list of outstanding internal audit items was
reviewed.

The ARC resolved to hold
this matter over until the

ltems — Past next meeting.

Issues Review

and Update

Reports from Various reports were considered from the The reports were
VAGO, IBAC, Victorian Ombudsman and VAGO. considered and noted.
Ombudsman

and LG

Inspectorate

Councillor A report of the expenses of Councillors and The reports were received
Expenditure Delegated Committee Members was presented | and noted

Report to the ARC for 1 April 2023 — 30 June 2023.

Corporate Details of expenditure on credit cards and work

Credit Card related reimbursements for 1 April 2023 — 30

June 2023 was presented.

RELEVANT LAW

Section 53 and 54 Local Government Act 2020.

RELATED COUNCIL DECISIONS

The ARC was established by Council at its meeting on 19 August 2020.

Council adopted the “in principle” 2023 Financial Statements and Performance Statement at its
meeting on 20 September 2023.

OPTIONS

There are no specific recommendations for Council’s consideration in this report.
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SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

The Local Government Act 2020 gives the ARC a broader focus and a stronger emphasis on key
responsibility areas in financial and performance reporting, internal control environment (ICE), risk
management, fraud prevention, internal audit, external audit and compliance management risks.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

The three independent members on the ARC ensure that there is involvement by key community
members.

INNOVATION AND CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT
Not applicable.

COLLABORATION

Reports from various agencies were included in the agenda.

FINANCIAL VIABILITY
The ARC is operating within the adopted Budget.

REGIONAL, STATE AND NATIONAL PLANS AND POLICIES
Not applicable.

COUNCIL PLANS AND POLICIES

A review of Council policies is a key component of the ICE Plan.

TRANSPARENCY OF COUNCIL DECISIONS

This report will be considered in an open Council meeting.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The officer preparing this report declares that they have no conflict of interest in regards to this
matter.
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8 URGENT BUSINESS

9 NOTICES OF MOTION
Nil

10 QUESTION TIME

Question Time provides an opportunity for members of the public to submit questions, in advance,
to gain a response at the Council meeting.

QUESTIONS FROM THE GALLERY
Completed Question Time forms must be submitted to the Chief Executive Officer via email
council@gsc.vic.gov.au no later than 5.00pm on the day prior to the Council meeting.

A maximum number of two questions may be submitted in writing by any one person.
Questions will be read by the Question Author, Mayor or Chief Executive Officer.

The Mayor or Chief Executive Officer may indicate that they require further time to research an
answer. In this case, an answer will be provided in writing generally within ten (10) business days.

Questions will be answered at the meeting, or later in writing, unless the Mayor of Chief Executive
Officer has determined that the relevant question seeks confidential information defined in
Section 3 of the Local Government Act 2020 such as:

e Council business information

e security information

¢ land use planning information

e law enforcement information

e legal privileged information

e personal information

e private commercial information

e confidential meeting information

e internal arbitration information

e Councillor Conduct Panel confidential information

e anissue outside the Gannawarra Shire Council core business

or if the question is:

e defamatory, indecent, abusive or objectionable in language or substance
e repetitive of a question already answered (whether at the same or an earlier meeting)

e asked to embarrass a Councillor or Council officer.
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No debate or discussion of questions or answers shall be permitted and all questions and answers
shall be a brief as possible.
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11  DELEGATES REPORTS

12.1 DELEGATES REPORTS

Author: Mel Mathers, People and Culture Officer
Authoriser: Geoff Rollinson, Chief Executive Officer
Attachments: Nil

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Council has memberships with peak Local Government associations, local and regional forums
along with statutory committees. Some memberships require that a Councillor be appointed to act
as a delegate to formally represent Council; typically in a voting capacity. This Agenda item
provides an opportunity for Council appointed delegates to present a verbal update on any
pertinent matters arising from Council’s membership on the following associations.

Association Appointed Council Delegate
Central Victorian Greenhouse Alliance Cr Stanton

Community Halls Community Asset Committee Cr Burt

Loddon Campaspe Group of Councils Mayor

Municipal Association of Victoria Cr Collier

Municipal Fire Management Planning Committee (MFMPC) Cr Link

Murray River Group of Councils (MRGC) Mayor

Rail Freight Alliance Cr Stanton

Rural Councils Victoria Cr Smith

Timber Towns Victoria Cr Smith

NB: * Audit and Risk Committee - no delegate report is required as the Audit and Risk Committee
formally reports back separately to Council in accord with the Audit and Risk Committee Charter.
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12 CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS
Nil

Page 114



